1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 12, 2026 6 pm
Ridgewood Commons
2060 Ridgewood Drive Cutten, CA 95503

CALL TO ORDER/FLAG SALUTE

CONSENT AGENDA

2.1 Approval of Minutes-December 8, 2025

2.2 Approval of Warrants and Payroll

2.3 Approval of Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints

2.4 Approval of Letter of Resignation/Retirement 1.0 Credentialed Cutten Resource Teacher
2.5 Approval of 1.0 Certificated Leave December 1, 2025-May 1, 2026

2.6 Approval of .8 FTE Classified Cutten ASP/Classroom Aide Position

2.7 Approval of .68 FTE Temporary Ridgewood Classified Aide Position

2.8  Approval of New 2025 IRS Mileage Reimbursement, Per Diem,and Bid Threshold Rates

VISITOR COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

The Board reserves the right to limit speakers to three minutes only. The Board may comment
but cannot take action at this time. The Board President may refer the matter to the
Superintendent for review, if appropriate.

REPORTS

4.1  Cutten Ridgewood PTA Report

4.2  School Site Council

4.3 HBTA Report

4.4  Principals’ Report

4.5 Enroliment

46 LCAP

CORRESPONDENCE

5.1  School Board Recognition Month

5.2 Independent Financial and Compliance Audit Report

INFORMATION / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Presentation: CFW Facilities Plan

Discussion/Consider Approval of the 2025-26 District Facilities Plan
Discussion/Consider Approval of Cutten and Ridgewood 2024 — 2025 School
Accountability Report Cards

Discussion/Consider Acceptance of 2024-2025 Independent Financial and Compliance
Audit Report for School District and Measure L & K General Obligation Bond
Information/Public Presentation (Sunshine) of the Humboldt Bay Teachers’s
Association Initial Proposal for 2026-2027 Contract Negotiations: Opening with Salary
and Health & Welfare

Discussion/Consider Approval of 3 Hour (.375 FTE) Temporary Aide for Music Program
(Art & Music Proposition 28 roll over funding)

Discussion/Consider Approval of an Additional 15min/day .028 FTE RW Cafeteria Aide
for Setup/Inventory

Discussion/Approval to Increase Custodian Starting Pay to $17.03hr Beginning
January 2025

Discussion/Consider Approval of Contract Audit Services RT Dennis

Accountancy (1st year: $20,000, 2nd year: $21,000. 3rd year: $22,000 plus travel)



6.10 Discussion/Consider Approval of Change Orders #11.1 and #008 Insulation Materials
Change and Roof Spray Foam Insulation Credit ($3,738.54), additional cost
$21,948.41

6.11 Discussion/Information RW Bond and Future Cutten Projects

7.0 SUPERINTENDENT REPORT
8.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM
9.0 BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS / COMMUNICATION

10.0 CLOSED SESSION

9.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator: Becky MacQuarrie
Unrepresented Employee: Classified

9.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator: Becky MacQuarrie
Unrepresented Employee: Classified

9.3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator: Becky MacQuarrie
Name of Organization Representing Employees: HBTA

11.0 RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
Report of Action Taken

12.0. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE: Any writing, not exempt from public disclosure under Government Code Section 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3,
6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22, which is distributed to all or a majority of the members of the governing board
by any person in connection with a matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the board is
available for public inspection at Ridgewood School, 2060 Ridgewood Drive, Eureka



CUTTEN BOARD OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BOARD MEETING Minutes
December 8, 2025 6:00 pm

Ridgewood Commons
2060 Ridgewood Drive Cutten, CA 95503

1.0 CALL TO ORDER/FLAG SALUTE- Board members in attendance: Dennis Reinholtsen , Mary
DeWald, Becky Reece, Mindy Sehon, Beth Johnston. Meeting called to order at 6:07 pm with flag salute.

2.0 CONSENT AGENDA- Question in regards to 2.3 and it not being a one on one aide discussion.
Moved by Becky Reece seconded by Beth Johnston.

21 Approval of Minutes — November 17, 2025

2.2 Approval of Warrants and Payroll

2.3 Approval of .675 FTE Classified Aide Position

24 Approval of Resignation - .75 FTE Classified Aide Position

2.5  Approval of MOU Between Cutten School District and HBTA Regarding School Climate
Team, Leadership Team, Yearbook, Athletic Director, Drama Program (Director &
Coordinators) 2025-26

3.0 VISITOR COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS- None

The Board reserves the right to limit speakers to three minutes only. The Board may comment
but cannot take action at this time. The Board President may refer the matter to the
Superintendent for review, if appropriate.

4.0 REPORTS

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.5

4.6

Cutten Ridgewood PTA Report- Pancake breakfast went well, PTA members quota

has been reached so no more being accepted at the moment.

School Site Council Report- Passed comprehensive safe schools plan. Next

meeting Jan 20th, 2026.

Principals’ Report- New online platform IDTs are up and going. Conference week went so
great both from the teachers and families. Principles delivered food boxes for needy
families. New librarian did a great job with her first scholastic bookfair with gross 9k sales
of which we get a portion. Gate academy students picked and they are going to their event
in January. Shout out to Yip and Cook for their student council group. Girls are doing great
with their basketball season. Behavior academy on students who have a harder time
keeping their hands to themselves. Math curriculum event at HCOE that teachers
attended to review for next year. TK information night Dec 11th. Classroom performances
week before break for all grades.

HBTA Report- TK K informational night is nice having it early on during the IDT timeline.
Appreciate having the variety of teachers checking out the new math curriculum. A new
native american curriculum created in Humboldt that a few teachers attended for free and
curriculum is given free to schools to share. Shout out to Cook for her conferences and
teaching methods.

Citizen's Oversight Committee Report- First meeting happened with shared expenses so
they see expenses are being used appropriately.

Update on Current Enroliment- Steady running in attendance updated sheet to be

brought back.
LCAP- Meeting to be held in hopes to get more parents input.



5.0 CORRESPONDENCE

5.1 Reminder: School Board Members Required Ethics Training Every 2 Years AB
1234

6.0 INFORMATION / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS
6.1 Discussion/Consider Approval of Certification of First Interim Report- Motioned by
Becky Reece seconded by Mary DeWald. Motion passed 5-0
6.2  Discussion/Consider Approval of 2024 School Board Organization — Officers,

Meeting Dates, Times.- Motioned by Becky Reece seconded by Beth Johnston.
Motion carried 5-0.

6.3  Discussion/Approval of eLuma Contract to Support Students During Speech
Pathologist Leave of Absence- Motioned by Beth Johnston seconded by Becky
Reece so long as ability of termination is possible. Motion carried 5-0.

6.4  Discussion/Consider Approval of Speech Language Pathologist Sarah Tichner
Contract 2 Hours Week- Motioned by Mindy Sehon seconded by Becky Reece.
Motion carried 5-0.

6.5  Discussion/Consider Approval of Bid to Replace Annex Roof & Garage- Motioned
by Becky Reece seconded by Mary DeWald with discretion based on timeline.
Motion carried 5-0.

6.6 Discussion on Ridgewood Phase 2 Project- Roof part left out of plans, asked for
guidance on how to move forward.

7.0 SUPERINTENDENT REPORT- Opportunity to become a school for mentoring teachers as a pilot
school. CEl training coming up in San Diego with a team from Cutten with monies that come through PD. In
the thick of our audit and having to look into a new auditor for the following year.

8.0 CLOSED SESSION- Meeting adjourned at 7:46pm for closed session. Closed session opened at
7:47pm.

With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session:

8.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (GC § 54957.6)
Agency Negotiator: Becky MacQuarrie

Name of organization representing employees: Classified

9.0 RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION- Meeting reconvened at 8:06
Report of Action Taken- No action taken

10.0 BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS / COMMUNICATION- None

11.0 ADJOURNMENT- Meeting adjourned at 8:08pm

NOTICE: Any writing, not exempt from public disclosure under Government Code Section 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3,
6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22, which is distributed to all or a majority of the members of the governing
board by any person in connection with a matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the
board is available for public inspection at Ridgewood School, 2060 Ridgewood Drive, Eureka



| Zjo | abed

| pjuiojv) 40} 43 &

9202 L uer (O1I¥YOA) Seles-ojjue) esaueA 1o} psjelsusn)

L
L

WNdPS L

(gzoz/Le/z) = seq Aed Bulpu3 '5202/L/2L = eled Aed Buels .mNON =Jea\ [B3SI] "6 =

-96'Sv.L'e
96'GtL'2

HOV PIOA
syo8y9 [aoue)

panssiay

191)81Q jooysg Asejuswal3 uspng - 600

610) Aq paiayiy

1€
ve
L

S6°LLB'V.IE
0¥'252'59¢ |lqer Jopusp
GG'6GS'6 S te=lT g WIel JUETY

$20Z/LE/Z) MY} 6Z0Z/S0/Z) 1eq SSad01d 1o} anssiay/jaoue) | |

Gzoz/Le/zL niy) mNou\mc\N_‘lwumn Aed 1oy Alewiung Jopuap

G6'LLe'vLIE GEBEL'LLE 09°'229'¢9L SIv.ioL
0€'680'GY DO 0€'690°SY TvioLans 00°'8Z1'G6€ €6 25°899'cop ziL IvLOl
69'/28'v0Z 66°.EL'vE 66°LEL'PE sbuineg rswwng
Gl 1/0'¢ G1'110't ueinsuj jejuswa|ddng
00'068 00058 snoaue||aosiiy
00°00L 00°001 Keday 1011810
98'Z¢ 98°2¢ sjuawysiues
00°0G0'S, 00°050'¢ HLO¥ agov 0¥'680'501 ol ¥1°098'2hi 99 payisse|n
0Z've 02°0¥8'¢c 0/°0v8'c sdiysiaqus|y g sang 09°8€0'06Z oy 8/°208'02¢ or pajeoyay
_Wm.ohw 199lqng 12301 |.-m>o_aEm aakojdwg SNOILONAa3a _ _www>o_nEm ajewad adA] uosiad SONINNVY3I
18°908'vPZ 56°81.'281 9Z°880°29 Jvioians 90°G18'C 75°899'cop Iviol
00'05. 00052 sBuines |eolpaiy xai4 00840 Ipv Zm
$2'806 $2°'806 uemsuy [ejuaws|ddng 16102’ Aed uoneoep
00001 0000} a1e] yuapuadag 00°0S8°¢ saynysgns
S0'v¥.'20L J1'69/'68 G6°'8/6'CL alej|aph g UlesH 000211 spuadyg
00°€€2'S 00'€El's Wnuuy palsjlayg xej 00'S SNosUE|[SISIN
z1°66€'8. 0€'€/6'22 ZZ'EL6'PL 80'000'8 Z9/S41s v6'2€2 slpy Aed ssoin
29°1p2'ece 25°226'89 EA AR 00'6¥6'€2 09/S¥18 15'62¢'9 Aing eax3
ZL'v91'66 29°9ZL'ce DSELS'Ge zLeLg’s Z9/S43ad SV sy20Q
6£'92Zb'62 80°6¥6'6 12'689'2 18'650'2 SY3d ) 67'8£8'VSY Aed oseq
ﬂmoho walqng  jejog hmwo_n_Em_ aako|dwg mZO_._.ODn_mm[_ i sjuawisnipy swoou| dnoig Aq SONINYVYI
¥8'516'v8 08°0Z4'82 v0'S61°95 Jviolans 90'618'C 25'899'€9t IvlioL
€E'LER'8hY Shesy'zL SPEsy'ZL dwo) s1eyiopp
€ELER'SYY 25°vze 7S vee Ins
£E°LE6'BYY aL'6lL0'slL 3G'60G'9 86'605'9 aleslpaly
LE°6EV'8PL 05°90t'8l G2'€02'6 GZ'E0Z'6 Ajunosg jeioog 25'899'c9¥ lejnbay
92'08G'L0Y 66°9/9'6 66'9/9'6 Buipjoyyym atels -b62€C Aed sso15) oN
9Z'08G'LO¥ 99'50L°L¢e ) 99°'G0L'LE Buipjoyyy |esepa 00'8%0'¢t 9|gexe}-uoN
8assolo 193lqng 1el0 | 13A0jdwiy sakojdwy SAXVYL i _Mhm_._hm:_g awoou| apo) sbhujuieg Aq SONINYVY3

92/S20Z 129 |eosiy

610 Aq Aiewiwing jjoihed

elLoAed

S202Z/1£/2) Yybnoiyy 620z/S0/Z) 8ieq Aed




WdPG L
9207 L Uer (OTIVYOA) seles-o|lie] esaue, 10} pajelauss 1oM81q _oo_._.om >._m~:me_m_|:o==o - 600
Z Jo g abed — = _

pojip) 1of (JH3 A |

(gz02/1¢/21 = 91eq Aed Buipu3 '6207/L/2) = 9leq Aed Buniels ‘920z = 1eaA [eastd '6 = Bi0) Aq paseliid ‘610 Aq padnoig tonoaia

£LL 26'566'66Z Tviol

18N olaz

SPIOH %98y

18N aAnebaN 18'208'v29 18'108'p29

HOV 12N lenied SUONNGINUOD GEBEL LIz GE6EL L LE Aungert psig
K> 1Z'896'VE S840 suonaNpag 09'z,9'e9) 26°899'c9¥ sBujuiey ssoin
z9 L2°120'692 spsodaq jo8ilg Aed 19N z6'666'662

- - V1vad ONIONY1vE

92/520¢ 1ea\ [easi4

G202Z/L€/ZL ubnoiyy 6zoz/50/Z1 218@ Aed

610 Aq Arewwing |joifey eLofed




ReqPay12a

Checks Dated 12/01/2025 through 12/31/2025

Check Check
Number Date
3000297200 12/04/2025
3000297201 12/04/2025
3000297202 12/04/2025
3000297203 12/04/2025
3000297204 12/04/2025
3000297205 12/04/2025
3000297694  12/08/2025
3000297695 12/08/2025
3000297696 12/08/2025
3000297697 12/08/2025
3000297698 12/08/2025
3000297699 12/08/2025
3000297700 12/08/2025
3000297701 12/08/2025
3000297702 12/08/2025
3000298097 12/11/2025
3000298098 12/11/2025
3000298099 12/11/2025
3000298100 12/11/2025
3000298101 12/11/2025
3000298550 12/15/2025
3000298551 12/15/2025
3000298552 12/15/2025
3000298553 12/15/2025
3000298554 12/15/2025

Board Report

Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Fund-Object Amount Amount |

ENERGY RESOURCES 01-7439 5,862.93
CONSERVATION AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
James Marta & Company LLP 01-5822 25,000.00
JK Inspections LLC 21-5800 3,412.50
URBAN FUTURES INC 01-5800 7,300.00
Verizon Wireless 01-5921 328.82
U.S. BANK 01-4110 4,225.07

01-4210 1,303.18

01-4310 6,174.58

01-4374 259.90

01-5210 854.65

01-5841 31.35

01-5884 32.11

01-5950 3.00 12,883.84
(HARRIS) SHAFER'S ACE 01-4374 188.24
HARDWARE
AT&T CALNET 2 01-5909 340.83
CRYSTAL CREAMERY 134711 2,691.05
CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOTTLED 01-5531 40.00
WATER

01-5623 34.00 74.00
FRANZ FAMILY BAKERY 134710 257.30
JOHNSON'S MOBILE RENTALS 21-5800 293.62
MURPHY'S MARKET 13-4710 118.57
SYSCO SACRAMENTO 01-4710 1,448.64

13-4396 4,659.99

134710 16,239.47

13-5623 147.85 22,495.95
VALLEY PACIFIC PETROLEUM SVCS 014364 223.07

01-4365 556.21 779.28
Carillo-Salas, Vanesa 01-5201 168.14

01-5950 444

13-4710 81.98 254,56
REVOLVING CASH FUND 01-5886 2.00

01-5950 9.45

01-9589 665.02

13-4710 295.72 972.19
Rutter, Darcie R 01-4391 156.30
Stokes, Mary E 01-4310 446.24
REVOLVING CASH FUND 01-4310 400.00
HUMBOLDT WASTE MGMT. 01-5560 108.41
AUTHORITY
JK Inspections LLC 21-5800 5,321.25
KEENAN ASSOCIATES 01-9542 64,694.50
MISSION LINEN SUPPLY 01-5550 408.01
MURPHY'S MARKET 13-4710 298.66

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization
Page 1 of 2

of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

009 - Cutten Elementary School District

Generated for Vanesa Carillo-Salas (VCARILLO), Jan 7 2026

1:55PM



Checks Dated 12/01/2025 through 12/31/2025

ReqgPay12a

Board Report

i Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
3000298555  12/15/2025 P G&E 015511 203.08

01-5520 6,143.72 6,346.80
3000298556 12/15/2025 Ubeo West,LLC 01-7439 962.93
3000298557 12/15/2025 U.S. BANK 01-4210 2,970.00
01-4310 6,021.01
01-4393 126.51
01-5210 3,000.00
01-5884 948.00 13,065.52
3000298558 12/15/2025 2ndGear LLC 01-4400 3,506.10
3000298899 12/18/2025 A& ROOFING INC 01-6250 1,000.00
3000298300 12/18/2025 Crawford & Assoc. Inc 21-5800 1,640.00
3000298901 12/18/2025 HUMB COMMUNITY SERVICES DIST 01-5530 1,197.09
3000298902 12/18/2025 P G&E 01-5511 590.44
3000298903 12/18/2025 STUDIO W ARCHITECTS 21-6210 4,456.81
3000298904 12/18/2025 TRINITY DIESEL INC. 01-5635 1,593.21
3000299816 12/30/2025 Adams Comm. Gen Cont., Inc. 21-5800 341,400.55
3000299817 12/30/2025 Arenivaz, Alanzo 13-4710 54.82
3000299818 12/30/2025 Girard, Anne E 01-4310 75.00
3000299819 12/30/2025 Goodman, Kimberly A 01-4310 302.78
3000299820 12/30/2025 Hoertkon-Rice, Suzanne K 014310 292.51
3000299821 12/30/2025 Hulstrom, Michael £ 01-4710 55.37
3000299822 12/30/2025 Kencke, Joseph T 01-4310 58.05
3000299823 12/30/2025 Luciani, Ashly C 014310 109.50
3000299824 12/30/2025 MacQuarrie, Becky L 01-5201 116.90
3000299825 12/30/2025 Pery, Alexandra 01-4310 32.42
3000299826 12/30/2025 Robbins, Anne M 01-4310 49.60
3000299827 12/30/2025 Rutter, Darcie R 01-4391 94.38
01-5210 60.00 154.38
3000299828 12/30/2025 Shoghi, Jesse P 01-4310 99.21
3000299829 12/30/2025 Sligh, Annette M 01-5950 10.48
Total Number of Checks 49 532,357.52
Fund Recap
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
01 GENERAL FUND 38 150,987.38
13 CAFETERIA FUND 24,845.41
21 BUILDING FUND 356,524.73
Total Number of Checks 49 532,357.52
Less Unpaid Tax Liability .00
532,357.52

" The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Po_licy and authorization

Net (Check Amount)

of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

009 - Cutten Elementary School District

& ERP for Cdlifornia

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Vanesa Carillo-Salas (VCARILLO), Jan 7 2026

1:55PM



Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints
Education Code 35186(d)

District: Cutten Elementary school District

Becky MacQuarrie _ _ Superintendent

Person completing this form: T

Please select the Quarter you are reporting Below:

Quarter 4 - October 1 through December 31 Date: 1 -1 2-2026

Please check the box that applies:

¢’| No Complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarter indicated above

Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter indicated above. The
following chart summarizes the nature and resolution of these complaints.

Textbooks and

Instructional 0
Materials
Teacher Vacancy 0

Or Misassignment

Facilities Conditions

TOTALS 0 0 0

Becky MacQuarrie

Print Name of District Superintendent

Signature of District Superintendent
Please return completed form to: Cassidy McCrane, School Support
Humboldt County Office of Education
cmcerane@hcoe.org
by: Quarter 1 due: 04/30

Quarter 2 due: 08/31
Quarter 3 due: 10/31
Quarter 4 due: 01/31



Office of Education Supernntandant of 3ot o

ﬁHumbald’r County Michael Davies-Hughes

MEMORANDUM

Date: December 30, 2025

To: District Superintendents, Charter School Directors, and School Chief Business Officials
From: Corey Weber, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services

Subject: Updated IRS Mileage Reimbursement Rate and Bid Threshold for 2026

This memorandum provides important updates for all Humboldt County School Districts and Charter
Schools regarding the IRS mileage reimbursement rate and the annual adjustment to the bid threshold
for contracts awarded by Local Educational Agencies (LEAs). Both changes take effect on January 1,
2026.

IRS Mileage Reimbursement Rate for 2026

On December 29, 2025, the IRS announced the standard mileage reimbursement rate for 2026. The rate
for business miles driven in a personal vehicle will increase to 72.5¢ per mile beginning January 1, 2026.
HCOE will adopt this rate in alignment with IRS guidelines. Each district and charter school should follow

its own procedures for implementing the new rate.

Bid Threshold for Non-Construction Contracts
The new bid threshold for non-construction contracts is $119,100 for the year starting January 1, 2026.
LEAs must use this threshold for contracts subject to competitive bidding, including:
s Purchases of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to the school
district
= Services that are not construction-related
« Repairs and maintenance as defined in PCC Section 20115 (note: these are not considered
public projects under PCC Section 22002(c), which have a lower bid threshold of $15,000)

Bid Threshold for Construction Services/Public Works Projects
The threshold for construction services and public works projects remains at $15,000.

Additional Information
For further details, please refer to the attached IRS Notice 2026-10 and the SCLS Legal Update dated

December 17, 2025.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

—

\ '1‘1}!'\-'_"'——/
Corey Weber
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

Humgooldt County Office of Educaticn - 901 Myrtle Avenue -  Eurska, CA 955C1 . 7074457000 - hcceorg



apeis

€15 [€10]. |o0YydS
115 sjejol
) l |Jouer ‘ouelele) |lendsoH/awoH
6 Anwg ‘uep Ipueys ‘supiiy 9
T4 19141 el galpuy ‘diA 9
G2 alId|BA 'UOSEBRID aapuelg ‘|IsuoNN 9
8 yixis T4 1a)A| 'ussuensuyo sadkey| 00D 9
L Awz ‘uep Ipueys ‘sunjiy S
G2 ElEWY ‘aue’ yreghiey ‘sexo1s S
€9 Y4 9¢ Aupsaq 'sajezuocn usr ‘epod S
80¢ €2 eoISSa ‘UNWS Anw3 ‘Ayepnd 14
1e101 A euuy ‘Ajeaoy Aoel] ‘moquag v
usin) el yHno4 vz |puelg ‘uosmen awier 'anbey v
8l I ‘wodis|iny alpieQ ‘esig €
/1 augny ‘uebiopy eiey) Jahol] €
0¢ 196p1 ‘wounsinH eul] ysipueig €
12 Pyl (174 ualey] ‘ould Aespurq 'suppiepm €
el ol [lsuung ‘uoung JojAe) ‘seuor odas
L Bulo ‘ppiy NIIN 'SPJBYIIY 4
22 euaT ‘|lepsielg auuezng ‘ao1y z
44 alueyde)g ‘ynomasnoH Aueyleg ‘uosliqq) 4
vi puodsag (¥4 euyBiajysy ‘uos.iabloH IPUIl ‘uog 4
8 BUIOT 'PPIY MIN 'SpJeyay L
[44 E||3 ‘Joubep lueq ‘syoluty L
59¢ F44 3(IvYoIN ‘ueqin 200 ‘axous) L
|elol 0L ysid [44 aloe)y ‘1ajaxoelg eluler ‘|l L
poomabply VY4 eleygs ‘JoSop ZI7 ‘ennos3 M
vl BSS||a|N ‘SO essi|o 'InowAas M
12 Aoel] '1ehey) uley| ‘uowwa M
€L uapehiapury 6l A ‘uosisw3 Aoor)S ‘UagaeD M
S ess||9|N ‘SUION essl|oN ‘InowAhag ML
] epur ‘puejado) aulpeN ‘meybes M1
A M1 8l ueplIor ‘jSIuegoiN Awy ‘ulelsey) AL
Ll oas L BUOPIBD X00SIH woj ‘ysap oas
sjejol s|ejol apelg azIg sse|D apiy 19yoea} |9A31
|ooyss woolisse|) woolisse|) apelo







CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT
EUREKA, CALIFORNIA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the
Statement of Activities

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual — General Fund

Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net OPEB Liability and
Related Ratios

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Schedule of Pension Contributions

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

PAGE

10

11

12

13

14

16

45

46
47
48

49



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Combining Balance Sheet — All Non Major Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance — All Non Major Funds

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
Schedule of Instructional Time
Schedule of Charter Schools

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report
with Audited Financial Statements

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis
Notes to Supplementary Information
OTHER INFORMATION
Organization
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS

Independent Auditor's Report on State Compliance and
On Internal Control over Compliance

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

51

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

65

67

71



James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Cutten Elementary School District
Eureka, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Cutten Elementary School District (the “District™), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the District, as of June 30, 2025, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The District’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, inciuding any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, California 95825 Phone: (916) 993-9494  Fax: (916) 993-9489
{deoli@jpmepa.com  www. jpmepa.com I




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore isnot a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concem for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters
Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 1Y to the financial statements, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 101,
Compensated Absences which required a restatement of net position as of July 1, 2024. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget (Non-
GAAP) and Actual - General Fund, Schedule of Changes in District’s Net OPEB Liability and Related
Ratios, Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Schedule of Pension Contributions,
respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the

2



methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic [inancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conductcd for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information as listed in the table of
contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statcments. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and ccrtain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the financial statements. The other
information comprises the Organization page but does not include the basic financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and
we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we
are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12,
2025, on our consideration of District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

ﬁow«m,meﬂ-LP

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 12, 2025

(V)



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2025

Introduction
The Management Discussion and Analysis section is management's view of the district's financial condition
and provides an opportunity to discuss important fiscal issues with the Governing Board and the public.

The Cutten School District

The District serves the residents of the Cutten community in Humboldt County, just outside the southern
boundary of the City of Eurcka. District enrollment 551 students for the 2024-2025 school year. Two schools
serve the Cutten School District. Kindergarten through second grade students attend Ridgewood Elementary
School. Third grade through sixth grade students attend Cutten Elementary School.

The District Mission Statement

The Cutten School District, in partnership with our community, provides students with the academic and
social skills necessary to become contributing members of a global community. We do this by creating a
joyful, student-centered, and orderly learning environment rich in the arts and sciences, where everyone
knows they are respected members of the “Cutten-Ridgewood Family”.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The audit report consists of multiple parts: the Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements, the
Management Discussion and Analysis (this section), the Basic Financial Statements, Required Supplementary
Information, Supplemental Information, Other Independent Auditor Reports, and Audit Findings and
Questioned Costs. The Basic Financial Statements section provides overall financial information about
District operations through several detailed reports. The Government-wide statements reflect the District's
overall financial status. The Governmental Funds statements tell how basic services, like regular and special
education, were financed as well as what remains for future spending.

The Required Supplementary Information section contains comparison schedules and statements for General
and Special Reserve Funds.

The Other Independent Auditor Reports section includes data regarding internal controls and state
compliance.

The Findings and Questioned Costs section details the specific areas that resulted in audit findings needing
corrective action for all financial statements and all applicable state/federal programs for the current year as
well as the prior year.

Financial Reports

Two financial reports, the Statement of Net position and Statement of Activities, reflect district-wide financial
condition and activities. In contrast, the individual fund statements focus on reporting the district's operations
in more detail. The fund financial statements look at the District's major funds with all other non-major funds
presented in total in one column. The major funds for the District are:

= General Fund
=  Building Fund



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2025

Statement of Net position

Displayed below is the value of all assets, including buildings, land, and equipment. Depreciation is included.
Land is accounted for at purchase value, not market value, and is not depreciated. The valuation of school
buildings is based on historical costs. The table below summarizes the value of district assets. This chart
reflects accounting entries showing the district's proportionate share of CalSTRS' and CalPERS' net pension
liability which is reported and adjusted annually based on actuarial computations (noncurrent obligations). It
also shows the amount paid in the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2025 for the employer portion of the STRS
and PERS contributions (deferred outflow) and the pension-related net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan investments amortized over five years (deferred inflow).

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Assets
Current assets
Right of Use - Lease Assets
Capital assets
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total habilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

June 30, June 30, Percentage
2025 2024 Change Change

$ 13255925 $ 10424829 $§ 2,831,096 27.16%
11,018 19,831 (8,813) -44.44%,
6,465,138 6,392,920 72,218 1.13%
19,732,081 16,837,580 2,894,501 17.19%
4,629,786 3,236,384 1,393,402 43.05%
1,142,324 547,870 594454 108.50%
13,747,023 11,634,117 2,112,906 18.16%
14,889,347 12,181,987 2,707,360 22.22%
2,746,540 2,220,500 526,040 23.69%
52,293 2,637,654 (2,585,361) -98.02%
3,913,684 2,520,025 1,393,659 55.30%
2,760,003 513,798 2.246.205 437.18%
$ 6725980 $ 5671477 § 1,054,503 18.59%




CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2025

Statement of Activities

Net position is the difference between all our assets (buildings, equipment, etc.) less liabilities (depreciation,
loans). Total revenues exceeded total expenditures for the year which increased net position by $1,054,503.
This was due mainly to increased revenues compared to last year. The Program Revenue increased due to the
addition of one-time funds in ELOP, Educator Effectiveness, and ELA, Math, Arts grant. The following table
summarizes the changes to net position for the 2024-2025 and the 2023-2024 fiscal years.

Condensed Statement of Activities for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30

Percentage
2025 2024 Change Change
Revenues
Charges for services $ 55284  § 662 $ 54,622 8251.1%
Operating grants and contributions 2,264,890 3,390,865 (1,125,975) -33.2%
Capital grants and contributions 49 91 (42) 100.0%
Taxes levied for general purposes 1,340,298 1,310,324 29974 2.3%
Taxes levied for debt services 147,224 149,874 (2,650) -1.8%
Federal and state aid not restricted
for specific purposes 5,230,785 5,503,905 (273,120) -5.0%
Interest and investment earnings 337,216 378,553 (41,337) -10.9%
Miscellaneous 165,810 159,260 6,550 4.1%
Interagency revenues 2,877 - 2,877 N/A
Total revenues 9,544 433 10,893,534 (1,349,101) -12.4%
Expenses
Instruction 4,671,896 5,320,129 (648,233) -12.2%
Instruction related services 687,630 748,313 (60,683) -8.1%
Pupil services 944 082 762,665 181,417 23.8%
General administration 442,859 478,506 (35,647) -7.4%
Plant services 803,141 805,330 (2,189) -0.3%
Ancillary services 480 315 165 52.4%
Community services 124411 117,008 7,403 6.3%
Interest on long-term debt 335,664 259,329 76,335 29.4%
Other outgo 479,767 380,880 98,887 26.0%
Total expenses 8,489,930 8.872475 (382,545) -4.3%
Change in net position $ 1054503 § 2021059 $ (966,556) -47.8%

Cutten School District Revenue 2024-25

District revenues werc received from four major sources as follows: Federal & State Aid Unrestricted 50.5%,
Property Taxes 13.4%, and Program Revenues 31%.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2025

Cutten School District Expenses 2024-2025

The total cost of programs and services was $8,489,930. The District expenses are predominately related to
the instruction of students 55%. Administrative activities of the District accounted for 5% of total costs. The
balance of expenses is made up as follows: Pupil Services 11%, Plant Services 9.5%, Community Services
1% and Debt Service 4%.

Financial Highlights

The State requires 4% of total General Fund expenditures, Transfers Out and Uses as a reserve. Cutten School
District will have a reserve balance of $6,381,722 or 71.4% for the beginning of the 2024-2025 school year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The District's budget is prepared in accordance with California law and is based on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Over the course of the year, the District revised its annual operating budget at various times to
reflect the most current financial information available. The major changes included:

. Budget revisions to the adopted budget required after approval of the State budget.
. Budget revisions to reflect changes in staffing.
, Budget revisions to adjust program revenues and expenditures to final awards.

Summarized budget and actual information for the general fund is as follows:

Variance with

Final Budget
Favorable
Original Final Actual Unfavorable
Revenues $ 8202810 $ 8347,735 $§ 8886053 § 538318
Expenditures 9,129,019 9,981,039 8,935,021 (1,046,018)
Net change in fund balance (926,209) (1,633,304) (48,968) 1,584,336

Fund balances, July 1, 2024 9,382,545 9,382,545 9,382,545 -
Fund balances, June 30,2025 $ 8456336 § 7749241 § 9333577 § 1584336

Economic Factors Impacting the District's Future

The latest forecast for the 2024-2025 State Budget is moderately optimistic. District Average Daily
Attendance (ADA) increased slightly for the 2024-2025 school year. The current state educational funding
and the economic outlook will certainly impact the District General Fund; however, the extent of the impact is
unknown at this time. For 2024-2025, the health & welfare cap remained at $18,000 with a pro-rated amount
being paid to covered employees. Also, employees continue to progress on the salary schedules and higher
pension contributions are being required, resulting in increased demand on revenues. The District may need to
be prepared to adjust staffing and future spending.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2025

Financial Condition of General Fund

Despite the uncertain economic situation for the State, the District continues to maintain a solid financial
condition. District reserves remain above required levels. New Building funds have been secured for new
additional buildings at Ridgewood. This strong financial condition is a result of effective district policies and
procedures, good fiscal management by staff, and decision making based on long-term impact.

Summarized individual fund information is as follows:

Increase
2025 2024 (Decrease)
General Fund § 9333577 $ 9382545 % (48,968)
Building Fund 2,379,579 176,080 2,203,499
Non-Major Funds 531,519 406,547 124,972
Total $ 12244675 § 9965172 $ 2,279,503

District Indebtedness

As of June 30, 2025, the District has incurred $13,783,701 of noncurrent obligations as shown in the table
below. This is an increase from June 30, 2024, due to scheduled payments and an increase in the District's

portion of the State-wide pension liability.

2025 2024 Percent

General Obligation Bond $ 6298286 § 3,803,286 66%
CA Energy Commission Loan 113,295 125,221 -10%
Lease Liability 12,282 21,967 -44%,
Net OPEB Liability 012,646 932,631 -2%
Net Pension Liability 5,509,698 5,979,620 -8%
Compensated Absences Payable 937,494 798,003 17%

Total $ 13,783,701 $ 11,660,728 18%




CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2025

District Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2025, the District had net capital assets of $6,465,1 38 as shown in the table below. This is an
increase from June 30, 2024, due to the purchase of equipment and real estate, and the modernization building
projects on both campuses.

Captial Assets: 2025 2024 Percent
Land $ 47,000 $ 47,000 0%
Work-In-Progress 5,272,258 5,156,912 2%
Buildings 2,853,164 2,793,553 2%
Improvement of sites 337383 337,383 0%
Equipment 787,603 780,000 1%
Subtotals 9,297,408 9,114,848 2%
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (2,832,270) (2,721,928) 4%
Capital Assets, net $ 6465138 § 6392920 1%
Lease Assets: 2025 2024 Percent
Equipments $ 44067 $ 44,067 0%
Less: Accumulated Amortization (33,049) (24.236) 36%
Lease Assets, net $ 11,018 % 19,831 36%

Contacting the District's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, students, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the District's finances and to show District accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions regarding this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Superintendent, Becky MacQuarrie, or the Business Manager, Vanesa Carillo-Salas, Cutten School District,
4182 Walnut Drive, Eureka, California 95503.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
Receivables
Stores inventory

Right of Use - Lease Assets, net of accumulated amortization (Note 4)

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation (Note 4)

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows on pensions (Note 6)
Deferred outflows on OPEB (Note 7)

Total Deferred Outflows

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabilities (Note 5):

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred bond premium revenue
Deferred inflows on pensions (Note 6)
Deferred inflows on OPEB (Note 7)

Total Deferred Inflows

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Governme ntal
Activities

$ 12,624,360
626,114

5451

11,018
6,465.138

19,732,081

4577483
52,303

4,629,786

1,013,914
91,732

36,678
13,747,023

14,889,347

388,363
1,951,482
406,695

2,746,540

52,293
3,913,684
2,760,003

$ 6,725,980

10



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Net (Expense)
Revenues and

Changes in
Program Revenues __Net Position
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities
Governmental Activities
[nstruction $ 4,671,896 § 34847 S 1,271,158 § 49 5 (3.365842)
Instruction-related services:
Instructional supervision and
administration 200,988 4,624 19,981 - (176,383)
Instructional library, media and
technology 115,742 - - - (115,742)
School site administration 370,900 - 22302 - (348,598)
Pupil Services:
Home-to-school transportation 127,074 - 240 - (126,834)
Food services 434013 758 462,171 - 28916
All other pupil services 382,995 - 87,987 - (295,008)
General administration:
Centralized data processing 16,982 - - - (16,982)
All other general administration 425,877 - 14,302 - (411,575)
Plant services 803,141 15,055 62,730 - (725,356)
Ancillary services 480 - - (480)
Community services 124,411 - 166,999 - 42,588
Interest on long-term debt 335,664 - - - (335,664)
Other outgo 479,767 - 157,020 - (322,747)
Total governmental activities 3 8489930 $ 55284 § 2264890 S 49 (6,169,707)
General Revenues
Taxes and subventions:
Taxes levied for general purposes 1,340,298
Taxes levied for debt service 147,224
Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 5,230,785
[nterest and investment earnings 337.216
Interagency revenues 2877
Miscellaneous 165.810
Total General Revenues 7224210
Change in Net Position 1,054,503
Net Position, July [, 2024, as originally stated 6,447,501
Change in accounting principle (Note 1Y) (776,024)

Net Position, July [, 2024 - as restated
Net Position, June 30, 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5671477
g 6.725,980

11



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2025

All
General Building Non-Major
Fund Fund Funds Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9834206 $ 2361,783 $§ 428371 § 12,624,360
Accounts receivable 500,719 17,796 107,599 626,114
Stores inventory = - 5451 5451
Total Assets $10334925 $ 2379579 $§ 541421 $ 13255925
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 909616 § - $ 9902 $ 919,518
Unearned revenue 91,732 - - 91,732
Total Liabilities 1,001,348 - 9,902 1,011,250
Fund balances
Nonspendable 2,500 - 5451 7951
Restricted 1,277,701 2,379,579 256,404 3,913,684
Committed - - 182,848 182,848
Assigned 1,654,730 - 86,816 1,741,546
Unassigned 6,398,646 - - 6,398,646
Total Fund Balances 9333577 2,379,579 531,519 12,244,675
Total liabilities and fund balances $10334925 $§ 2379579 $ 541421 § 13255925

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2025

Total fund balances - governmental funds S 12244 675

Amounts reported for asscts and liabilitics for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital assets: In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the
statement of net position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and
accumulated depreciation.

Capital assets at historical cost S 9297408
Accumulated depreciation (2,832,270)
Lease assets relating to governmental activities, at historical costs: 44,067
Accumulated amortization: (33,049)
Net 6,476,156

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, nterest on long-term
debt is not recognized until the period in which it matures and is paid. In the
government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that it is
incurred. (94,396)

Unamortized premums and discounts: In governmental funds, bond premiums are
recognized as revenues in the perod they are received while bond discounts are
recognized as expenditures in the period they are incurred. In the government-wide
statements, premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the debt.

Unamortized portion of bond premiums (388,363)

Long-term liabilities: In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the
statement of net position, all liabilities, ncluding long-term liabilities, are reported.
Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

Net pension Labilities $ 5,509,698
General obligation bonds 6,298,286
Leases payable 12,282
California Clean Energy Commission Loan 113,295
Net OPEB liability 912,646
Compensated absences payable 937,494
(13,783,701)
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to other postemployment benefits
(OPEB): In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating
to OPEB are not reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the
statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to
OPEB are reported.
Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB 52,303
Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (406,695)
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions: In governmental
funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are not
reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of nct
position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pension are reported.
Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions 4,577483
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (1.951,482)
Total net position - governmental activities S 6,725,980

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2025
All
General Building Non-Major
Fund Fund Funds Totals
REVENUES
LCFF sources $ 6419452 $ - $ - $ 6419452
Federal revenue 319,227 = 199,313 518,540
Other state revenues 1,216,792 - 227951 1,444,743
Other local revenues 930,582 25,654 205,462 1,161,698
Total revenues 8,886,053 25,654 632,726 9,544,433
EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries 3,431,292 - - 3,431,292
Classified salaries 1,353,167 - 111,075 1,464,242
Employee benefits 2,387,504 - 71,515 2,459,019
Books and supplies 337404 - 243,680 581,084
Services and other operating
expenditures 830,260 308,866 2,219 1,141,345
Capital outlay 103,701 13,289 - 116,990
Other outgo 479,767 - (1,991) 471,776
Debt service expenditures
Principal 11,926 - 5,000 16,926
Interest - - 148,994 148,994
Total expenditures 8,935,021 322,155 580,492 9,837,668
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (48,968) (296,501) 52,234 (293,235)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from bond proceeds - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
Other sources - - 118,376 118,376
Other uses - - (45,638) (45,638)
Total other financing sources (uses) - 2,500,000 72,738 2,572,738
Net change in fund balances (48,968) 2,203,499 124,972 2,279,503
Fund balances, July 1, 2024 9,382,545 176,080 406,547 9,965,172
Fund balances, June 30, 2025 $ 9333577 $ 2379579 $ 531,519 $ 122244675

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

14



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAIL STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2025

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds S 2279503

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital outlay: In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported
as expenditures m the period when the assets are acqured. In the statement
of activitics, costs of capital assets are allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. The ditference between capital outlay
expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

Expenditures for capital outlay S 182560
Depreciation expense (110,342)
Amortization expense (8,813) 63,405

Debt service: In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are
reported as expenditures. In the government-wide statements, repayments of
long-term debt are reported as reductions of liabilities. Expenditures for
repayment of the principal portion of long-term debt were: 26,111

Debt proceeds: In governmental funds, proceeds from debt are recognized as
Other Financing Sources. In the government-wide statements, proceeds from
debt are reported as increases to liabilities. Amounts recognized in
govemmental funds as proceeds from debt, net of issue premium or discount,
were: (2.500,000)

Unmatured mterest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-
term debt is recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the government-
wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred.
Unmatured interest owing at the end of the period, less matured interest paid
during the period but owing from the prior period was: (182,804)

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB): In governmental funds, OPEB
expenses are recognized when employer contributions are made. In the
statement of activities, OPEB expenses are recognized on the accrual basis.
This year, the difference between OPEB expenses and actual employer
OPEB contributions was: (46,716)

Pensions: In government funds, pension costs are recognized when employer
contributions are made in the statement of activities, pension costs are
recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between accrual-
basis pension costs and actual employer contributions was: 1,510,350

Compensated absences in governmental funds are measured by the amounts
paid during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences
are measured by the amounts earned. The difference between compensated
ahsences paid and compensated absences eamed was: (106,365)

Amortization of debt issue premium or discount: In governmental funds, if debt
is issued at a premium or at a discount, the premium or discount is recognized
as an Other Financing Source or an Other Financing Use in the period it is
incurred. Tn the government-wide statements, the premium or discount is
amortized as interest over the life of the debt. 11,019

Total change in net position - governmental activities S 1,054,503

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policies and procedures
of the Department of Education's "California School Accounting Manual". The accounting policies
of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

. REPORTING ENTITY

The District has no oversight responsibility over any other governmental unit and is not included in
any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements, since the Board of Trustees of the District is elected by the public and has
decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the ability to significantly
influence operations, and the primary accountability for fiscal matters. There are no component
units included within the reporting entity.

. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities report information on all of the non-
fiduciary activities of the District and its component units. The effect of interfund activity, within
the governmental activities, has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component
units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each function or program of the District's governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are
therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. The District does not allocate indirect
expenses to functions in the statement of activities.

Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by a program,
as well as grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are
presented as general revenues of the District, with certain exceptions. The comparison of direct
expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-
financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District. The focus of governmental
fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major
governmental fund is presented in a separate column, and all non-major funds are displayed in
separate columns. Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

16



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements are met. Expenses are recorded when
liabilities are incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements (i.e., balance sheet and statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances) are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue resulting from exchange
transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded under the
accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in
the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, “available”
means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value
in return, include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants
and entitlements is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the
resources are to be used, or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in
which the District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under
the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it
can be recognized.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

17



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

E. FUND ACCOUNTING

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity or retained earnings,
revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled. The District's accounts are organized into major,
non-major, and fiduciary funds as shown below:

Governmental Funds

Major Funds

The General Fund is the chief operating fund for all LEAs. It is used to account for the ordinary
operations of an LEA. All transactions except those accounted for in another fund are accounted for
in this fund. The General Fund as reported includes the Special Reserve Fund for Other than
Capital Outlay Projects and Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits.

The Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects is used to provide for the
accumulation of general fund moneys for general operating purposes other than for capital outlay.
This fund is included within the General Fund for reporting purposes.

The Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits is used to account for future cost of
postemployment benefits. This fund is included within the General Fund for reporting purposes.

The Building Fund is used to account for proceeds from the sale of bonds and may not be used for
any purpose other than those for which the bonds were issued.

Non-Major Funds

The Student Activity Fund accounts for student body activities (ASB) to account for the raising
and expending of money to promote the general welfare, morale and educational experience of the
student body.

The Cafeteria Fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local resources to operate
the food service program.

The County School Facilities Fund is used primarily to account for new school facility
construction, modernization projects, and facility hardship grants, as provided in the Leroy F.
Greene School Facilities Act of 1998 (Education Code Section 17070.10 et seq.).

The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources
for, and the repayment of District bonds, interest, and related costs.

The Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects exists primarily to provide for the
accumulation of general fund moneys for capital outlay purposes (Education Code Section 42840).

18



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

F. FUND ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Fiduciar Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee or custodial capacity for others that
cannot be used to support the LEA’s own programs. The key distinction between trust and
custodial funds is that trust funds are subject to a trust agreement that affects the degree of
management involvement and the length of time that the resources are held. The District does not
have any fiduciary funds at this time.

G. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America for all governmental funds. By State law, the District's Governing
Board must adopt a final budget no later than July 1. A public hearing must be conducted to receive
comments prior to adoption. The District's Governing Board satisfied these requirements.

These budgets are revised by the District's Governing Board and Superintendent during the year to
give consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration was employedas a management control device during the year for all
budgeted funds. The District employs budget control by minor object and by individual
appropriation accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object
account.

H. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase
orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated
when the commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated at June 30.

I. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The District is authorized to maintain cash in banks and revolving funds that are insured up to
$250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). All cash held by the financial
institutions is fully insured or collateralized.

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of its
cash in the Humboldt County Treasury. The County pools these funds with those of other districts
in the County and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost which approximates
market value. Interest earned is deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any investment losses
are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool.

The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code
Section 53648 et seq. The Humboldt County Treasury has no investments in derivatives.

The District does not have a specific policy which relates to interest rate risk.

19



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local
agency bonds, notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered State
warrants or treasury notes; securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances;
commercial paper; certificates of deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan
companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of
beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies; certificates of participation;
obligations with first priority security; and collateralized mortgage obligations.

Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is
estimated based on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at
fair value are stated at cost or amortized cost.

INVENTORY

Inventories are recorded using the consumption method, in that inventory acquisitions are initially
recorded in inventory (asset) accounts, and are charged as expenditures when used. Reported
inventories are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates that these amounts are not
"available for appropriation and expenditure" even though they are a component of net current
assets.

The District has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid items
either when purchased or during the benefiting period. The District has chosen to report the
expenditures when incurred.

. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of
the date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add
to the value of the assets or materially extend the asset's lives are not capitalized, but are expensed
as incurred. Depreciation on all capital assets is computed using a straight-line basis over the
following estimated useful lives as follows:

Assets Years
[nfrastructure 30
Buildings 50
Building improvements 25
Vehicles 2-15
Office Equipment 3-15
Computer Equipment 3-15

20



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

. INTERFUND BALANCES

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans
are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination
upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs at cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund
transactions are treated as transfers.

. UNEARNED REVENUE
Cash received for federal and state special projects and programs is recognized as revenue to the

extent that qualified expenditures have been incurred. Unearned revenue is recorded to the extent
that cash received on specific projects and programs exceeds qualified expenditures.

. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements.
Accumulated sick leave benefits are also recognized as liabilities of the District.

. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The District reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the government-wide
statements. In the governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums, discounts, and issuance
costs are recognized in the period incurred.

RESTRICTED NET POSITION
Restrictions of the ending net position indicate the portions of net position not appropriate for
expenditure or amounts legally segregated for specific future use. These amounts are not available

for appropriation and expenditure at the balance sheet date.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then, unrestricted resources as they are needed.

. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

R. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outtlows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as such will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such,
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

S. PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Cutten
Elementary School District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and
California State Teachers Retirement System (CalSTRS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions
from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by CalPERS and CalSTRS, respectively. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

T. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the District’s OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the District’s OPEB Plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the
District’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
OPEB Plan. For this purpose, the OPEB Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money
market investments and participating interest earning investment contracts that have a maturity at
the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost.

U. FINANCING LEASES

A lease is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial
asset as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.
The long-term liability and corresponding asset for financial leases are recorded in the financial
statements to the extent that the District’s lease capitalization threshold is met, $300,000.
Amortization of related assets using the straight-line method over the life of the contract. The
District implemented a lease capitalization policy in the fiscal year end June 30, 2023, effective
retroactively to July 1, 2021. Prior to the implementation of lease capitalization policy, the District
had accounted for one financing leases as of June 30, 2022. Subsequent to the implementation of
the lease capitalization policy, as of June 30, 2025, the District did not have any new financing
leases that met the threshold.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCTATL STATFMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

V. FUND BALANCE

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, "Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”, the District is required to report
fund balances in the following categories: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and/or
Unassigned.

Nonspendable Fund Balance reflects assets not in spendable form, either because they will never
convert to cash (e.g. prepaid expense) or must remain intact pursuant to legal or contractual
requirements.

Restricted Fund Balance reflects amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance reflects amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority: the
Board of Trustees. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through
resolutions approved by the Board of Trustees.

Assigned Fund Balance reflects amounts intended to be used by the government for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Under the
District’s adopted policy, only the Board of Trustees is authorized to assign amounts for specific
purposes.

Unassigned Fund Balance represents the residual classification for the government's general fund
and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. This includes:

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties

The District will maintain an economic uncertainty reserve of at least 4% of total General
Fund operating expenditures (including other financing). The primary purpose of this reserve
is to avoid the need for service level reductions in the event of an economic downturn
causing revenues to come in lower than budget. This reserve may be increased from time to
time in order to address specific anticipated revenue shortfalls (state actions, etc.)

When expenditures are incurred for purposes of which restricted, committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent
first, followed by committed, assigned and unassigned, respectively.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

W. LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING FORMULA/PROPERTY TAXES

The District's local control funding formula is received from a combination of local property taxes,
state apportionments, and other local sources.

The County of Humboldt is responsible for assessing, collecting and apportioning property taxes.
Taxes are levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property in the county. Secured
property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. Property taxes become
delinquent after December 10 and April 10, respectively.

Secured property taxes are recorded as revenue when apportioned, in the fiscal year of the levy.
The county apportions secured property tax revenue in accordance with the alternative method of
distribution prescribed by Section 4705 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. This
alternate method provides for crediting each applicable fund with its total secured taxes upon
completion of the secured tax roll, approximately October 1 of each year.

The County Auditor reports the amount of the District's allocated property tax revenue to the
California Department of Education. Property taxes are recorded as local control funding formula
(LCFF) sources by the District.

The California Department of Education reduces the District's entitlement by the District's local
property tax revenue. The balance is paid from the State General Fund, and is known as the state
apportionment.

X. SUBSCRIPTION BASED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENTS (SBITA)

A SBITA is defined as a contract that coveys control of the right to use another party’s (a SBITA
vendor’s) IT software, alone or in combination with tangible capital assets (the underlying IT
assets) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.
The long-term liability and corresponding asset for SBITAs are recorded in the financial statements
to the extent that the District’s capitalization threshold is met, $300,000. Amortization of related
assets using the straight-line method over the life of the contract. As of June 30, 2025, the District
did not have any subscription based information technology agreements that met the threshold.

Y. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE - GASB 101, COMPENSATED ABSENCES

This Statement requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that
has not been used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through
noncash means. A liability should be recognized for leave that has not been used if (a) the leave is
attributable to services already rendered, (b) the leave accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely
than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through noncash means. Leave
is attributable to services already rendered when an employee has performed the services required
to earn the leave. Leave that accumulates is carried forward from the reporting period in which it is
earned to a future reporting period during which it may be used for time off or otherwise paid or
settled. In estimating the leave that is more likely than not to be used or otherwise paid or settled, a
government should consider relevant factors such as employment policies related to compensated
absences and historical information about the use or payment of compensated absences. However,
leave that is more likely than not to be settled through conversion to defined benefit
postemployment benefits should not be included in a liability for compensated absences.

24



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

Y. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE — GASB 101, COMPENSATED ABSENCES
(CONTINUED)

This Statement requircs that a liability for certain types of compensated absences—including
parental leave, military leave, and jury duty leave—not be recognized until the leave commences.
This Statement also requires that a liability for specific types of compensated absences not be
recognized until the leave is used.

This Statement also establishes guidance for measuring a liability for leave that has not been used,
generally using an employee’s pay ratc as of the date of the financial statements. A liability for
leave that has been used but not yet paid or settled should be measured at the amount of the cash
payment or noncash settlement (o be made. Certain salary-related payments that are directly and
incrementally associated with payments for leave also should be included in the measurement of
the liabilities.

With respect to financial statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement
focus, this Statement requires that expenditures be recognized for the amount that normally would
be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. As a result, the sick leave will be
reported as a governmental activity within the compensated absences in the basic financial
statements causing the June 30, 2024 balance to be restated as follows:

Net position, previously reported, June 30, 2024 $6,447,501
Change in accounting principle (Note 1Y) (776,024)
Net position, as restated, June 30, 2024 $5,671,477

25



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

2.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2025 consist of the following:

Governmental

Funds
Cash in County Treasury $ 12,608,094
Cash on hand and in banks 13,766
Cash in revolving fund 2,500
Totals $ 12,624,360

. Cash on Hand and in Banks

Cash on hand and in banks consists of all cash held by the District and all cash maintained in
commercial bank accounts owned by the District. Cash balances held in banks are insured up to
$250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation.

. Cash in Revolving Fund

Cash in revolving fund consists of all cash maintained in commercial bank accounts that are used
as revolving funds.

. Interest Rate Risk

California Government Code Section 53601 limits the District’s investments to maturities of five
years. The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. All of the District’s investments are held in the county treasury.

. Cash in County Treasury

County pool investments consist of District cash held by the Humboldt County Treasury that is
invested in the county investment pool. The fair value of the District's investment in the pool is
reported in the financial statements at amounts that are based upon the District's pro-rata share of
the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized
cost of that portfolio). The weighted average maturity of the pool is 626 days. The pool is rated
AAA by Standard and Poor’s.

26



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between funds of the District are recorded as interfund transfers. The unpaid balances at
year-end, as a result of such transactions, are shown as due to and due from other funds.

Interfund Receivables/Pavables

The were no interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2025.

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers consist of operating transfers from funds receiving resources to funds through which
the resources are to be expended. There were no interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2025.

27



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows:

Additions Deductions
Balance and and Balance
July 1, 2024 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2025
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 47,000 $ - $ - $ 47,000
Work in progress 5,156,912 115,346 - 5272258
5203912 115,346 - 5,319,258
Depreciable assets:
Site improvements 337,383 - - 337,383
Building 2,793,553 59,611 - 2,853,164
Equipment 780,000 7,603 - 787,603
3,910,936 67214 - 3,978,150
Totals, at cost 9,114,848 182,560 - 9,297,408
Accumulated depreciation:
Site improvements (283,187) - - (283,187)
Building (1,875,969) (60,332) - (1,936,301)
Equipment (562.,772) (50,010) - (612,782)
(2,721,928) (110,342) - (2.832.270)
Depreciable assets, net 1,189.008 (43,128) - 1,145,880
Capital assets, net $ 6392920 $ 72218 $ - $ 6,465,138
Lease Assets:
Equipments $ 44,067 S - $ - $ 44,067
Total lease assets being amortized 44,067 - - 44,067
Accumulated amortization for
Equipments (24.236) (8,813) ~ (33,049)
Total accumulated amortization (24.236) (8,813) = (33,049
Total lease assets being amortized, net 19,831 (8,813) - 11,018
Governmental activities capital assets,net §  6,412.751 $ 63,405 $ - $ 6476156

Depreciation and amortization were allocated to governmental activity functions as follows:

Instruction $ 7,633
Instructional Supervision and Administration 2,041
Instructional Library, Media and Technology 35,543
Food Services 1,950
All Other Pupil Services 819
Community Services 6,062
All Other General Administration 12,451
Plant Services 42943

$ 110342

28



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

General Obligation Bonds

In November 2018, the voters of the District approved a general obligation bond in the amount of up to
$4,000,000 to modernize and improve the classrooms and school facilities of the District. The District
issued the first series, Series A, of these bonds in January 2019 in the amount of $2,000,000 with
interest rates from 2.0 percent to 5.0 percent. The bond included a premium of $132,326.

The District issued the second and final series, Series B, of these bonds in January 2020 in the amount
of $1,998,286 with interest rates from 2.68 percent to 4.0 percent. The bond included a premium of
$198,340.

In November 2024, the voters within the District approved Measure K, a ballot measure authorizing the
District to issue up to $5,000,000 in general obligation bonds. The bond proceeds are designated for
modermizing school facilities. On April 10, 2025, the District issued the first series, Series A, of these
bonds in the amount of $2,500,000 with interest rates from 4.00 percent to 5.25 percent. The bond
included a premium of $118,376.

The outstanding general obligation bonded debt of the District as of June 30, 2025 is:

Maturity Interest Balance Issued/ Balance
Issue Date Dale Rate Original Issue June 30, 2024 Accretion Redeemed June 30, 2025
1/29/2019 08/01/48  2.00% -5.00% S 2,000,000 S 1,860,000 S - S 5000 % 1,855,000
2/6/2020 08/01/50  2.68% - 4.00% 1,998,286 1,943,286 - - 1,943,286
4/10/2025 08/01/54  4.00% - 5.25% 2.500,000 - 2,500,000 - 2.500.000
Total $ 6498286 §$ 3803286 S 2500000 $ 5000 § 6,298,286

The annual requirements to amortize the 2018 Series A, 2018 Series B, and 2024 Series A general
obligation bonds payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2025, are as follows:

Year Ending Interest to
June 30 Principal Maturity Total
2026 $ 15,000 $ 250473 $ 265473
2027 110,000 271,894 381.894
2028 95,000 267,069 362,069
2029 35,000 263,969 298,969
2030 40,000 262,294 302,294
2031-2035 342,835 1,310,099 1,652,934
2036-2040 669.559 1,316,159 1,985,718
2041-2045 1,310,892 1,068,395 2,379,287
2046-2050 2,580,000 623,675 3,203,675
2051-2055 1,100,000 154,875 1,254,875
Total $ 6,298,286 S 5,788,902 $ 12,087,188




CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

California Energy Commission Loan

The District entered into a zero-interest loan from the California Encrgy Commission to fund a solar
energy project at Ridgewood School in 2020/21. The total loan proceeds were $160,999. The loan is
payable in semi-annual installments of $5,963, with a projected maturity date of June 2035. The annual
requirements to amortize the loan outstanding as of June 30, 2025, are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Total

2026 $ 11926

2027 11,926

2028 11,926

2029 11,926

2030 11,926
2031-2035 53,665
Total Outstanding $ 113,295

Leases
For the year ended June 30, 2025 the District had the following lease obligations:

The District entered into a five-year lease agreement in 2021/22 for computer and printer equipment.
This lease is not renewable and the District will not acquire the equipment at the end of the five years.
At the time of the initial measurement, there was no interest rate specified in the original lease
agreement. The District has used an estimated interest rate for borrowing of 6.0%, which was used to
discount the annual lease payments to recognize the intangible right to use of this asset and the lease
liability as of the inception of the lease. Per the agreement, monthly lease payments may be adjusted
based on usage of the equipment in excess of originally contracted amounts. Rent expense for this lease
was $10,223 for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Annual requirements to amortize lease obligations and related interest are as follows:

Year
Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2026 $ 9752 % 472 $ 10224
2027 2,530 25 2,555
Total § 12282 § 497 § 12,779

30



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THF. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, is shown below:

Amounts

Balance Balance Due Within

July 1, 2024 Additions Deductions June 30, 2025 One Year
General Obligation Bond $ 380328 § 2500000 S 5000 $ 6298286 S 15,000
CA Energy Commission Loan 125,221 - 11,926 113,295 11.926
Lease Liability 21,467 - 9,185 12,282 9,752

Net OPEB Liability 932,631 - 19,985 912,646 -

Net Pension Liability 5.979,620 - 469,922 5.509,698 -

Compensated Absences Payable* 798,003 139,491 - 937494 -
Total long term obligation S 11660228 § 2639491 § 516018 § 13,783,701 §$ 36,678

* - Prior period restated balance of $776,024 due to change in accounting principle, see Note 1Y.

The accrued vacation and sick leave (compensated absences), pension, and other postemployment
benefits will be paid by the fund for which the employee works. Payments on the General Obligation
Bonds are made from the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. Payments on the Lease Liability and
California Clean Energy Commission Loan are made from the General Fund.

31



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by
agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers'
Retirement System (STRS), and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees'
Retirement System (CalPERS).

Plan Description

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system
defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public
Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the CalPERS annual
financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Headquarters, 400 Q Street, Sacramento, California
95811.

State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS)

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer, public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS. The
plan provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit
provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers'
Retirement Law. STRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS annual financial report may be
obtained from the STRS Headquarters, 100 Waterfront Place, West Sacramento, California 95605.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2025, are summarized as follows:

CalPERS CalSTRS

Prior to On or after Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 January [, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life  monthly for lite  monthly for life  monthly for life
Retirement age 55 62 60 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 8% 10.25% 10.21%
Required employer contribution rates 27.05% 27.05% 19.10% 19.10%

32



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAT. STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)
Contributions
CalPERS

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of
employees.

STRS

Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and
Governor and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement Law. Contribution rates are expressed as a level
percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the contributions reported as deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan were as follows:

CalPERS STRS Total
Contributions - employer 3 386,170 $ 617919 § 1,004,089
On behalf contributions - state - 289,054 289,054
Total $ 386,170 § 906973 $ 1293,143

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expenses and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

As of June 30, 2025, the District’s reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability of the Plans’ of:

Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability

CalPERS $ 2,389,710
STRS 3,119,988
Total Net Pension Liability $ 5,509,698




CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)

The District’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2024, and the
total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023 rolled forward to June 30, 2024 using standard update
procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of
all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2023 and 2024 was as follows:

Measurement
Dates Fiscal Year CalPERS STRS
June 30, 2023 2023-24 0.00605% 0.00498%
June 30, 2024 2024-25 0.00669% 0.00465%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00064% -0.00033%

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the District recognized pension expense of $1,510,350. At June 30,
2025, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

CalPERS STRS Total
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of OQutflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources

Pension contributions subsequent

to measurement date § 386170 3 - $ 906973 $
Difference between proportionate

share of aggregate employer

contributions and actual
contributions for 2023-24 50,228 335,924 39,590 356,330 89,818 692,254

Changes of Assumptions 52,821 - 13,657 213,084 66,478 213,084

i

$ 1293143 § =

Differences between Expected

and Actual Experience 200,342 17,103 352911 136,436 553,253 153,539
Change in employer's proportion

and differences between the

employer’s contributions and the

employer’s proportionate share of

contributions 861,112 98,120 1,620,853 781,896 2481965 880,016

Net differences between projected
and actual investment earnings on
pension plan nvestments 92,826 - - 12,589 92,826 12,589

Total $ 1,643499 $ 451,047 § 2933984 § 1500335 § 4577483 § 1951482

34



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2026. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Total Deferred

Outflows/

Year Ended (Inflows) of

June 30 CalPERS STRS Resources
2026 $ 201477 % 74520 § 275,997
2027 201,477 74,520 275,997
2028 201,477 74,520 275,997
2029 183,186 74,520 257,706
2030 18,565 74,520 93,085
Thereafter - 154,076 154,076
Total $ 806,182 § 526,676  $ 1,332,858

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuations were determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

CalPERS STRS

Valuation Date June 30, 2023 June 30, 2023
Measurement Date June 30, 2024 June 30, 2024
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Entry-Age Normal Cost
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 6.90% 7.10%

Inflation 2.30% 2.75%

Payroll Growth Rate 2.80% 3.25%

Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service ~ Varies by Entry Age and Service

Investment Rate of Return "’ 6.80% 7.10%

Mortality Derived using CalPERS' Derived using STRS'

Membership Data for all Funds Membership Data for all Funds

i . ) . L .
@) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

35



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The rates incorporate
Generational Mortality to capture ongoing morality improvement using 80% of Scale MP 2020
published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details, please refer to the 2021 experience study report
that can be found on the CalPERS website.

STRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which is based off generational mortality tables that
reflect expected future improvements in mortality and includes a base table and a projection table. The
base mortality tables are CalSTRS custom tables derived to best fit the patterns of mortality among our
members. The projection table reflects the expected annual reduction in mortality rates at each age. The
current mortality assumption uses a base year of 2023, and projected improvement is based on the MP—
2021 Ultimate Projection Scale.

Discount Rate
CalPERS

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Plan was 6.90%. These discount
rates are equal to the long-term expected rate of return of the respective plan assets and are net of
investment expense but not reduced for administrative expenses.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account 20-year market return
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are
estimated and, combined with risk estimates, are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the
long term. The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected
portfolio return.

The expected real rates of return by asset class are on the following table:

CalPERS
Assumed
Asset Real
Asset Class Allocation Return "
Global Equity - Cap-weighted 30.0% 4.54%
Global Equity Non-Cap-weighted 12.0% 3.84%
Private Equity 13.0% 7.28%
Treasury 5.0% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.0% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10.0% 1.56%
High Yield 5.0% 2.27%
Emerging Market Debt 5.0% 2.48%
Private Debt 5.0% 3.57%
Real Assets 15.0% 3.21%
Leverage -5.0% -0.59%
100.0%

“ An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period.

©r g igures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Management study.

36



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCTAT, STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)
Discount Ratc
STRS

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10%, which was unchanged from
prior fiscal year. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members and employers are made at statutory contribution rates in accordance
with the rate increases actuarially determined. Projected inflows from investment earnings were
calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return of 7.10% and assume that
contributions, benefit payments and administrative expenses occur midyear. Based on those
assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The long-term investment rate of return assumption was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return are developed for each major asset
class/strategy. Expected real rates of return are net of our 2.75% inflation assumption and are derived
from best-estimate ranges of 20- to 30-year geometrically linked expected returns. These best-estimate
ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS investment staff and
investment consultants as inputs to the process.

The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the board in January 2024 in
conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each current and future valuation, STRS’
independent consulting actuary (Milliman) reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on
the most current capital market assumptions. The assumed asset allocation and best estimates of the
expected rates of return for each major asset class/strategy as of June 30, 2024, are summarized in the
following table:

STRS
Long-Term
Assumed Expected
Asset Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return
Public Equity 38.0% 5.25%
Real Estate 15.0% 4.05%
Private Equity 14.0% 6.75%
Fixed Income 14.0% 2.45%
Risk Mitigating Strategies 10.0% 2.25%
Inflation Sensitive 7.0% 3.65%
Cash/Liquidity 2.0% 0.05%
Total 100%

“20- to 30-year geometric average.
b
 Real rates of return are net of assumed 2.75%

37



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage point lower
or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

CalPERS

Discount Rate - 1%  Current Discount  Discount Rate + 1%

(5.90%) Rate (6.90%) (7.90%)
Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 3549934 S 2389710 § 1,431,272

STRS

Discount Rate - 1%  Current Discount  Discount Rate + 1%

(6.10%) Rate (7.10%) (8.10%)
Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 5549437 § 3,119988 § 1,091,297

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued CalPERS and STRS comprehensive annual financial reports available on the CalPERS’ and

STRS’ websites.

Pavable to the Pension Plan

As of June 30, 2025, the District had no outstanding required contributions to the pension plans.

38



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAT. STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
General Information about the OPED IMlan

Plan description: The District has established the Cutten School District Retiree Healthcare Plan (HC
Plan), a single-employer plan. The HC Plan provides medical healthcare benefits up to age 65 to
certificated and classified employees and their dependents who retire directly from the District, at a
minimum age of 60, with a minimum of 15 years of service. The benefit amount is subject to the
District's active cap on employee healthcare benefits, except there is no cap for employees hired before
June 30, 1998. The HC Plan has not established or accumulated any assets in a trust. A separate
financial report is not prepared for the HC Plan.

Benefits Provided: The Plan provides medical benefits to eligible retirees as follows:

Certificated Classified
Benefit types provided Medical only Medical only
Duration of Benefits To age 65 To age 65
Required Service 15 years 15 years
Minimum Age 60 60
Dependent Coverage Yes Yes
District Contribution % 100% 100%
District Cap Active cap* Active cap*

*Those hired prior to June 10, 1998 will not be subject to a cap.
The Plan has no assets and does not issue financial statements.

Employees covered by benefit terms. As of the June 30, 2024 valuation, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments I

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -

Active employees 40
Total 41

Contributions: The HC Plan and its contribution requirements are established by agreements with the
applicable employee bargaining units and may be amended by agreements between the District and the
bargaining units. The annual contribution is based on the current insurance premiums due for the
participating retirees. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, the District's cash contributions were
$17,748, and there was no estimated implied subsidy, resulting in total payments of $17,748. No trust
has been created for the purpose of prefunding obligations for past services.

For the fiscal year 2024-25, the District contributed $17,748 to the Plan, all of which was used for
current premiums.

39



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Net OPEB Liability

The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2025, and the total OPEB liability used
to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2024.

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2024 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Salary Increases
Investment rate of return
Inflation
Healthcare cost trend rates
Mortality

Certificated

Classified

2.75% per year

5.20% per year net of expenses based on the Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index
2.50% per year

4.00% per year

2020 CalSTRS Mortality
2021 CalPERS Mortality for Miscellaneous and Schools Employees

The mortality assumptions are based on the 2020 CalSTRS Mortality table for certificated employees
and the 2021 CalPERS Active and Retiree Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees for classified
employees. The retirement assumptions are based on the 2020 CalSTRS Retirement Rates table created
by CalSTRS and the 2021 CalPERS Retirement Rates for School Employees tables created by

CalPERS.
Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB  Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (@) - (b)
Balances at June 30, 2024 Measurement Date $ 932631 % - $ 932,631
Changes for the year:
Service cost 61,530 - 61,530
Interest 37513 - 37,513
Contributions - employer - 17,748 (17,748)
Changes of assumptions (101,280) - (101,280)
Benefit payments (17,748) (17,748) -
Net changes (19,985) - (19,985)
Balances at June 30, 2025 Measurement Date $ 912,646 $ - $ 912,646

40



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates. The
following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.20
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.20 percent) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(4.20%) (5.20%) (6.20%)
Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 993392 § 912646 § 850,308

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following
presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (3.0 percent)
or 1-percentage-point higher (5.0 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
Net OPEB hability (asset) $ 798327 § 912,646 § 1,037,349

OPERB plan fiduciary net position. The plan has no assets.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the District recognized OPEB expense of ($46,716). At June 30,
2025, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 36,058 $ 177,144
Changes of assumptions 16,245 229,551
Total $ 52303 § 406,695

The District will recognize contributions made subsequent to the measurement date in the next fiscal
year.

41



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Below is the schedule of the total deferred outflows and inflows amortized.

Total Deferred Total Deferred

Year Ended  Outflows of Inflows of

June 30 Resources Resources
2026 $ 5656 % 40,235
2027 5,656 40,235
2028 5,656 40,235
2029 5,656 40,235
2030 5,656 40,235
Thereafter 24023 205,520
Total $ 52303 § 406,695

Payable to the OPEB Plan

At June 30, 2025, the District had no outstanding amount of contributions to the OPEB plan required

for the year ended June 30, 2025.

42



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCTAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

FUND BALANCES

The District reports fund balances in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 54. All fund balance categories are reported in the aggregate on the face of the balance
sheet. All components of those fund balances and specific purposes are identified as follows:

Nonspendable:
Revolving cash
Stores Inventory

Total Nonspendable

Restricted for:
Expanded Learning Opportunities Program
Educator Effectiveness
Lottery: [nstructional Materials
Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant
Child Nutrition: Kitchen Infrastructure
and Training Funds - 2022 KIT Funds
Special Ed: Learning Recovery Support
Accountability Act (Prop 28)
Classified School Employee Professional Development Block Grant
State School Facilities Projects
Student Activity Funds
Child Nutrition: School Programs
Child Nutrition: School Food Best Practices Apportionment
Other Restricted State
Other Restricted Local
Total Restricted

Committed:
Other Commitments
Total Committed

Assigned to:
Other Assignments
Total Assigned
Unassigned:
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties
Unassigned/Unappropriated
Total Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

All
General Building  Non-Major

Fund Fund Funds Totals
$ 2,500 S B S - s 2,500
- - 5451 5451
2,500 - 5451 7951
432,879 - = 432,879
79,943 - = 79,943
304,797 - - 304,797
321,553 E - 321,553
27826 - - 27.826
187 - - 187
91,141 B - 91,141
3,094 - - 3,094
- - 1,677 1,677
& - 13,766 13,766
- - 231,283 231,283
= = 9,678 9,678
4,805 - = 4,805
11,476 2379,579 - 2,391,055
1.277,701 2,379,579 256,404 3.913,684
- - 182,848 182,848
- - 182,848 182,848
1,654,730 - 86,816 1,741.546
1,654,730 - 86,816 1,741,546
4,469,032 - - 4,469,032
1,929,614 - 2 1,929,614
6,398,646 - - 6.398,646
$ 9333577 S 2379579 _§ 531519 S 12244675




CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

10.

11.

JOINT VENTURES

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, and natural disasters. The District manages those risks of loss through participation in public
entity risk pools. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year.
For each of the past three years settlements did not exceed insurance coverage.

The District participates in two joint ventures under a Joint Powers” Agreement (JPA) with the North
Coast Schools Insurance Group and North Coast Schools Medical Insurance Group. Each member
district pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested. The District is covered
under workers' compensation, liability, medical, vision, and dental insurance.

The relationship between District and the JPAs are such that the JPAs are not a component unit of the
District for financial reporting purposes.

The most recently available audited, condensed financial information for the JPAs is as follows:

NCSIG NCSMIG

6/30/2024* 6/30/2024*
Total assets $ 6159671 $ 14,064,485
Total liabilities 1,423,008 4,129,958
Net position $ 4736663 $ 9934527
Total revenues $ 9410,751 $ 39,059,326
Total expenses 9,718,341 37,763,300
Change in net position $ (307,590) $ 1,296,026

* Most recent information available

Audited financial statements for the JPAs are prepared annually and can be obtained from management
of the individual JPAs.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and
audit by the grantor agencies. If the review or audit discloses exceptions, the District may incur a
liability to grantor agencies.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The District’s management evaluated its June 30, 2025 financial statements for subsequent events
through December 12, 2025, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Management

is not aware of any subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements.

44



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

REVENUES
LCFF sources
Federal revenue
Other state revenues
Other local revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Services and other operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Other outgo
Debt service

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, July 1, 2024
Fund balances, June 30, 2025

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 6399651 $ 6440,181 $§ 6419452 § (20,729)
321,462 321,625 319,227 (2,398)
1,109,508 1,175,608 1,216,792 41,184
372,189 410,321 930,582 520,261
8.202,810 8,347,735 8,886,053 538,318
3,539,407 3,478,576 3,431,292 47284
1,326,490 1,397,256 1,353,167 44,089
2,414,894 2447852 2,387,504 60,348
449258 489,041 337404 151,637
763,939 981,737 830,260 151,477
134,296 685,064 103,701 581,363
488,809 489,587 479,767 9,820

11,926 11,926 11,926 -
9,129,019 9,981,039 8,935,021 1,046,018
(926,209) (1,633,304) (48,968) 1,584,336
(926,209) (1,633,304) (48,968) 1,584,336

9,382,545 9,382,545 9,382,545 -
$ 8456336 $§ 7749241 § 9333577 § 1,584,336

45



"Q1-L10T W pajuawaidun sem ¢/ gSyD st pajuasaid a1e s1eak 3o AuQ 4

%10F %8 0b Yab 6T %L 62 %0°6T %6°0C %I11T %10z To1ked dakojdiua-pararoo
Jo 93eyuaoiad e se Aqen g J0O 10U S,1omsi(]
171686 §  9TL'6T0°E §  60S0SE'E §  €80°THEE §  9ITHO6T $  TIGEITY §  Lyv'eTv'y §  T60°SHSY § ToiAed dokojdura-pataao)
%00 %0°0 %0°0 %00 %00 %00 %00 %0°0 Amqen G440 1810
o3 Jo omﬂ:oouon_ v Se ﬂOEwon_ U \Cm_os_um ueld
TELIOI'T §  L8OPETT §  SL9S86 § +thI€66 S S65Er8 $§  9¢8'LS8  § 1€9T€E6 $ H9TI6  § (q) - (&) 3mpuo - Hiqer] gHJO 13U S SIA
- $ - $ - $ - $ £ $ = $ = $ 2 $ (q) Burpua - vonisod 3au Areronpy ueld
- - - B - - B - Suiuui3aq - uonisod jau Areronpy uefd
= - - - - - - - uonisod 3au Axenpy uerd ul I3ueyd jaN
- - - - - - - - asuadxa sAneLSILILPY
(LOLFOT) (S68°801) (LLT°06) (1L6°68) (69L°18) (01£°59) (L0T'T) 8YLLT) siuswked yyousg
& S = = - - - - QUUOJUT JUSUIISAAUT 1N
LOLYOT S So8'801  $  LLI06  $ 1,668 $ 69L18 $ 0I€S9 $§ L0TT€  $ SWLLT  $ loAojdus - suonngriuo)
uonisod jau Axeronpg ueq
TEL961'L § LBYVETT §  SLYS86 §  PhIC66 § S6SER8  $ 9€8°LS8 $ 1€9TE6 $ 99TI6 () urpus - Anpqen 9A4O B30
LSO'S8I'] TELY6I'] L8YVET | SL9'S86 r1°€66 $65° P8 9€8°L68 1€9°TE6 Supuurdaq - ANNqel gAdO B0l
SLYTI SS6°LE (C1o'6r) 69%°L (6¥S'611) 17THl S6LYL (586'61) Lmqen gadoO 8103 Ul 33ueyd JaN
(LOL+01) (S68°801) (LLT06) (1L6'68) (69L°18) (01€59) (L0T'TE) (8¥L'LT) siuswiAed yjausg
= $8S°T¢E (9pS°SL) 9¢T'e (£80°88) (LT8'L) (9¢6'7T) (08T°101) suondumsse jo saguey)
- - (S127°900) = (6¥£9L) = - = souattadxa [enmoe
pue pajoadxa Usam1aq SO
- - - - - - 0L6' 1Y - $25507]/(Suren) aousuadxy
€LEHY 9LT 1 Pe0'et 964'1T 8€°1T 8TL6T S8L1E €IS'LE 1s0103U]
600CL § 686CL § TE86L § 808TL 0§ WLTSL 0§ 0SYLS 0§ €8IS §  0€S19 § 1509 JDIAJOG
Ammqen gado B0
LIO0E/9  8IOT/0E/9  0TOZ/06/9  ITOT/0E/9  TTOT/0§/9  ETOT/IE/9  BTOT/0E/9  STOZ/0E/9 AADC 1UAUAANSDI PN
+810C *6102 *070T *120T *CT0T *€£T0T *b70T *STOT ¢ 0€ dunp 3uipuy Jed |eIsy
ST0T ‘0€ ANNT

SOILVY GALVTIY ANV ALITIVIT 4440 LAN
S(LOTYLSIA HL NI SEONVHD 40 HTNAAHOS

LORILSIA TOOHDS AMVINANWATA NALLND



Ly

LES'TSS S
%955'€8

SoPCTC01

6RS'ILS $
%908

%L99C1

‘potaad juatuainseaiu

aty Suunp a104odws oy Aq aprwt suonnLILO (AYNqEN popUnjun Io) punj opis [ruomppe Aue se j|ow se uoijisod 1ou Aretanpy jo uorpodord sue[J o) U0 pastq S SUOHNALOUOD djeAaidar

jo areys ajeuontodosd suv ay | poriad Juswamseaw oy Surmp Jakodwa sy Aq 9pRW SUCHNAIIILOD [TINOE Y] YdEW Jou A_wW suounquiuona sedaiide jo aieys meuoiiodosd suel] ay |
‘paseq aae urjd uoisuad e 0} suOINQLIUOD YaIyM uo jjoiked oy si joiArd po1oao))
1a0das Kienyor ay) jo ajep juswamseat sy §1 sy L aqeaydde st g9 gS YD Yy 10§ spouad udwamseaws 1oy Ajuo paanbal s uorULIOJUL [RXI0ISTH

(t)
@
(n

ELLSSS  §  €€L'o6b  § 9SO'S9y S STHIRE  § pOCTZE  § 6SIURT 8 BTOSET  § PLEGOL  § |, SUoNNQuuod akojda spedaidde jo areys ajeuonsodoly

%018 %IT'LY %8 1L 29S°TL %66°0L %969 %P0 0L %0 L

FARXIN %90°6L 88651 6P 9L1 200LF61 %S00 YLT061 YoLT'SLL

(1osse) Auprqey uoisuad [e10)
ays jo afruaniad e se uasod jau Ktetonpi) ueyJ
[l0aAed pa1aa0d Jo agruaniad e sT

(1osse) Aupqen vorsuad 19u oy Jo aryS vyruoniodord

€OSIS0E §  €19T66T §  €IS'STOT S SOSESHT  § POYGLRT 8 9SSVETT $ PSLGLE'L S PIO066TL S LOTROST § 169'€98°1  § (o 103Ard paI2A0)
SBOGIIE  §  RTRO6L'E $  LEISOSE §  99891TT §  LES'C09Y §  1€L9E6'C  § ISEYSKE  § 080°€86'C  §  TRLYSS'E §  €rH99TE  § (asse) Aupquy uorsuad you ayy Jo aeys djeuoiodord
Y86F00°0 %R6F00°0 %b0S00'0 YaL8Y00 0 Y%SLE000 UIELO00 %0TH00 %I E00°0 %OFF00°0 %ERY000 (1asse) Anpqm vorsuad 15u ag jo doniodold
o PI0T w €207 o 130T o 1207 m 0702 o 6107 o 8107 oy L10Z w910z o S10T SULS
‘0¢ aunp ‘0g aung ‘0¢ dunp ‘0¢ aunp ‘0¢ aunp ‘0¢ dunp ‘0¢ aung ‘¢ Aunp ‘0t sunp ‘o€ ounp
GURTISE S RCCSYT 8 ISLE0T § VSRl 5 6966l 8 66E0EL § 66EL0I & LR §  69'sY $ 0009 § (g SHONNQuIUOD Jakojdiua opn3aiBie jo ateys ajouoisodoly
W6TTL %9669 %IL 69 %L608 %00°0L %50°0L %$8°0L ULRIL %06'€L %EY 6L (10sse) Aniqey uoisuod [eio)
a1 Jo afejuaaiad e se vomsod Jau Lieranpiy uey g
WIL'ESI %06°61C %19°81C %L89S %19°691 %bL 6TT %060°SET %SE 6T %6676 %00°PE1 llo1ked 219403 jo aFeudalod e se

(19sse) Aupqen uoisuad 1ou ai Jo aieys ajeuoiiodord

OIR00ET  §  SPES66 § 9ECE08 S €LTSEY  § PRSP S 6ITI99 § EIVPeS  § SPO'E9S  § RTLY S 1ILY0S S (o 0iked pasaso)
OIL'6SET  §  TOL'8RIT §  9£6'966'1  §  0£5966  $  890°H091  §  LLOBIST §  LIKLEEST $ SULRLET S 6LSTI6 S 1006L9 (1osse) Anpqen uorsuad 1ou ap jo dreys dyeuotiiodoly
%50900°0 %S0900°0 2%0R$00°0 %06+00°0 Y%E£TS00°0 %12500°0 %FCS00°0 %b6r00°0 %COr00°0 %19400°0 (assu) Amqen uorsuad jaur ay) jo uorodod g
o P o £20T o 20T o 1702 0 0207 o 6102 o 8102 o L10T m 9107 o S10T SUAdIED
‘0g aunp ‘0g aunp ‘0¢ aunp ‘0€ aunp ‘0g aung ‘0g ounp ‘0g aunp ‘0€ ounp ‘0¢ ounr ‘0g aunp

S70T ‘0€ ANNL AAANT IVIA TVOSIA AHL Y04
ALI'TIAVIT NOISNAd LIN 40 FdVHS HLVNOILLIOJdOUd 40 A TNAAHIS

LOIYLSIA TOOHOS AYVININATA NALLAD



B4

(SPUN} OPIS,, SE 0] PaLIDIAL suonediqo 1akojdwd 1ey) pauuu)dp sey SYH d|
PUNY 3PIS J1AY) SPIEMO} SUOHNGLIILOD [PUOIIPPE SYBIWL 0) 350010 Kew s1940jdira SLI0S “I9AIMO} "suolngIu0d paxmbal Ajjemoenuos au o] [enba suounguIuod ayew o} pawnsse ate siafodwg

B “suolnguuan pa

hai

"paseq are ugd uoisuad e o) suonNINUO Yarym uo floiked ay) € [oiked paraa0)
‘sanqQer ogtdads pasueuy ba,ﬂmaum PRIPISUND JOU Ik AL ‘Y9 gSVYD JO 071 YdesSered w paqizosap sasUISUINDOIO oY) 0] WIOJUOD 10U Op

NIATIU0D AP PAdIXD surld yons 10§ suonnquiuos sniojdursy “Aupqey popunjun Jidyy o

-ojqrandde s 89 gS VD YoM 10§ sporiod JUdWAIMSEIW 10} AJU0 poNnbdI S LOHBULIOJUL [BAIOISLH (|

%001 61 %001°61 %001°61 %026'91 %0S1'91 %001°L1 %08C91 %0EY 1 %085 'T1 0EL 0T py l10xked paoaoa jo oFeoarad e st suonnquuo)
ESI0E  §  €19T66T §  €ISSTOT  § S0S'ES6T & W09'6LRT  § 9SSOETT $§  PSL6LE'T $ FIO066T $  L9TRIST §  169'F9%1 § (i 1034Rd P210A0T)
(T80°6E)  § (86071 8 (SpRCTD)  § 0L §  098%8¢ § (SLL09) ¢ (meoesl 8 (enleh) 8§ (686TS) 8 (wIeg) § (s590x2) £ouataijop uonnqLUO)
(616'L19) (TLs'Tes) (R19°18S) (£00°66) (96T'9TH) (0oz'zyt) (TVELLE) (T98'0EE) (LT08RT) (Terege) (@ a0 pannbar
Ajen32RUOD U] 0] UDITE[OL UT SUOHNGLIUOY)
LERTRS & O8STILS  §  ELLSSS  §  EEL66Y  § 95069y § STHIRE  §  WOETCE  §  GSIURT  § 8IUSET S bLe'66l  $ (o TOUNQIUOd parnbal Aremariuo)
m STYTOT (| VTETOT (€TI0, 110, 020, 026107 61-8107  (,81-LIOZ  (,L1-910T  (,91-S10T SU.LS
JB3A [BISIY I8IX [BISIY JuaA (WISl IB3A 8IS JRAA WISIY JBIA [8IS1) Jraj [eIsyy ELE) WLRTI K JB3A [BIS1Y JBDX [BISL]
%080°LT %089°9¢ %0LE'ST %016'TC %00L 02 %I1TL61 %9081 %IESSI %888°€1 %L¥8 11 1y [1024ed pa1oA02 yo dFeudalad B st suonnguuo)
0Ig00E1 & SPES66 § 9ETT08 $ ELTSE9 § phLSke  § 6ITI99  § €19%6S $  8MOE9S § W8TP § 114905 § () [10347d po12407)
U0EPD) ¢ (986's8) ¢ (TR0T9)  § (ObTsS)  §  RCT0S $ ©1rsnD)  § ) & (es0') § (8LL12) § (6£9°9) $ (ss20x0) Kauatatjop uonngLIuo)
(0L1°98€) (s159) (£98°69T) (18L°€0C) (1pS'sw1) (605°8¥1) (66E0EL) (0os'Lo) (L¥¥'L8) (699°59) (o UOUNQLIUOD pasinbau
AIEN1oRIUOD Ay O} UJE[DI UT SUONNGLIUOY)
698°1SE  §  8CE'S9T  § IRLENT  § IWSSHI § 69US61  § 66£0El  §  66E°LOI $  LbVIR S 699'69 $  0£0'09 $ p onnguILOS pannbai Aemisenuo)
W STYLOT  (,\ PTEWOT  , €TTIOT  (, TTLTOT (10207, 076107, 61-810T  ,RI-L10Z L1910  ,, 91-SI0Z SUAIED
JeaA [eIsyy J8DX [8ISI ABRAA [ROSIY dvax [easig JBAA [RISIY 1B [BdSI4 IRIA _fum_ﬁ— JBIA [RISLY ABIX RIS ABIA [BIS1Y]

ST0Z ‘0€ ANNL AAANT AVAA TVOSIA AHL V04

SNOILLAITIINOD NOISNAd A0 A TNAAHIS

LOIY.LS1A TOOHIDS AUVINANWATA NALLAD



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

A

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget (Non-GAAP) and
Actual — General Fund

The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual appropriation accounts.
Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. The budgets are revised during the year by the Board of Trustees to
provide for revised priorities. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object
code. The originally adopted and final revised budgets for the General Fund are presented as
Required Supplementary Information. The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP.

Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Changes in Benefit Terms
There were no change to the benefit terms.

Chaneges in Assumpitions
The discount rate increased from 3.93% to 5.20%.

Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only eight years are shown.

Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for fiscal
year ended June 30, 2025 were from the June 30, 2024 valuation.

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost
Amortization method Level percent of pay
Amortization period 14.2 years
Asset valuation method Market value of assets ($0; plan is not yet funded)
Inflation 2.50% per year
Healthcare cost trend rates 4.00% per year
Salary increases 2.75% per year
Discount Rates 5.20% as of June 30, 2025
3.93% as of June 30, 2024

Mortality

Certificated 2020 CalSTRS Mortality

Classified 2021 CalPERS Mortality for Miscellaneous and Schools Employees

49



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES (CONTINUED)

C

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Nension Liability

This schedule presents information on the District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability (NPL), the Plans' fiduciary net position and, when applicable, the State's proportionate
share of the NPL associated with the District. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years
of information will be presented.

Changes in Assumptions
There were no changes in assumptions for CalPERS and CalSTRS.

Changes in Benefit Terms
There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for both CalPERS and
CalSTRS.

Schedule of Pension Contributions

If an employer's contributions to the plans are actuarially determined or based on statutory or
contractual requirements, the employer's actuarially determined contribution to the pension plans
(or, if applicable, its statutorily or contractually required contribution), the employer's actual
contributions, the difference between the actual and actuarially determined contributions (or
statutorily or contractually required), and a ratio of the actual contributions divided by covered-
employee payroll. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be
presented.

CalPERS STRS

Valuation Date June 30, 2023 June 30, 2023
Measurement Date June 30, 2024 June 30, 2024
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Entry-Age Normal Cost
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 6.90% 7.10%

[nflation 2.30% 2.75%

Payroll Growth Rate 2.80% 3.25%

Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service Varies by Entry Age and Service

Investment Rate of Return !’ 6.80% 7.10%

Mortality Derived using CalPERS' Derived using STRS'

Membership Data for all Funds ~ Membership Data for all Funds

") Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

50



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2025
Special
Reserve Bond
County Fund for Interest
Student School Capital and
Activity Cafeteria Facilities Outlay Redemption
Fund Fund Fund Projects Fund Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,766 § 143926 $ 1,677 $ 86,154 § 182848 § 428371
Accounts receivable - 106,937 - 662 - 107,599
Stores inventory - 5451 - = - 5451
Total Assets 3 13766 $ 256314 § 1677  § 86816 § 182848 § 541421
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ 9902 § - 3 - 3 z 5 9,902
Total Liabilities - 9,902 - - - 9,902
Fund balances
Nonspendable - 5451 - - - 5451
Restricted 13,766 240,961 1.677 - - 256,404
Committed - - - - 182,848 182,848
Assigned - - - 86,816 - 86,816
Total Fund Balances 13,766 246412 1,677 86,816 182,848 531,519
Total liabilities and fund balances S 13,766 § 256314 § 1,677  § 86816 § (82848 § 541421

51



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2025
Special
Reserve Bond
County Fund for Interest
Student School Capital and
Activity Cafeteria Facilities Outlay Redemption
Fund Fund Fund Projects Fund Totals
REVENUES
Federal revenue S - S 199313 8§ - S - S - 199313
Other state revenues - 227951 - - - 227951
Other local revenues - 11,107 84 42371 151,900 205,462
Total revenues - 438371 84 42371 151,900 632,726
EXPENDITURES
Classified salaries - 111,075 - - - 111,075
Employee benefits - 71,515 - E - 71515
Books and supplies - 243,680 - - - 243,680
Services and other operating
expenditures - 2,219 - - - 2219
Other outgo - - - - (1,991) (1,991)
Debt service expenditures
Principal - - - - 5,000 5,000
Interest - - - Z 148.994 148,994
Total expenditures - 428,489 - - 152,003 580,492
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures - 9,882 84 42371 (103) 52,234
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Other sources - - - - 118376 118,376
Other uses = = = = (45,638) (45,638)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - 72,738 72,738
Net change in fund balances - 9,832 84 42371 72,635 124,972
Fund balances, July 1, 2024 13,766 236,530 1,593 44 445 110,213 406,547
Fund balances, June 30, 2025 5 13,766 & 246412 § 1,677 $ 86816 § 182,848 531.519

52



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

JUNE 30, 2025
Second
Period Annual
Report Report
Elementary
TK through Third 319.48 320.23
Fourth through Sixth 208.18 207.60
Special Education
TK through Third 0.14 0.30
Fourth through Sixth 0.16 -
Total 527.96 528.13

53



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Standard 2024-25 2024-25
Minutes Actual Instructional
Grade Level Requirement Minutes Days Status
Kindergarten 36,000 51,360 180 In compliance
Grade 1 50,400 51,360 180 In compliance
Grade 2 50,400 51,360 180 In compliance
Grade 3 50,400 55,340 180 In compliance
Grade 4 54,000 55,340 180 In compliance
Grade 5 54,000 55,340 180 In compliance
Grade 6 54,000 55,340 180 In compliance

54



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Charter School Charter Schools Chartered Included in the District Financial
ID Number by the District Statements, or Separate Report

There are currently no charter schools chartered by the District.

55



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT
WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Special
Reserve Fund
County For Capital
General Cafeteria Building Schools Facility Outlay Projects
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
FUND BALANCE
Ending balance, June 30, 2025, Unaudited Actuals S 9,120,567 $ 242,177 3 2373807 S 1,642 S 85,878
Increase in:
Fair Valuc Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 213,010 4235 5,772 35 938
Accounts Receivable - - - - -
Ending balance, June 30, 2025, Audited Financial Statements _$ 9333577  § 246412 § 2379579 § 1677 8 86,816

There were no other adjustments made to any other funds of the District.

56



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Pass-Through

Assistance Entity
Listing Identifying Federal
Number Grantor and Program Title Number Expenditures

L.S. Department of Education
Passed through California Department of Education
Special Education Cluster (1IDEA)

84.027 Special Ed: IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611 13379 S 110,705
84.027A Special Ed: IDEA Mental Health Average Daily Attendance (ADA) Allocation,

Part B, Sec 611 15197 6,679

Subtotal Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 117,384

Education Stabilization Fund (ESF) Cluster

84.425 Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief 111 (ESSER 111) Fund 15559 20,260
84.425 American Rescue Plan - Homeless Children and Youth [T (ARP HYC 1I) 15566 280
Subtotal Education Stabilization Fund (ESF) Cluster 20,540

84.010 ESSA: Title [, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected 14329 154438
84.367 ESEA (ESSA): Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction Local Grants 14341 11,859
84.424 ESSA: Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 15396 15,006
Total U.S. Department of Education 319,227

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through California Department of Education
Child Nutrition Cluster

10.555 Child Nutrition: School Programs (NSL Sec 11) 13524 190,489
10.555 Local Food for Schools 15708 8,824
Subtotal Child Nutrition Cluster 199,313

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 199,313

Total Federal Programs S 518,540

* Tested as major program.

57



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Adopted
Budget Actuals Actuals Actuals
2025/2026 2024/2025 2023/2024 2022/2023

General Fund
Revenues and Other Financial

Sources $ 8,376,085 $  8.886,053 10,252,388 $ 10,080,925
Expenditures 9,885,023 8,935,021 8,895,489 7,700,509
Other Uses and Transfers Out 41,132 - - 2,754
Total Outgo 0,926,155 8,935,021 8,895,489 7,703,263
Change in Fund Balance (1,550,070) (48,968) 1,356,899 2,377,662
Ending Fund Balance $ 7,783,507 $ 9,333,577 $ 9382545 $ 8025646
Available Reserves S 4.839,071 $ 6,398,646 $ 5956957 S 4622398
Designated for Economic

Uncertainties $ 4.839,071 $ 4,469,032 $ 5956957 S 4622398
Undesignated Fund Balance $ - $ 1929614 3 - $ -
Available Reserves as a

Percentage of Total Outgo 48.8% 71.6% 67.0% 60.0%
All Funds
Total Long-Term Debt $ 13,747,023 $§ 13,783,701 $ 11,660,228 * $§ 10,348,330
Actual Daily Attendance at P-2 532 528 528 524

* includes prior period adjustment for GASB 101 implementation.

The general fund balance has increased by $3,685,593 over the past three years. The fiscal year 2025-26
budget projects a decrease of $1,550,070. For a District this size, the State of California recommends
available reserves of at least 4 percent of total general fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total
outgo). The District met this requirement.

The District has incurred an operating surplus in two of the past three fiscal years and anticipates a deficit in
2025-26.

Total long-term liabilities have increased by $3,435,371 over the past two years due to increases in the net
pension liability and the net OPEB liability and issuances of new general obligation bonds.

Average Daily Attendance (ADA) has increased by 4 over the past two years and attendance is budgeted to
increase in fiscal year 2025-26.

58



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Schedule Of Average Daily Attendance

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which
apportionments of state funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding
the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the District and
whether the District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46201 through 46206.
Districts must maintain their instructional minutes in accordance with the State’s standard requirement as
required by Education Code Section 46201(b).

Schedule of Charter Schools

This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education to monitor financial
reporting by Charter Schools.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides information necessary to reconcile the Annual Financial and Budget Report to the
audited financial statements.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes federal grant activity of the
District and is presented under the modified accrual basis of accounting. Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) requires a disclosure of the financial activities of all federally
funded programs. This schedule was prepared to comply with the Uniform Guidance and state
requirements. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts used in the
preparation of the general purpose financial statements. The District has elected not to use the 10-percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis
This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current

year budget information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

59



OTHER INFORMATION



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION

JUNE 30, 2025

The Cutten Elementary School District was formed in 1891 comprised of approximately 11.5 square miles
located in Humboldt County. There were no changes in the boundaries of the District during the current year.
The District currently operates two elementary schools, grades transitional kindergarten through sixth.

The Board of Trustees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025 was composed of the following members, each
with a four year term:

GOVERNING BOARD
Term Expires
Name Office November
Rebecca Reece Member 2028
Mary DeWald Clerk 2026
Beth Johnston Member 2028
Dennis Reinholtsen President 2026
Mindy Sehon Member 2026
ADMINISTRATION
Becky MacQuarrie
Superintendent

Darcie Rutter
Cutten Principal

Annette Sligh
Ridgewood Principal

Vanessa Carillo-Salas
Business Manager

60



OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS



James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Board of Trustees
Cutten Elementary School District
Eurcka, California

Report on Compliance
Opinion

We have audited the Cutten Elementary School District (the “District”) compliance with the requirements
specified in the 2024-25 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance
Reporting applicable to the District’s state program requirements identified below for the year ended June 30,
2025.

In our opinion, Cutten Elementary School District complied, in all material respects, with the laws and
regulations of the state programs noted in the table below for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the 2024-25 Guide for Annual Audits
of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our
report.

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the District’s state
programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the
District’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government
Auditing Standards, and the 2024-25 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825  Phone: (916) 993-9494  Fax: (916) 993-9489
jdeoli@jpmepa.com  www.jpmepa.com 61




Compliance Reporting will always detect a material noncompliance when it exists.

The risk of not detecting a material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by
a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District’s compliance with the requirements of the
state programs as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 2024-25 Guide
for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit;

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances;

e Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on
intermnal control over compliance in accordance with the 2024-25 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12
Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal controls over compliance. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion; and

o Select and test transactions and records to determine the District’s compliance with the state laws
and regulations applicable to the following items:

Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools

Procedures
Description Performed

Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Independent Study No, see below
Continuation Education No, see below
Instructional Time Yes
Instructional Materials

General Requirements Yes
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Program No, see below
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes
Juvenile Court Schools No, see below
Middle or Early College High Schools No, see below
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction No, see below
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes
District of Choice No, see below
Home to School Transportation Remmbursement Yes

62



School Districts, County Offices of Education and Charter Schools

Procedures
Description Performed
Arts and Music in Schools Yes
After/Before Schools Education and Safety Program
General Requirements No, sce below
After School No, see below
Before School No, see below
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based No, see below
Immunizations No, sce below
Educator Effectiveness Yes
Expanded Leaming Opportunities Grant (ELO-G) No, see below
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant No, sc¢e below
Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Yes
Transitional Kindergarten Yes
Kindergarten Continuance Yes
Charter Schools
Procedures
Description Performed
Attendance No, see below
Mode of Instruction No, see below
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study No, see below
Determmation of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based
Instruction No, sece below
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based No, see below
Charter School Facility Grant Program No, see below

We did not perform any procedures related to Independent Study because no ADA was reported in the
current year.

We did not perform any procedures related to Continuation Education, Early Retirement Incentive,
Independent Study-Course Based, Juvenile Court Schools, Middle-Early College High Schools, After/Before
School Education and Safety Program, Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction, and District of
Choice because the District did not offer these programs.

We did not perform any procedures related to Charter Schools Attendance, Mode of Instruction,
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study, Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based
Instruction, Annual Instructional Minutes — Classroom-Bascd, and Charter School Facility Grant Program
because the District did not have any charter schools.

We did not perform any procedures related to Immunizations as none of the District’s schools appeared on
the lists of schools that did not submit immunization assessment reports to the California Department of
Public Health or those that reported combined conditional admission and overdue rates greater than 10
percent in kindergarten and in 7" grade.



We did not perform any procedures related to Expanded Learning Opportunities Program since the District
fully expended the funding in the previous year.

We did not perform any procedures related to Career Technical Education Incentive Grant as the District did
not receive any funding in the current year,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identify during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a compliance
requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention from those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 2024-25 Guide for Annual
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

90#“ P T ¢+ ~Compoyg LLP

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 12, 2025

64



James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting and Tax

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Cutten Elementary School District
Eureka, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial statements of the
governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Cutten Elementary
School District (the “District”), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated December 12, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered District's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, California 95825 Phone: (916) 993-9494  Fax: (916) 993-9489
ideolictjpmepa.com  www. Jpmepa.com 65




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

gwmot/cmmuf’

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 12, 2025

66



FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Section 1 — Summary of Audit Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal Awards

Unmodified

Yes
Yes

Yes

X No
X None reported

X No

The District expended less than $750,000 in federal awards in 2024-2025 and was not subject to a Single

Audit.
State Awards

Internal control over state programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for state programs:

Yes

Yes

Unmodified

X No

X__ None reported

67



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

No matters were reported.

68



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.

69



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Section IV — State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.

70



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2024-01 SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY - UNDUPLICATED LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING
FORMULA PUPIL COUNTS (40000)

Criteria:

Any student who meets the federal income eligibility criteria or is deemed to be categorically eligible for
FRPM under the National School Lunch Program (NSLP) will be counted as FRPM eligible except for
directly certified and foster students identified through a statewide match, LEAs must submit the appropriate
student program (SPRG) records to CALPADS in order for the students to be counted as FRPM-eligible.
Authority cited: Section 14502.1, Education Code. Reference: Sections 14502.1, 14503, 2574(b)(3)(C),
44238.02(b)(3)(B), and 41020, Education Code.

Condition:

During the audit, two students were discovered that were reported as eligible for FRPM status in the
CALPADS 1.18 report, but did not have support to verify that status. Subsequently, the District performed
their own audit of 100% of the unduplicated pupil counts as reported on the 1.18 - FRPM/English
Learner/Foster Youth - Count report for the school sites and discovered an error with the mapping program to
upload the data from the AERIES attendance system into the CALPADS reporting system resulting in eleven
student being misreported as FRPM eligible.

Effect:
The effect of this finding is an overstatement of 25 unduplicated pupil count at the district as noted below:

Unduplicated Pupil Count

Free & Reduced English Revised
Meal Program Learners Both FRPM FRPM FRPM/EL/Foster
Site Enroliment (FRPM) (ELAS) & ELAS Revision Youth Total

Cutten Elementary 135 128 7 - (15) 120
Ridgewood Elementary 136 123 13 - (10) 126
As certified on CALPADS 271 251 20 - (25) 246
Audit adjustment - - - - = -

Adjusted counts 271 251 20 - (25 246

Cause:
Oversight led to a pupil being misclassified on the CALPADS 1.18 report.

Fiscal Impact:
The fiscal impact is a reduction of LCFF revenues of $17,593.

Repeat Finding:
Yes, see 2023-1.

Recommendation:
The District should have a process of review in place to ensure the accuracy of the data contained in the

CALPADS reports.

Corrective Action Plan:
The District will review and ensure all reports are accurately reported.

Status:

Implemented.
71



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2024-02: SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY - INTERNAL CONTROL - ASSOCIATED STUDENT
BODY (30000)

Criteria:
Education Code Section 48930 and the California Department of Education’s “Accounting Procedures for
Student Organizations Handbook™ require that student body organizations adhere to district regulations. These
regulations mandate the following internal control procedures:

a. Cash receipts should be deposited in a timely manner

b. Bank statement reconciliations should be completed in a timely manner

c¢. Purchase order forms should be reviewed and approved by the principal

Condition:

At Cutten Elementary School and Ridgewood Elementary School, we noted that certain student body cash
receipts were recorded without the necessary backup support documentation. Specifically, there were no
receipts, invoices, or other supporting documents available to clarify the sources or purpose of the cash
receipts.

Effect:
The lack of supporting documentation for cash receipt poses several risks, including:
a. Unauthorized or inappropriate fundraising activities could occur without proper oversight and
approval.
Errors in bank statements may go unnoticed if reconciliations are not performed correctly or on time.
c. Cash receipts could be made without proper authorization or sufficient documentation, affecting
financial transparency and accountability.

Cause:
The policies and procedures for account and cash handling procedures, as outlined by the California
Department of Education, were not properly implemented by the school site personnel.

Repeat Finding:
No

Recommendations:

a. Ensure that all fundraising activities are documented with a fundraising approval form before any
event takes place. This form should track projected and actual revenues and expenses and ensure
proper authorization and oversight.

b. Bank reconciliations should be completed and reviewed in a timely manner, with personnel held
accountable for their accuracy.

c. Cashreconciliations should be reviewed and approved by a designated individual who is not involved
in the original receipt of funds to provide an additional layer of accountability.

d. All cash receipts should be accompanied by appropriate backup documentation (e.g., receipts,
invoices), which must be retained and properly organized to support the validity of transactions.

e. Provide training for staff involved in cash handling and financial reporting to ensure they are familiar
with district policies and procedures related to ASB funds.

Corrective Action Plan:
The District has hired a new staff member to be responsible for overseeing the student body funds and
ensuring proper internal controls are in place.

Status:
Implemented

72



James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Tax, and Consulting

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE

December 12, 2025

To the Board of Trustees
Cutten Elementary School District
Eureka, California

We have audited the financial statements of Cutten Elementary School District (the “District”) as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2025, and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2025.
Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated February 24, 2023, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion(s) about whether the financial statements that
have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of
the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the District solely for
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such
internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to
you.

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm, have complied with all relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence.

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, California 95825  Phone (916) 993-9494  Fax (916) 993-9489
jdeoli@ jpmepa.com  www.jpmcpa.com 1




James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

We follow the AICPA Ethics Standard Rule 201C, in conjunction with this, we annually review with all
engagement staff potential conflicts and obtain a conflict certification. In addition, we inquire on each
engagement about potential conflicts with staff. We have not identified any relationships or other matters
that in the auditor’s judgment may be reasonably thought to bear on independence.

Significant Risks Identified
We have identified the following signiticant risks:

e We did not identify any accounts to be significant risks.
Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the District is included in Note 1 to the financial statements.
Other than the GASB 101 policy, there have been no other accounting policies or changes in significant
accounting policies or their application during during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. No matters
have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1)
the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance
or consensus. However, there are new Governmental Accounting Standards that may affect the District in
future years. See Attachment I

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current
judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the collectability of
receivables, compensated absences, the District’s proportionate share of net pension liability and the
District’s net OPEB liability.

Management’s estimate of the collectability of receivables is based on past experience with collections
from various entities. Management is conservatively using 100% of their sick leave to add to their
vacation liability to come up with the District total compensated absence liability. I'he estimate for the
District’s proportionate share of net pension liability and the District’s net OPEB liability is based on an
actuarial study. We evaluated key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined
that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole and in relation to the
applicable opinion units.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because
of their significance o financial statcment uscrs. The pension and OPEB disclosures included in footnotes

2



James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

6 and 7, respectively, required significant judgement to calculate the District’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability for CalPERS and CalSTRS and the District’s net OPEB liability.

Significant Unusual Transactions

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to communicate to you significant
unusual transactions identified during our audit. No significant unusual transactions were identified as a
result of our audit procedures.

Identified or Suspected Fraud

We have not identified or obtained information that indicates that fraud may have occurred.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the
audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate
them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also
communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of
transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable
opinion unit. See Attachment II for adjustments provided by management.

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements
that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. There were no audit
adjustments identified as a result of our audit procedures.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, which could be significant to the District’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such
disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that
affect the form and content of our auditor’s report. There were no circumstances that affected the form
and content of our auditor’s report.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the attached
letter dated December 12, 2025. See Attachment II1.



James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, managemcnt may dccide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the District, we generally discuss a variety of
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating and
regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of
material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the
District’s auditors.

Other Services

We have assisted management in preparing the financial statements of the District in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by management.

Management’s responsibilities for other services included designating qualified individuals with the skill,
knowledge, and experience to be responsible and accountable for overseeing financial statement
preparation and any other nonattest services we performed as part of this engagement. Management has
represented that they have evaluated the adequacy and results of those services and is accepting
responsihility for them.

This rcport is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees and management of
Cutten Elementary School District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

%MQLMLLF

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 12, 2025



James Marta & Company LLP Attachment [
Certified Public Accountants Upcoming Changes in Accounting Standards

The following pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) have been
released recently and may be applicable to the Authority in the near future. We encourage management to
review the following information and determine which standard(s) may be applicable to the Authority.
For the complete text of these and other GASB standards, visit www.gasb.org and click on the “Standards
& Guidance” tab. If you have questions regarding the applicability, timing, or implementation approach
for any of these standards, please contact your audit team.

GASB Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements
Effective for the fiscal vear ending June 30, 2026

The objective of this Statement is to improve key components of the financial reporting model to enhance
its effectiveness in providing information that is essential for decision making and assessing a
government’s accountability. This Statement also addresses certain application issues.

We do not expect this standard to have any significant impact on the District.
GASB Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets
Effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2026

The objective of this Statement is to provide users of government financial statements with essential
information about certain types of capital assets. This Statement also requires additional disclosures for
capital assets held for sale. A capital asset is a capital asset held for sale if (a) the government has decided
to pursue the sale of the capital asset and (b) it is probable that the sale will be finalized within one year of
the financial statement date. Governments should consider relevant factors to evaluate the likelihood of
the capital asset being sold within the established time frame. This Statement requires that capital assets
held for sale be evaluated each reporting period.

The District is currently assessing the financial statement impact of GASB 104.



James Marta & Company LLP Attachment II
Certified Public Accountants Journal Entry Report

Adjusting Journal Entries

Account Descripliva Credit

Adjusting Jourmal Entrics

Adjusting Jonwrnal Entries JFE # |
To tie out equity with prior years audit report.

01-8660 Interest 2
13-8660 Interest 1
51-9795 Other Restatements 2.631
01-9791 Beginning Fund Balance 2
13-9791 Beginning Fund Balance |
51-7434 Bond Interest and Other Serviee Charges 2.63]
Total 2,634 2,634
Adjusting Journal FEntres JF if 2
Ta record the FMV adjustment for cash in county treasury as of June 30, 2025,
01-9111 Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 171.986
13-9111 Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 4235
17-9111 Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County I'reasury 41,024
219111 Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 5772
359111 Fair Value Adjustrment to Cash in County Treasury 35
40-9111 Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 93%
01-8662 Net Increase (Decrease) in the Far Value of Investimenils 171,986
13-8662 Net Increase (Decrease) i the Fair Value of Investments 4235
17-8662 Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of [nvestments 41,024
21-8662 Net Increase (Decrease) in the Far Value of [nvestments 5772
35-8662 Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 35
) 40-8662 Net Increase (Decreasce) in the Fair Value of Investments 938
Total 223,990 223,990
Adjnuting Jowrnal Fnrvics J10 17 3
To true up bond issuance entry.
21-5800 Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenditures 50,000
51-7699 All Other Financing Uses 45,638
51-8699 All Other Local Revenue 72,738
21-8951 Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 50,000
51-8979 All Other Financing Sources 118,376
Total 168.376 168,376
Total Adjusting Journal Entries 395,000 395,000
Total All Journal Entries 395,000 395,000

Reclassifvine Journal Entries

No reclassifying journal entries in 2024-2025 FY.

Proposed Journal Entries

Account Description Credit

Proposcd Journal Entries
Proposcd Journal Entrics JE £ 4

To true-up student body fund reconciliation to GL.

08-9120 Cash in Bank(s) 4.730
08-8699 All Other Local Revenue 4,730
Total 4,730 4,730
Total Proposed Journal Entries 4,730 4,730
Total All Journal Entries 4,730 4,730




James Marta & Company LLP Attachment IT1
Certified Public Accountants Management Representation Letter

Cutten School District

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER

December 12, 2025

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the
govemnmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Curtten
Elementary School District (the “District™) as of June 30, 2025 and for the fiscal year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions on whether the basic
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations, and
cash flows, where applicable. of the various opinion units of the District in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted for governments in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that. in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of December 12, 2025:

Financial Statements

e We have fulfilled our responsibilitics, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated
February 24, 2023 for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the
various opinion units referred to above in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

e We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror.

e We acknowledge our respounsibility for the design. implementation, and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

®  We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements.

® We acknowledge that we are responsible for distributing the issued report as well as the
communication with governance letter and internal control letter to all governing board members.

e We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and related
notes and acknowledge the auditor’s role in the preparation of this information.

e We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

RIDGEWOOD SCHOOL CALIFOR‘V’A CLTTEN MCHOQ)

20t Riadin arand Drme Fureka (4 95508 L1420 Wutrur Dot Enncka, CLvssof

(0T 4 AV Fug T 34 s DISTLVGL!’SHED SCHOOLS PTHE AL S e Fay e T dd] aa



James Marta & Company LLP Attachment I1
Certified Public Accountants Management Representation Letter

Cutten Elementary School Distriet
Management Representation Letter

s We have identified and communicated to you all previous audits, atiestation engagements. and
other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been
implemented.

o SNignificant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates. including those mcasured at
fair value, are reasonable.

e Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed
in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

s All cvents subsequent to the date of the financial statetnents and for which U.S. GAAP requires
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

s  We have reviewed and approved the adjusting journal entries reflected in the audit statements
and Attachment A

e . The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have bcen accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

o All component units, as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, are included and other joint
ventures and related organizations are properly disclosed.

e All funds and activities are properly classified.

e All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments,
GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and
Analysis—for State and Local Governments: Omnibus as amended, and GASB Statement No. 65,
Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, for presentation as major are identified and
presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are considered important to
financial statement users.

¢ All components of net position, non-spendablc fund balance, and restricted, committed, assigned,
and unassigned fund balance are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

e  Our policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense
is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position/fund balance are
available is appropriately disclosed and net position/fund balance is properly recognized under
the policy.

o All revenues within the statement of activities have been properly classified as program revenues,
general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent
fund principal.

s All expenses have been properly classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statement of activities, and allocations, if any. have been made on a reasonable basis.

e All inter-fund and intra-entity transactions and balances have been properly classified and
reported.

o Special items and extraordinary items have been properly classified and reported.

= Dcposit and investment risks have been properly and fully disclosed.

s Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported. and if applicable,
depreciated.

e All required supplementary information is measured and presented within the prescribed
guidelines.

e  With regard to invesiments and other instruments reported at fair value:

-~ The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect management's
intent and ability to carry out its stated courses of action.

- The mecasurement mcthods and related assumptions used in determining fair value are
appropriate in the circurnstances and have been consistently applied.

—  The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in conformuty with U.S.
GAAP.

(%)



James Marta & Company LLP Attachment I1
Certified Public Accountants Management Representation Letter

Cutten Elementary School District
Management Representation Letter

= There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value measurements and
disclosures included in the financial statcments.
® With respect to preparation of the financial statements, reconciliation of long-term debt,

GASB 34 conversion entries, Pension and OPEB liability calculations and related disclosures,
we have performed the following:

- Made all management decisions and performed all management functions;

== Assigned a competent individual to oversee the services;

Evaluated the adequacy of the services performed;

= Evaluated and accepted responsibility for the result of the service performed: and

- Established and maintained controls, including a process to monitor the system of internal
control.

Information Provided

s We have provided you with:

—~ Access to all information, of which we are aware that is rclevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements of the various opinion units referred to above, such as
records, documentation, meeting minutes, and other matters;

- Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

- Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

» All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

e We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

*  We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves:

- Management;

- Employces who have significant roles in intemal control; or

—  Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

e We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud. affecting the entity’s
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, vendors, regulators, or
others.

e We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation and claims whose effects should be
considered when preparing the financial statements.

s We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

e  There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or
deficiencies in accounting, internal control. or financial reporting practices.

e Cutten Elementary School District has no plans or intcntions that may materially affect the
carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities.

»  We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral, under which Cutten Elementary
School District is contingently liable.

® We have disclosed to you all nonexchange financial guarantees, under which we are obligated
and have declared liabilities and disclosed properly in accordance with GASB Statement No. 70,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, for those
guarantees where it is more likely than not that the entity will make a payment on any guarantee.

e For nonexchange financial guarantees where we have declared liabilities, the amount of the
liability recognized is the discounted present value of the best estimate of the future outflows
expected to be incurred as a result of the guarantee. Where there was no best estimate but a range

[



James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Attachment I1
Management Representation Letter

Cutten Elementary School District
Managemenrt Representation Letter

of estimated future outflows has been established, we have recognized the minimum amount

within the range.

We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to

management that are required to be disclosed in accordance with (fASH Statement No. 62

(GASB-62), Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-

November 30, 1989 FASB amd AICPA Pronouncements. Significant cstimatcs arc cstimates at the

balance sheet date that could change materially within the next year. Concentrations refer to

volumes of business. revenucs, availablc sources of supply, or markets or geographic areas for

which events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the next year.

We have identified and disclosed 10 you the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and

grant agreements that could have a direct and material effect on financial statement amounts,

including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separatc funds.

There are no:

- Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts or grant
agreements whosc cffects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as
a basis for recording a loss contingency, including applicable budget laws and regulations.

- Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probable of assertion and
must be disclosed in accordance with GASB-62.

—  Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by
GASB-62

Cutten Elementary School District has satisfactory titlc to all owned assets, and there are no liens

or encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset or future revenue been pledged as collateral,

except as disclosed to you.

We have complied with all aspects of grant agreements and other contractual agreements that

would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

Additional Representations

Supplementary Information in Relation to the Financial Statements as a Whole

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements:

We acknowlcdge our responsibility for the presentation of the supplcmentary information in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S.
GAAP); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the 2024-25 Guide for Annual Audits of
K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in the California
Code of Regulations, Title 5, Section 19810 and following; and the Uniform Guidance.

We belicve the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in
accordance with U.S. GAAP the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the 2024-25 Guide
for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compiiance Reporting,
prescribed in the California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Section 19810 and following; and the
Uniform Guidance.

The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior.
When the supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements,
management will make the audited financial statcments readily available to the intended users of
the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by the entity of the
supplementary information and the auditor’s report thereon.

10



James Marta & Company LLP Attachment II
Certified Public Accountants Management Representation Letter

Cutien Elementary School District
Management Representation Letter

e We acknowledge our responsibility to include the auditor’s report on the supplementary
information in any document containing the supplementary information and that indicates the
auditor reported on such supplementary information,

e We acknowledge our responsibility to present the supplementary information with the audited
financial statements or, if the supplementary information will not be presented with the audited
financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended
uscrs of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by the entity of the
supplementary information and the auditor’s report thereon.

Required Supplementary Information
With respect to the required supplementary information accompanying the financial statements:

e We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the required supplementary
information in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of’
America (U.S. GAAP); and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issucd by the Comptroller General of the United Siates.

e We believe the required supplementary information, including its form and content, is measured
and fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAP); and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

e The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior
period.

Use of a Specialist

We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the District’s proportionate share of net pension
liability and the District’s net OPEB liability and have adequately considered the qualifications of the
specialist in determining the amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying
accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists with respect to the
values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters
that have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

e We believe that the actuvarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and other
postemployment benefit liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in
the circumstanccs.

e We are unable to determine the possibility of a withdrawal liability in a multiemployer benefit
plan.

Federal Award Programs
With respect to federal award programs:

® We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the
requircments of the Uniformn Guidance.

® We have identified and disclosed to you all of our government programs and related activities
subject to the Uniform Guidance compliance audit and included in the SEFA made during the
audit period for all awards provided by federal agencies in the form of grants, federal cost-
reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property (including donated surplus

5

11



James Marta & Company LLP Attachment I1
Certified Public Accountants Management Representation Letter

Cutten Elemmentary School Distict
Management Representation Letier

property). cooperative agrecments, mterest subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct
appropriations, and other direct assistance.

e We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained,
cffective intemal control over compliance requirements applicable to federa! programs that
provides reasonable assurance that we are managing our federal awards in compliance with
laws. regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant agrcements that could have a
material effect on our federal programs. We believe the internal control system is adequate
and 1s functioning as intended.

» We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the
requirements of federal statutes, laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant
agreemonts related to each of our federal programs.

= We have identfied and disclosed to you the requirements of federal statutes. laws.
regulations, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements that are considered to have
a direct and material effect on each major program

e We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may have
varying interpretations.

e We have made available to you all federal awards (including amendments, if any) and any
other correspondence relevant to federal programs and related activities that have taken place
with federal agencies or pass-through entities.

e We have identified and disclosed to you all amounts questioned and all known
noncompliance with the requirements of federal awards.

e We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles.

e Wc have made availablc to you all documentation related to compliance with the direct
material compliance requirements, including information related to federal program financial
reports and claims for advances and reimbursements

»  Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimburscments are supported
by the books and records from which the financial statements have been preparcd.

o The copies of federal program financial reports provided you are true copies of the reports
submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-through
entity, as applicable.

e We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior audit
findings to include all findings required to be included by the Uniform Guidance and we have
provided you with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings by
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, including all management decisions.

e We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the auditee section of the Data
Collection Form as required by the Uniform Guidance.

s There arc no such known instances of noncompliance with direct and material compliance
requirements that occurred subsequent to the period covered by the auditor’s report.

e No changes have been made in intemal control over compliance or other factors that might
significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action we have taken regarding
significant deficiencies in intemal control over compliance (including material weakncesses in
internal control over compliance), subscquent to the date as of which compliance was
audited.

=« We have complied with the direct and material compliance requirements, including when
applicable, those set forth in the Uniform Guidance, relating to federal awards

e We have disclosed any communications from grantors and pass-through entities conceming
possible noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements, including
cotununications received flom the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the
date of the auditor’s report.

e We have disclosed to you the findings recctved and related corrcctive actions taken for
previous audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external momtoring that directly

6



James Marta & Company LLP Attachment I1
Certified Public Accountants Management Representation Letter

Cutten Elementary School District
Management Representation Letter

relate to the objectives of the compliance audit, including findings received and corrective
actions taken from the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the
auditor’s report.

e We are responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings of the compliance audit and
have developed a corrective plan that meets the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

e We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at thc end of the rcporting period affecting
noncompliance during the reporting period.

e The reporting package does not include protected personally identifiable information.

¢ Amounts claimed or used for matching were detcrmined in accordance with relevant
guidelines in the Uniform Guidance.

e We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards (SEFA) in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, and we
believe the SEFA, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance.

® We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the SEFA,

¢ We have reccived no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific programs
45.3 major program.

Sl ()

Bedky MacQuarrie, JEd.D., Superintendent
| =

\.

13



James Marta & Company LLP Attachment I1
Certified Public Accountants Management Representation Letter

Attachment [
Jouraai Entry Repoit

Adjusting Journal Entries

e hit Crediv

Treveriptinn

Aecount

Adjusting Journal Entries JE #1
To tie out equity with prior years audit report.

N1-8R60 Interes! 2,00

13-8660 Interest (K} )

51-9795 Other Restatements 265160

01-9791 Beginning Fund Balance 2.00

13-0791 Beynning Fund Babime LRLY

31-7434 Bond Interest und Other Senviee Charges RCRARLY]
Total 2.634.00 2,634.00

daviensl Enlries JF 7 2
To record the FAMV adjustment for cash in county tressury as of June 30, 2025.

N-9111 Far Valie Adjusanent to Cash m Courty Treasury 171,986

13-9111 Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 4,235.00

17-9111 Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 41,024.00

219101 Fair Vaiue Adustment o Cash m Coumy Treasary 3172

359111 Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 35.00

40-9111 Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 938.00

01-8662 Net Increase (Decrease) n the Fair Value of investments 171,986.00

13-8662 Nel Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 4,235.00

17-8662 Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of invesiments 41,024.00

21-%662 Net Increase (Decrcase) m the Far Value of [nvesments 5772

35-8662 Nat Increase (Decraase) m the Farr Value of invesiments 35.00

40-8662 Nal Increase (Decrease) in g Fain Value of investments 938.00
Total 223,990.00 223,990.00
Yo true up bond issuance entry.

21-5800 Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenditures 50,000.00

51-7693 All Other Financing Uses 45,638.00

51-8693 All Other Local Revenue 72,738.00

21-8951 Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 50,000 00

51-8979 All Other Financing Sourzes 118,376.00
Total 168,376.00 168,376.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries

No reclassifying journal entries in 2024-2025 FY

Proposed Journal Entries

Deseription D hit Credir

Account

Proposed Journal Entries fF 2 4
To true-up student body find reconciiation to GL.

08-9120 Cash n Bankts) 4.730.00

08-8699 Al Other Local Revenue 4.730.00
lotal 4,730.00 4.730.00

14



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MEASURE L
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT
EUREKA, CALIFORNIA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2025



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Balance Sheet

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance

Notes to the Financial Statements
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Full Text of Bond Measure L
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and on Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards
Independent Auditor’s Report on Measure L Bond Performance
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

13

18

20

23

24



James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Citizen’s Oversight Committee
and Governing Board

Cutten Elementary School District

Eureka, California

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the Balance Sheet of Cutten Elementary School District (the District), Measure L General
Obligation Bond Fund (the Fund), and the related statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Cutten Elementary School District Measure L General Obligation Bond Fund (the
Fund) as of June 30, 2025 and the results of its operations the fiscal year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The District’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825 Phone 916-993-9494  Fax 916-993-9489
ideolie jpmepa.com www.jpmcpa.com 1




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government duditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements referred to above present only the individual Measure L
General Obligation Bond Building Fund and are not intended to present fairly the financial position and
results of operations of the District in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.



Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12, 2025
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

gof“dmoh/ccﬂWLLf’

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 12, 2025



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2025
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,861
Accounts receivable 17,796
Total Assets $ 22,657
LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ .

Total Liabilities -

Fund balances
Restricted for Measure L bond projects 22,657

Total Fund Balances 22,657

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 22,657

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

REVENUES
Other local revenuces 3 23,625
Total revenues 23,625
EXPENDITURES
Services and other operating expenditures 163,759
Capital outlay 13,289
Total expenditures 177,048
Excess(deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (153,423)
Fund balances, July 1, 2024 176,080
Fund balances, June 30, 2025 $ 22,657

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The accounting policies of the Measure L General Obligation Bond Fund (the Fund) of the Cutten
Elementary School District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The fund accounts for financial transactions in
accordance with the policies and procedures of the California School Accounting Manual.

The Cutten Elementary School District (the "District") is a public educational agency operating
under the applicable laws and regulations of the State of California. It is governed by a five-
member Governing Board elected by registered voters of the District, which comprises an area in
Humboldt County. The District was founded in 1891. The District is located in the central western
portion in Humboldt County, California (the “County”) and serves the unincorporated area of the
County known as Cutten. The District currently operates two elementary schools: Cutten
Elementary School serves third through sixth grades, and Ridgewood School serves kindergarten
through second grades.

On January 29, 2019, the District issued the first sale (Series A) of the Measure L General
Obligation Bonds (the “Bonds™) in the aggregate principal amount of $2,000,000 to finance
specific construction, repair and improve District facilities. On February 6, 2020, the District issued
the second and final sale (Series B) of the Measure L General Obligation Bonds (the “Bonds™) in
the aggregate principal amount of $1,998,286.

The Bonds were authorized at an election within the District held on November 6, 2018 (the
“Election”) at which at least fifty-five percent of the registered voters voting on the proposition
voted to authorize the issuance and sale of $4,000,000 aggregate principal amount of general
obligation bonds of the District (the “Authorization”). Because the Bond required only 55% of'the
vote in accordance with Proposition 39 (Article XIII of the California State Constitution), the
District was required to establish a citizen’s bond oversight committee and to conduct a financial
and performance audit.

The Committee’s oversight goals include ensuring expenditures are within the language of the
ballot measure. The citizens' oversight committee must include, among others, representation of a
bona fide taxpayers association, a business organization and a senior citizens organization. No
district employees or vendors are allowed to serve on the citizens' oversight committee.

The fund financial statements presented are for the Measure L General Obligation Bond Building
Fund. Since this is just one component of the District, these financial statements are not intended to
be a complete presentation of the District’s financial position or results of operations. Accordingly,
these fund statements do not include a government wide financial statement, management
discussion and analysis or related organizational disclosures. The audited financial statements of
Cutten Elementary School District include the Measure L General Obligation Bond Building Fund
activities, related debt and disclosures as well as management’s discussion and analysis.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. FUND ACCOUNTING

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity or retained earnings,
revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled.

The proceeds from the sale of general obligation bonds and the subsequent expenditure of the bond
funds are accounted for in the Building fund of the District. Any premium received from the sale of
the bonds is deposited in the Bond and Interest Redemption fund of the District. The Measure L
Bond Building Fund forms part and not all of the net financial position in the District’s Building
Fund which contains other sources of funding.

. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The District prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and complies with the policies and
procedures of the Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual.

. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of measurement
made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, “available”
means collectible within one year.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America for all governmental funds. By state law, the District's governing
board must adopt a final budget no later than July 1 in accordance with State law. A public hearing
must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The District's governing board satisfied
these requirements.

. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase
orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated
when the commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated at June 30.

. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool as the
District is required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their County Treasurer
(Education Code Section 41001). The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds
by California Government Code Section 53648 et seq.

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local
agency bonds, notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered State
warrants or treasury notes; securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances;
commercial paper; certificates of deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan
companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of
beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies; certificates of participation;
obligations with first priority security; and collateralized mortgage obligations.

Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is
estimated based on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at
fair value are stated at cost or amortized cost.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
H. CAPITAL AND LONG-TERM DEBT

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets and long-term liabilities
associated with the General Obligation Bond Building Fund is accounted for on a spending or
“financial flow” measurement focus. This means that only current assets and liabilities are
generally included on the balance sheet.

The reported fund balances are considered a measure of “available spendable resources”. Thus, the
capital assets and long-term liabilities associated with the Measure L General Obligation Bond
Building Fund are accounted for in the basic financial statements of the District.

I. FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

As of June 30, 2025, fund balances of the Measure L General Obligation Bond Building Fund are
classified as restricted. Restricted funds can only be spent for specific purposes because of
conslitutional provisious or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2025 consist of cash in county treasury in the amount of
$4,861.

A. Cash in County Treasury

County pool investments consist of District cash held by the Humboldt County Treasury that is
invested in the county investment pool. The fair value of the District's investment in the pool is
reported in the financial statements at amounts that are based upon the District's pro-rata share of
the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized
cost of that portfolio). The weighted average maturity of the pool is 626 days. The pool is rated
AAA by Standard and Poor’s.

B. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rate will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, as the length of the maturity of an investment increases, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to
interest rate risk by investing in the County Treasury that purchases a combination of shorter term
and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash
flow and liquidity needed for operations.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
Series A

On January 29, 2019, the District issued the first sale (Series A) of the Measure L General Obligation
Bonds (the “Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $2,000,000 to finance specific construction,
repair and improvement projects approved by the voters of the District and to pay costs of issuance.
The Series A was the first series of bonds issued under the Authorization and are issued on a parity
basis with all outstanding general obligation bonds of the District. The proceeds of the Bonds were
applied as follows:

Sources of Funds

Principal Amount of Bonds $ 2,000,000
Original Issuance Premium 132,326
Total Sources $ 2132326

Uses of Funds

Deposited to Building Fund $ 1,855,000
Deposited to Bond Interest and Redemption Fund 92,326
Cost of Issuance 185,000

Total Uses § 2132326

The Bonds are payable from the proceeds of ad valorem property taxes which the Board of Supervisors
of the Humboldt County are obligated to levy and collect ad valorem property taxes for each fiscal year
upon the taxable property of the District in an amount at least sufficient, together with other moneys
available for such purpose, to pay the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on the bonds as the
same becomes due and payable. The bonds consist of serial bonds bearing various fixed interest rates
from 2% to 5% and mature in staggered amounts each year starting on August 1, 2019 up through
August 1, 2048.

10



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
Series B

On February 6, 2020, the District issued the second sale (Series B) of the Measure L General
Obligation Bonds (the “Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $1,998,286 to finance specific
construction, repair and improvement projects approved by the voters of the District and pay costs of
issuance. The Series B was the second and final series of bonds issued under the Authorization and are
issued on a parity basis with all outstanding general obligation bonds of the District. The proceeds of
the Bonds were applied as follows:

Sources of Funds

Principal Amount of Bonds $ 1,998,286
Original Issuance Discount 198,340
Total Sources $ 2,196,626

Uses of Funds

Deposited to Building Fund $ 1,843286
Deposited to Bond Interest and Redemption Fund 158,374
Cost of [ssuance 194,966

Total Uses $ 2,196,626

The Bonds are payable from the proceeds of ad valorem property taxes which the Board of Supervisors
of the Humboldt County are obligated to levy and collect ad valorem property taxes for each fiscal year
upon the taxable property of the District in an amount at least sufficient, together with other moneys
available for such purpose, to pay the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on the bonds as the
same becomes due and payable. The bonds consist of serial bonds bearing various fixed interest rates
from 2.68% to 4.00% and mature in staggered amounts each year starting in August 1, 2020 up through
August 1, 2050.

11



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of June 30, 2025, the Building Fund did not have any bond commitments with respect to unfinished
capital projects.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District’s management evaluated its June 30, 2025 financial statements for subsequent events
through December 12, 2025, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Management
is not aware of any subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements.

12



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

FULL TEXT OF BOND MEASURE

BOND AUTHORIZATION

By approval of this measure by at least 55 percent of the registered voters voting on the measure, the Cutten
School District will be authorized to issue and sell bonds of up to $4 million in aggregate principal amount at
interest rates not to exceed legal limits and to provide financing for the specific types of school facilities
projects listed in the Bond Project List described below, subject to all of the accountability requirements
specified below.

ACCOUNTABILITY REQUIREMENTS

The provisions in this section are specifically included in this measure in order that the voters and taxpayers
in the District may be assured that their money will be spent wisely. Expenditures to address specific facilities
needs of the District will be in compliance with the requirements of Article XIIIA, Section 1 (b)(3), of the
State Constitution and the Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds Act of 2000 (codified at
Education Code Sections 15264 and following.)

Evaluation of Needs. The Governing Board has identified detailed facilities needs of the District and has
determined which projects would be financed from a local bond. The Governing Board hereby certifies that it
has evaluated safety, class size reduction, enrollment growth, and information technology needs in developing
the Bond Project List shown below.

Independent Citizens' Oversight Committee. Following approval of this measure, the Governing Board
will establish an Independent Citizens' Oversight Committee, under Education Code Sections 15278 and
following, to ensure bond proceeds are expended only on the types of school facilities projects listed below.
The committee will be established within 60 days of the date when the results of the election appear in the
minutes of the Governing Board.

Performance Audits. The Governing Board will conduct annual, independent performance audits to ensure
that the bond proceeds have been expended only on the school facilities projects listed below.

Financial Audits. The Governing Board will conduct annual, independent financial audits of the bond
proceeds until all of those proceeds have been spent for the school facilities projects listed below.

Government Code Accountability Requirements. As required by Section 53410 of the Government Code,
(1) the specific purpose of the bonds is set forth in this Full Text of the Measure, (2) the proceeds from the
sale of the bonds will be used only for the purposes specified in this measure, and not for any other purpose,
(3) the proceeds of the bonds, when and if issued, will be deposited into a building fund to be held by the
Humboldt County Treasurer, as required by the California Education Code, and (4) the Superintendent of the
District shall cause an annual report to be filed with the Governing Board of the District not later than January
1 of each year, which report shall contain pertinent information regarding the amount of funds collected and
expended, as well as the status of the projects listed in this measure, as required by Sections 53410 and 53411
of the Government Code.

NO TEACHER OR ADMINISTRATOR SALARIES

Proceeds from the sale of bonds authorized by this measure shall be used only for the purposes specified in
Article XIIT A, Section 1 (b)(3), those being for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or

13



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

FULL TEXT OF BOND MEASURE

replacement of school facilitics, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities, and the
acquisition or lease of school facilities, and not for any other purpose, including teacher and administrator
salaries and other school operating expenses.

STATE MATCHING FUNDS

The following statement is included in this measure pursuant to Education Code Section 15122.5: Approval
of this measure does not guarantee that the proposed project or projects that are the subject of bonds under
this measure will be funded beyond the local revenues generated by this measure. The District's proposal for
the project or projects described below may assume the receipt of matching state funds, which, if available,
could be subject to appropriation by the Legislature or approval of a statewide bond measure.

BOND PROJECT LIST

The Bond Project List below lists the specific projects the District proposes to finance with proceeds of the
bonds. The Bond Project List shall be considered a part of the bond proposition and shall be reproduced in
any official document required to contain the full statement of the bond proposition. Listed projects will be
completed as needed at a particular school or facility site according to Board-established priorities, and the
order in which such projects appear on the Bond Project List is not an indication of priority for funding or
completion. Any authorized repairs shall be capital expenditures. The Bond Project List does not authorize
non-capital expenditures. Each project is assumed to include its share of costs of the election and bond
issuance, construction-related costs, such as project and construction management, architectural, engineering,
inspection and similar planning and testing costs, demolition and interim housing costs, legal, accounting and
stmilar fees, costs related to the independent annual financial and performance audits, a contingency for
unforeseen design and construction costs, and other costs incidental to or necessary for completion of the
listed projects (whether the related work is performed by the District or third parties). The final cost of each
project will be determined as plans are finalized, construction bids are awarded, and projects are completed.
In addition, certain construction funds expected from non-bond sources, including State of California grant
funds for eligible projects, have not yet been secured. Therefore, the Board cannot guarantee that the bonds
will provide sufficient funds to allow completion of all listed projects. Alternatively, if the District obtains
unexpected funds from non-bond sources with respect to listed projects, such projects may be enhanced,
supplemented or expanded to the extent of such funds. Some projects may be subject to further government
approvals, including by State officials and boards and/or local environmental or agency approval. Inclusion of
a project on the Bond Project List is not a guarantee that the project will be completed (regardless of whether
bond funds are available).

The specific projects authorized to be financed with proceeds of the bonds under this proposition are as
follows:

SCHOOL MODERNIZATION AND RENOVATION MEASURE PROJECTS
The following projects are authorized to be financed Districtwide:

School Renovation, Construction and Upgrade Projects

o Modernize, upgrade, renovate, replace, rehabilitate, re-configure, expand, acquire and install, and/or
upgrade classrooms, classroom buildings, labs, restrooms, common areas and grounds and school
support facilities (including hbrary, multipurpose room/auditorium, tood storage, preparation and

14



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

FULL TEXT OF BOND MEASURE

service, cafeteria and office/staff support facilities, whether permanent, portable or modular,
including interior and exterior (as applicable) doors, windows, door and window hardware, roofs, rain
gutters and downspouts, walls, ceilings and floors and finishes, paint, siding, insulation, casework,
cabinets, secured storage, carpets, drapes, window coverings, infrastructure, lighting, sinks, drinking
fountains, fixtures, signage, fencing, landscaping, furniture and equipment.

e Construct additional classrooms/classroom buildings, restrooms, food storage, preparation and
service facilities, school support facilities, including offices and conference rooms, and related school
facilities.

e Renovate, replace, upgrade, acquire, install and/or integrate major site/building/utility systems,
equipment and related infrastructure and housing, including lighting, electrical (including wiring and
related infrastructure for modern technology), heating, refrigeration, cooling and ventilation, water,
sewer, gas irrigation, drainage, and energy efficiency/management monitoring systems, networks,
fixtures, equipment and controls.

e Acquire, install, upgrade and/or construct renewable energy and/or energy-saving systems,
improvements and equipment, including electricity generation and distribution systems and/or water
heating systems, natural light improvements, upgraded insulation and roofing, efficient lighting,
windows and window coverings, shade structures, energy management and conservation systems,
and other passive technologies, and structures to support such systems, improvements and equipment

., and related infrastructure.

e Furnish and equip classrooms and other school facilities, including, but not limited to, desks, chairs
and classroom furniture, science and lab equipment, school-site maintenance equipment, copy
machines, "cubicle" partitions, chairs, storage units and school office equipment, including initial
purchases and continued replacement of equipment and furniture as needed.

All or portions of these Projects may be used as joint-use projects within the meaning of Section
17077.42(c) of the Education Code (or any successor provision).

SCHOOL SITE HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY PROJECTS

e The inspection and analysis of grounds, buildings, fixtures and structures, including parking lots,
walkways, paths, restrooms, drinking fountains, physical education/athletic fields and facilities,
playground areas and equipment, to assess health and safety risks to students, faculty, staff, parents
and the public and compliance with local, state and federal building, health, safety, access and other
related requirements, including seismic safety requirements, Field Act requirements access
requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Occupational Safety & Health
Administration (OSHA) requirements, and the improvement, correction, repair or renovation of such
grounds, buildings, fixtures and structures or portions thereof identified as such health and safety
risks or acquire, install and/or construct other improvements to comply with such laws and
requirements.

e Reconfigure, renovate, repair, resurface, improve and/or expand roads, sidewalks, parking lots and
related areas, and pick-up/drop-off and bus areas to improve ingress/egress and safety and increase
capacity to meet site usage.

e Upgrade and/or acquire and install exterior lighting, fire detection and suppression, security,
emergency, clock, bell, data, voice and audio-visual communication (including telephone and public
address) systems, networks, fixtures, equipment and controls.

e Upgrade or replace buildings that do not meet current minimum building code standards.

15



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

FULL TEXT OF BOND MEASURE

All or portions of these Projects may be u ed as joint-use projects within the meaning of Section
17077.42(c) of the Education Code (or any successor provision).

DISTRICT-WIDE WIRING AND TECHNOLOGY FOR INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPORT
AND EFFECTIVE LEARNING ENVIRONMENT PROJECTS

e Acquire and install technology equipment, fixtures and infrastructure, including computers, tablets,
mobile devices, software, interactive educational technology, digital projectors and cameras,
monitors, audio systems, video systems, network equipment (including servers, network interface
devices, network switches and routers, wireless network equipment, firewalls, network security
equipment, racking, power and cooling equipment, wiring and uninterruptible power supplies), etc.

e Upgrade, replace, acquire and/or install media, audio/visual equipment, and other technology
equipment and fixtures, including smart boards.

MISCELLANEOUS
All listed bond projects include the following as needed:

o Removal of hazardous materials such as asbestos and lead paint as needed.

e Construction and/or installation of access improvements for disabled persons, as required by state and
federal law.

s Planning, designing and providing temporary housing necessary for listed bond projects.

e Acquisition of any rights-of-way, easements, and/or real property made necessary by listed bond
projects, or lease of real property for the listed school facilities projects.

e Necessary onsite and offsite preparation or restoration in connection with new construction,
renovation or remodeling, or installation or removal of relocatable buildings, including demolition of
structures; removing, replacing, or installing irrigation, drainage, utility lines (gas, water, sewer,
clectrical, data and voice, etc.), trees and landscaping; relocating fire access roads; and acquiring any
necessary easements, licenses, land or rights of way made necessary by listed bond projects.

e Address other unforeseen conditions revealed by construction, renovation or modernization
(including plumbing or gas line breaks, dry rot, seismic and structural deficiencies, etc.).

® Acquire or construct storage facilities and other space on an interim basis, as needed to accommodate
construction materials, equipment, and personnel, and interim classrooms (including relocatables) for
students and school functions or other storage for classroom materials displaced during construction.

e Forany project involving renovation, rehabilitation or repair of a building or the major portion of a
building, the District shall be authorized to proceed with new replacement construction/re-
construction instead (including any necessary demolition), if the Board of Trustees of the District
determines that replacement and new construction/re-construction is more practical than renovation,
rehabilitation and repair, considering the building's age, condition, expected remaining life,
comparative cost and other relevant factors,

e Fumishing and equipping of classrooms and other school facilities; furnishing and equipping shall
include initial purchases, and scheduled and necessary replacements, upgrades and updating of
technology.

o All other costs and work necessary and incidental to the listed bond projects.

e  Acquisition of all or a portion of any school site or facility, or an interest therein, or make lease
payments with respect to any school site or facility, encumbered in order to finance the listed school
facilities projects.

16



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

FULL TEXT OF BOND MEASURE

Approval of the District's bond measure does not guarantee that all of the identified projects within this Bond
Project List will be funded beyond what can be completed with local funds generated by the bond measure.
The District plans to pursue funds from the State of California, if available, to complete certain of the
identified facilities projects.

The order in which school facilities projects are listed in the Project List does not suggest an order of priority.
Project priorities will be determined by the Governing Board. The District is unable to anticipate all
unforeseen circumstances which may prevent some of the projects listed above from being undertaken or
completed.

17



OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS



James Marta & Company
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Citizen’s Oversight Committee
and Govemning Board

Cutten Elementary School District

Eureka, CA

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the fund financial statements of the Measure L General
Obligation Bond Building Fund of Cutten Elementary School District (the “District”), as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Measure L General Obligation Bond Building Fund’s fund financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 12, 2025.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Measure L General Obligation Bond Building Fund’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Measure L General
Obligation Bond Building Fund’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825 Phone 916-993-9494  Fax 916-993-9489
jdeolicjpmepa.com  www.jpmcpa.com 18




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Measure L General Obligation Bond Building
Fund’s fund financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of'its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed one instances of noncompliance or other matter that is required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards, and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2025-1.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Measure L
General Obligation Bonds Building Fund’s response to finding identified in our audit and described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The Measure L General Obligation Bonds
Building Fund’s response was not subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. This report is intended solely for the
information and use of management, and the Citizen’s Oversight Committee and Governing Board of Cutten
Elementary School District, others within the entity, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

QOM‘AMJ‘MALF

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 12, 2025

19



James Marta & Company
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON MEASURE L BOND PERFORMANCE

Citizen’s Oversight Committee
and Governing Board

Cutten Elementary School District

Eureka, CA

Report on Performance

We have completed a performance audit of the Measure L General Obligation Bond Building Fund of the
Cutten Elementary School District (the “District”) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, and have
issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2025. Our audit was made in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and, accordingly, included such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Management’s Responsibility

The design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the financial process and
compliance with the requirements of state laws and regulations is the responsibility of management.

Our responsibility is to determine that the District complied with the Measure L General Obligation Bonds in
accordance with Appendix A of the 2024-2025 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies
and State Compliance Reporting.

We conducted our performance audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Appendix A of the 2024-2025 Guide for Annual
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our
findings and conclusions based on our audit objects. We believe that the evidence obtained provides a
reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives.

The results of the procedures performed indicate that the District complied with the requirements identified in
Appendix A of the K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting for the Measure L
General Obligation Bond funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025,

Objectives

The objectives of our performance audit was to determine that the District expended the Measure L General
Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2025 only for purposes approved by voters and only for
specific projects adopted by the District’s Board of Trustees, in accordance with the requirements of
Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)C.

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825 Phone 916-993-9494  Fax 916-993-9489
jdeol(@jpmepa.com  www.jpmepa.com 20




Scope of the Audit

The scope of our performance audit covered the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. The expenditures included
all account and project codes associated with the bond projects. Expenditures before July 1, 2024 and after
June 30, 2025 were nol reviewed as they were not witlin the scope of vur audil.

Methodology

We obtained the general ledger for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.

2. Weselected expenditures to ensure compliance with Proposition 39 and Measure L General Obligation
Bond funding.
3 We verified the mathematical accuracy of the expenditures included in the Measure . General
Obligation Bond Fund detailed general ledger for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.
4. We verified that the funds were generally expended for the construction, renovation, furnishing and
equipping of school facilities constituting authorized bond projects.
5. Solely to assist us in planning and completing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of
the internal controls of the District.
6. We selected a sample of bond expenditures and performed the following:
a. Reviewed the invoices, contracts, warrant copies and other supporting documents to verify the
funds were spent in accordance with list of projects defined in the full Measure L bond text.
b. Forany expenditures that were subject to the bid process, we reviewed supporting documentation
to verify that all applicable bid process requirements were satisfied.
c.  We verified that any change orders for the selected projects were approved by the Board of
Trustees.
7.  We verified that if any funds were used to pay the salaries of District employees were allowable per
opinion 04-110 issued November 9, 2004 by the State ot California Attorney General.
Conclusion

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the Cutten Elementary School District has properly
accounted for the expenditures of Measure L General Obligation Bond Fund. Further, it was noted that the
funds were not used for salaries of school administrators or other operating expenditures. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance with specific requirements.



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our performance audit and the results of that
testing. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s compliance. This report is intended solely for the information and use of
management and Governing Board of Cutten Elementary School District, others within the entity, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

é}owquMuF

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 12, 2025

3]
(]



FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025-1 CITIZENS’ OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
Criteria:
The Citizen’s Oversight Committee is required by California Education Code Section 15282 to include a

minimum of seven members, with at least one member each from the following groups:

1. A member active in a business organization representing the business community located within
the District’s boundaries.

2. A member active in a senior citizens’ organization.
3. A member active in a bona fide taxpayers’ organization
4. A member who is a parent or guardian of a child enrolled in the District

5. A member who is both a parent or guardian of a child enrolled in the District and active in a
parent-teacher organization.

Condition:
The District has not yet been able to fill any of the positions noted above.

Effect:
The District is not in compliance with California Education Code Section 15282.

Cause:

There are a limited number of individuals who are able or willing to serve on the Committee. The District is
continuing its efforts to fill the Committee positions, including a notification on the District’s webpage link to
the bond project that includes a link to an application to serve on the Citizens’ Oversight Committee

Fiscal Impact:

There is no fiscal impact.

Repeat Finding:
Yes, see 2024-1.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the District continue its efforts to fill all the required positions on the Citizens’ Oversight
Committee.

Views of Responsible Officials:

District management agrees with the recommendation and will continue its efforts to fill the positions.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE L GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2024-1 CITIZENS’ OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Criteria:
The Citizen’s Qversight Committee is required by California Education Code Section 15282 to include a
minimum of seven members, with at least one member each from the following groups:

1. A member active in a business organization representing the business community located within
the District’s boundaries.

2. A member active in a senior citizens’ organization,
3. A member active in a bona fide taxpayers’ organization
4. A member who is a parent or guardian of a child enrolled in the District

5. A member who is both a parent or guardian of a child enrolled in the District and active in a
parent-teacher organization.

Condition:
The District has not yet been able to fill any of the positions noted above.

Effect:
The District is not in compliance with California Education Code Section 15282.

Cause:

There are a limited number of individuals who are able or willing to serve on the Committee. The District is
continuing its efforts to fill the Committee positions, including a notification on the District’s webpage link to
the bond project that includes a link to an application to serve on the Citizens’ Oversight Committee

Fiscal Impact:
There is no fiscal impact,

Repeat Finding:
Yes, see 2025-1.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the District continue its efforts to fill all the required positions on the Citizens’ Oversight
Committee.

Views of Responsible Officials:
District management agrees with the recommendation and will continue its efforts to fill the positions.

24



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MEASURE K
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT
EUREKA, CALIFORNIA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2025



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND

BUILDING FUND

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Balance Sheet

Statcment of Revenucs, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance

Notes to the Financial Statements
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Full Text of Bond Measure K
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and on Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards
Independent Auditor’s Report on Measure K Bond Performance
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

PAGE

12

17

19

22

23



James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Citizen’s Oversight Committee
and Governing Board

Cutten Elementary School District

Eureka, California

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the Balance Sheet of Cutten Elementary School District (the District), Measure K General
Obligation Bond Fund (the Fund), and the related statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Cutten Elementary School District Measure K General Obligation Bond Fund (the
Fund) as of June 30, 2025 and the results of its operations the fiscal year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The District’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825 Phone 916-993-9494  Fax 916-993-9489
jdeol@jpmepa.com  www.jpmcpa.com 1




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements referred to above present only the individual Measure K
General Obligation Bond Building Fund and are not intended to present fairly the financial position and
results of operations of the District in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

9



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12,
2025, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

gowMMJ-MLLP

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 12, 2025



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2025
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2356922
Total Assets $ 2,356,922
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ -
Total Liabilities -
Fund balances
Restricted for Measure K bond projects 2,356,922
Total Fund Balances 2,356,922
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,356,922

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN I'UND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

REVENUES
Other local revenucs $ 2,029
Total revenues 2,029
EXPENDITURES
Services and other operating expenditures 145,107
Total expenditures 145,107

Excess(deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (143,078)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from issuance of bonds 2,500,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,500,000
Net change m fund balances 2,356,922

Fund balances, July 1, 2024 -

Fund balances, June 30, 2025 $ 2,356,922

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The accounting policies of the Measure K General Obligation Bond Fund (the Fund) of the Cutten
Elementary School District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The fund accounts for financial transactions in
accordance with the policies and procedures of the California School Accounting Manual.

The Cutten Elementary School District (the "District") is a public educational agency operating
under the applicable laws and regulations of the State of California. It is governed by a five-
member Governing Board elected by registered voters of the District, which comprises an area in
Humboldt County. The District was founded in 1891. The District is located in the central western
portion in Humboldt County, California (the “County’’) and serves the unincorporated area of the
County known as Cutten. The District currently operates two elementary schools: Cutten
Elementary School serves third through sixth grades, and Ridgewood School serves kindergarten
through second grades.

On April 10, 2025, the District issued the first sale (Series A) of the Measure K General Obligation
Bonds (the “Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $2,500,000 to finance specific
construction, repair and improve District facilities. Subsequent to the issuance of the Series A
Bonds, the District has $2,500,000 aggregate principal amount of bonds authorized but unissued
under the 2024 Authorization.

The Bonds were authorized at an election within the District held on November 5, 2024 (the
“Election”) at which at least fifty-five percent of the registered voters voting on the proposition
voted to authorize the issuance and sale of $5,000,000 aggregate principal amount of general
obligation bonds of the District (the “Authorization”). Because the Bond required only 55% of the
vote in accordance with Proposition 39 (Article XIII of the California State Constitution), the
District was required to establish a citizen’s bond oversight committee and to conduct a financial
and performance audit.

The Committee’s oversight goals include ensuring expenditures are within the language of the
ballot measure. The citizens' oversight committee must include, among others, representation of a
bona fide taxpayers association, a business organization and a senior citizens organization. No
district employees or vendors are allowed to serve on the citizens' oversight committee.

The fund financial statements presented are for the Measure K General Obligation Bond Building
Fund. Since this is just one component of the District, these financial statements are not intended to
be a complete presentation of the District’s financial position or results of operations. Accordingly,
these fund statements do not include a government wide financial statement, management
discussion and analysis or related organizational disclosures. The audited financial statements of
Cutten Elementary School District include the Measure K General Obligation Bond Building Fund
activities, related debt and disclosures as well as management’s discussion and analysis.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. FUND ACCOUNTING

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity or retained eamnings,
revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled.

The proceeds from the sale of general obligation bonds and the subsequent expenditure of the bond
funds are accounted for in the Building fund of the District. Any premium received from the sale of
the bonds is deposited in the Bond and Interest Redemption fund of the District. The Measure K
Bond Building Fund forms part and not all of the net financial position in the District’s Building
Fund which contains other sources of funding.

. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The District prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and complies with the policies and
procedures of the Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual.

. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of measurement
made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, “available”
means collectible within one year.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America for all governmental funds. By state law, the District's governing
board must adopt a final budget no later than July | in accordance with State law. A public hearing
must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The District's governing board satisfied
these requirements.

. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase
orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated
when the commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated at June 30.

. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool as the
District is required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their County Treasurer
(Education Code Section 41001). The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds
by California Government Code Section 53648 et seq.

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local
agency bonds, notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered State
warrants or treasury notes; securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances;
commercial paper; certificates of deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan
companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of
beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies; certificates of participation;
obligations with first priority security; and collateralized mortgage obligations.

Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is
estimated based on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at
fair value are stated at cost or amortized cost.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FFOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
H. CAPITAL AND LONG-TERM DEBT

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets and long-term liabilities
associated with the General Obligation Bond Building Fund is accounted for on a spending or
“financial flow” measurement focus. This means that only current assets and liabilities are
generally included on the balance sheet.

The reported fund balances are considered a measure of “available spendable resources”. Thus, the
capital assets and long-term liabilities associated with the Measure K General Obligation Bond
Building Fund are accounted for in the basic financial statements of the District.

I. FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

As of June 30, 2025, fund balances of the Measure K General Obligation Bond Building Fund are
classified as restricted. Restricted funds can only be spent for specific purposes because of
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2025 consist of cash in county treasury in the amount of
$2,356,922.

A. Cash in County Treasury

County pool investments consist of District cash held by the Humboldt County Treasury that is
invested in the county investment pool. The fair value of the District's investment in the pool is
reported in the financial statements at amounts that are based upon the District's pro-rata share of
the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized
cost of that portfolio). The weighted average maturity of the pool is 626 days. The pool is rated
AAA by Standard and Poor’s.

B. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rate will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, as the length of the maturity of an investment increases, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to
interest rate risk by investing in the County Treasury that purchases a combination of shorter term
and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash
flow and liquidity needed for operations.



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
Series A

On April 10, 2025, the District issued the first sale (Series A) of the Measure K General Obligation
Bonds (the “Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $2,500,000 to finance specific construction,
repair and improvement projects approved by the voters of the District and to pay costs of issuance.
The Series A was the first series of bonds issued under the Authorization and are issued on a parity
basis with all outstanding general obligation bonds of the District. The proceeds of the Bonds were
applied as follows:

Sources of Funds

Principal Amount of Bonds $ 2,500,000
Net Original Issue Premium 118,376
Total Sources $ 2,618376

Uses of Funds

Deposited to Building Fund $ 2,352,000
Deposited to Debt Service Fund 72,738
Cost of Issuance 156,138
Underwriter's Discount 37,500

Total Uses $ 2618376

The Bonds are payable from the proceeds of ad valorem property taxes which the Board of Supervisors
of the Humboldt County are obligated to levy and collect ad valorem property taxes for each fiscal year
upon the taxable property of the District in an amount at least sufficient, together with other moneys
available for such purpose, to pay the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on the bonds as the
same becomes due and payable. The bonds consist of serial bonds bearing various fixed interest rates
from 4% to 5.25% and mature in staggered amounts each year starting on August 1, 2025 up through
August 1, 2054.

10



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of June 30, 2025, the Building Fund did not have any bond commitments with respect to unfinished
capital projects.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District’s management evaluated its June 30, 2025 financial statements for subsequent events
through December 12,2025, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Management
is not aware of any subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements.

11



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

FULL TEXT OF BOND MEASURE

BOND AUTHORIZATION

By approval of this measure by at least 55 percent of the registered voters voting on the measure, the Cutten
School District will be authorized to issue and seil bonds of up to $5 million in aggregate principal amount at
interest rates not to exceed legal limits and to provide financing for the specific types of school facilities
projects listed in the Bond Project List described below, subject to all of the accountability requirements
specified below.

ACCOUNTABILITY REQUIREMENTS

The provisions in this section are specifically included in this measure in order that the voters and taxpayers
in the District may be assured that their money will be spent wisely. Expenditures to address specific facilities
needs of the District will be in compliance with the requirements of Article XIIIA, Section 1 (b)(3), of the
State Constitution and the Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds Act of 2000 (codified at
Education Code Sections 15264 and following.)

Evaluation of Needs. The Governing Board has identified detailed facilities needs of the District and has
determined which projects would be financed from a local bond. The Governing Board hereby certifies that it
has evaluated safety, class size reduction, enrollment growth, and information technology needs in developing
the Bond Project List shown below.

Independent Citizens' Oversight Committee. Following approval of this measure, the Governing Board
will establish an Independent Citizens' Oversight Committee, under Education Code Sections 15278 and
following, to ensure bond proceeds are expended only on the types of school facilities projects listed below.
The committee will be established within 60 days of the date when the results of the election appear in the
minutes of the Governing Board.

Performance Audits. The Governing Board will conduct annual, independent performance audits to ensure
that the bond proceeds have been expended only on the school facilities projects listed below.

Financial Audits. The Governing Board will conduct annual, independent financial audits of the bond
proceeds until all of those proceeds have been spent for the school facilities projects listed below.

Government Code Accountability Requirements. As required by Section 53410 of the Government Code,
(1) the specific purpose of the bonds is set forth in this Full Text of the Measure, (2) the proceeds from the
sale of the bonds will be used only for the purposes specified in this measure, and not for any other purpose,
(3) the proceeds of the bonds, when and if issued, will be deposited into a building fund to be held by the
Humboldt County Treasurer, as required by the California Education Code, and (4) the Superintendent of the
District shall cause an annual report to be filed with the Governing Board of the District not later than January
1 of each year, which report shall contain pertinent information regarding the amount of funds collected and
expended, as well as the status of the projects listed in this measure, as required by Sections 53410 and 53411
of the Government Code.

NO TEACHER OR ADMINISTRATOR SALARIES

Proceeds from the sale of bonds authorized by this measure shall be used only for the purposes specified in
Article XIII A, Section 1 (b)(3), those being for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or

12



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

FULL TEXT OF BOND MEASURE

replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities, and the
acquisition or lease of school facilities, and not for any other purpose, including teacher and administrator
salaries and other school operating expenses.

STATE MATCHING FUNDS

The following statement is included in this measure pursuant to Education Code Section 15122.5: Approval
of this measure does not guarantee that the proposed project or projects that are the subject of bonds under
this measure will be funded beyond the local revenues generated by this measure. The District's proposal for
the project or projects described below may assume the receipt of matching state funds, which, if available,
could be subject to appropriation by the Legislature or approval of a statewide bond measure.

BOND PROJECT LIST

The Bond Project List below lists the specific projects the District proposes to finance with proceeds of the
bonds. The Bond Project List shall be considered a part of the bond proposition and shall be reproduced in
any official document required to contain the full statement of the bond proposition. Listed projects will be
completed as needed at a particular school or facility site according to Board-established priorities, and the
order in which such projects appear on the Bond Project List is not an indication of priority for funding or
completion. Any authorized repairs shall be capital expenditures. The Bond Project List does not authorize
non-capital expenditures. Each project is assumed to include its share of costs of the election and bond
issuance, construction-related costs, such as project and construction management, architectural, engineering,
inspection and similar planning and testing costs, demolition and interim housing costs, legal, accounting and
similar fees, costs related to the independent annual financial and performance audits, a contingency for
unforeseen design and construction costs, and other costs incidental to or necessary for completion of the
listed projects (whether the related work is performed by the District or third parties). The final cost of each
project will be determined as plans are finalized, construction bids are awarded, and projects are completed.
In addition, certain construction funds expected from non-bond sources, including State of California grant
funds for eligible projects, have not yet been secured. Therefore, the Board cannot guarantee that the bonds
will provide sufficient funds to allow completion of all listed projects. Altematively, if the District obtains
unexpected funds from non-bond sources with respect to listed projects, such projects may be enhanced,
supplemented or expanded to the extent of such funds. Some projects may be subject to further government
approvals, including by State officials and boards and/or local environmental or agency approval. Inclusion of
a project on the Bond Project List is not a guarantee that the project will be completed (regardless of whether
bond funds are available).

The specific projects authorized to be financed with proceeds of the bonds under this proposition are as
follows:

SCHOOL MODERNIZATION AND RENOVATION MEASURE PROJECTS
The following projects are authorized to be financed Districtwide:

School Renovation, Construction and Upgrade Projects

e Modernize, upgrade, renovate, rehabilitate, re-configure, expand and/or upgrade classrooms,
classroom buildings, restrooms, common areas and school support facilities (including library,
multipurpose room/auditorium, food storage, preparation and service, cafeteria and office/staff

13



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

FULL TEXT OF BOND MEASURE

support facilities), whether permanent, portable or modular, including interior and exterior (as
applicable) doors, windows, door and window hardware, roofs, rain gutters and downspouts, pillars,
structural supports, walls, ceilings and floors and finishes, paint, siding, insulation, casework,
surfaces, cabinets, secured storage, carpets, drapes, window coverings, infrastructure, lighting, sinks,
drinking fountains, fixtures, signage, furniture and equipment.

Renovate, replace, upgrade, acquire, install and/or integrate major site/building/utility systems,
equipment and related infrastructure and housing, including lighting, electrical (including wiring and
related infrastructure for modem technology), heating, refrigeration, cooling and ventilation
(including HVAC), plumbing, water, sewer, gas, irrigation, drainage, and energy
efficiency/management monitoring systems, networks, fixtures and equipment and controls.

Make safety and accessibility improvements and/or eliminate or mitigate health and satety risks
and/or comply with local, state and federal building, health, safety, access and other related
requirements, including requirements of the Field Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA).

Upgrade, construct, expand and/or acquire and install safety and security improvements, equipment,
fixtures and systems, including fencing, gates, master key and lock systems, lighting, alarm systems,
fire detection and suppression systems, emergency signage, safety doors, camera and video
surveillance systems, and emergency communication systems.

Construct, replace, improve, renovate and/or acquire and install playgrounds, playfields and other
play spaces, including replacing turf and installing new irrigation and drainage systems, and acquire,
improve, replace and/or upgrade playground equipment and fixtures.

Make energy-efticiency upgrades and acquire and install energy efficient equipment and systems to
reduce carbon footprint, to promote energy efficiency, reduce maintenance costs and promote climate
resiliency and sustainability, including sustainable building improvements (e.g., windows, lighting,
electrical systems panel, HVAC, water systems, distribution and storage systems, energy
efficiency/management monitoring systems, networks, fixtures, equipment and controls and etc.).
Repair or replace roofs.

Replace portable classrooms with permanent classrooms.

Renovate, construct, replace and/or modernize classrooms for current educational standards,
including acquiring, installing and/or upgrading technology equipment, fixtures and infrastructure.
Construct, reconfigure, modify and/or acquire and install school facilities and improvements to
school grounds to create innovative indoor and outdoor learning areas and spaces, including outdoor
learning areas, shade structures, and walkways.

Construct, replace, improve, renovate and/or acquire and install restrooms.

Remove, repair, and refinish building and site areas damaged by dry rot, water, termites, etc.
Construct, replace, improve, renovate and/or acquire and install Early Learning Centers and
construct, improve and/or expand Transitional Kindergarten facilities and learning spaces.
Construct, replace, improve, renovate and/or acquire and install physical education facilities and
grounds, including gymnasiums, locker rooms, fields, courts, turf, outside instructional areas, paved
and other hard surfaces, and replace, acquire and/or install furniture, equipment and fixtures in such
facilities and areas.

Renovate, replace, upgrade, expand, and/or install walls, gates, fencing and landscaping.

Acquire, install, upgrade and/or construct renewable energy and/or energy-saving systems,
improvements and equipment, including electricity generation and distribution systems and/or water
heating systems, natural light improvements, upgraded insulation and roofing, efficient lighting,
windows and window coverings, shade structures, energy management and conservation systems,

14



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

FULL TEXT OF BOND MEASURE

and other passive technologies, and structures to support such systems, improvements and equipment
and related infrastructure.

e Improve student access to computers and modem technology by updating and/or acquiring and
installing technology equipment, fixtures and infrastructure, including computers, tablets, mobile
devices, software, interactive educational technology, digital projectors and cameras, monitors, audio
systems, video systems, network equipment (including servers, network interface devices, network
switches and routers, wireless network equipment, firewalls, network security equipment, racking,
power and cooling equipment, wiring and uninterruptible power supply equipment and systems),
backup power systems, etc; rehabilitate and replace such equipment, fixtures and infrastmcture as
needed in the future. Technology equipment, fixtures and infrastructure includes existing technology
equipment, fixtures and infrastructure as well as technology equipment and fixtures and infrastructure
developed in the future.

e Renovate, re-configure, modify and/or improve existing school facilities and grounds, and equip and
furnish such school facilities and to enable such school facilities to serve a dual use as an emergency
shelter and community gathering center and/or emergency operations center.

All or portions of these Projects may be used as joint-use projects within the meaning of Section
17077.42(c) of the Education Code (or any successor provision).

MISCELLANEOUS

All listed bond projects include the following as needed:

e Planning, designing and providing temporary housing necessary for listed bond projects.

e The inspection, sampling and analysis of grounds, buildings and building materials to determine the
presence of hazardous materials or substances, including asbestos, lead, etc., and the encapsulation,
removal, disposal and other remediation or control of such hazardous materials and substances.

e Seismic and historical evaluations, site surveys (including topographic, geological and utility
surveys), and infrastructure analyses.

e Necessary onsite and offsite preparation or restoration in connection with new construction,
renovation or remodeling, or installation or removal of relocatable buildings or other temporary
buildings, including demolition of structures; removing, replacing, or installing irrigation, drainage,
utility lines (gas, water, sewer, electrical, data and voice, etc.), trees and landscaping; and relocating
fire access roads or ingress/egress pathways.

» Address other unforeseen conditions revealed by construction, renovation or modernization
(including plumbing or gas line breaks, dry rot, scismic and structural deficiencies, etc.).

e Acquire or construct other improvements required to comply with building codes, including seismic
safety requirements, the Field Act, and access requirements.

e Acquisition of any rights-of-way, easements, licenses and/or real property made necessary by listed
bond projects, or lease of real property made necessary by the listed bond projects.

e  Acquire or construct storage facilities and other space on an interim basis, as needed to accommodate
construction materials, equipment, and personnel.

e Fumishing and equipping of classrooms and other school facilities; furnishing and equipping shall
include initial purchases, and scheduled and necessary replacements, upgrades and updating of
technology.

o All other costs and work necessary or incidental to the listed bond projects.

15



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

FULL TEXT OF BOND MEASURE

PROJECTS INVOLVING RENOVATION, REHABILITATION OR REPAIR

For any project involving renovation, rehabilitation or repair of a building or the major portion of a building,
the District shall be authorized to proceed with new replacement construction instead (including any
necessary demolition) if the Board determines that replacement new construction is more practical than
renovation, rehabilitation or repair, considering the building's age, condition, expected remaining life,
comparative cost and other relevant factors.

All or portions of these Projects may be used as joint-use projects within the meaning of Section 17077.42(c)
of the Education Code (or any successor provision).

Approval of the District's bond measure does not guarantee that all of the identified projects within this Bond
Project List will be funded beyond what can be completed with local funds generated by the bond measure.
The District plans to pursue funds from the State of California, if available, to complete certain of the
identified facilities projects.

The order in which school facilities projects are listed in the Project List does not suggest an order of priority.
Project priorities will be determined by the Governing Board. The District is unable to anticipate all
unforeseen circumstances which may prevent some of the projects listed above from being undertaken or
completed.

16



OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS



James Marta & Company
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Citizen’s Oversight Committee
and Governing Board

Cutten Elementary School District

Eureka, CA

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the fund financial statements of the Measure K General
Obligation Bond Building Fund of Cutten Elementary School District (the “District”), as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Measure K General Obligation Bond Building Fund’s fund financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 12, 2025.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Measure K General Obligation Bond Building Fund’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Measure K General
Obligation Bond Building Fund’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that wec consider to be matcrial weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825  Phone 916-993-9494  Fax 916-993-9489
ideolicc jpmepa.com  www.jpmepa.com 17




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Measure K General Obligation Bond Building
Fund’s fund financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. This report is intended solely for the
information and use of management, and the Citizen’s Oversight Committee and Governing Board of Cutten
Elementary School District, others within the entity, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

goN“MJ-/CMMLLF

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 12, 2025

18



James Marta & Company
Certified Public Accountants

Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON MEASURE K BOND PERFORMANCE

Citizen’s Oversight Committee
and Goveming Board

Cutten Elementary School District

Eureka, CA

Report on Performance

We have completed a performance audit of the Measure K General Obligation Bond Building Fund of the
Cutten Elementary School District (the “District”) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, and have
issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2025. Our audit was made in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and, accordingly, included such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Management's Responsibility

The design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the financial process and
compliance with the requirements of state laws and regulations is thc rcsponsibility of management.

Our responsibility is to determine that the District complied with the Measure K General Obligation Bonds in
accordance with Appendix A of the 2024-2025 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies
and State Compliance Reporting.

We conducted our performance audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Appendix A of the 2024-2025 Guide for Annual
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our
findings and conclusions based on our audit objects. We believe that the evidence obtained provides a
reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives.

The results of the procedures performed indicate that the District complied with the requirements identified in
Appendix A of the K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting for the Measure K
General Obligation Bond funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.

Objectives

The objectives of our performance audit was to determine that the District expended the Measure K General
Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2025 only for purposes approved by voters and only for
specific projects adopted by the District’s Board of Trustees, in accordance with the requirements of
Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)C.

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825  Phone 916-993-9494  Fax 916-993-9489
jdeolieg jpmepa.com  www. pmcepa.com 19




Scope of the Audit

The scope of our performance audit covered the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. The expenditures included
all account and project codes associated with the bond projects. Expenditures before July 1, 2024 and after
June 30, 2025 were not reviewed as they were not within the scope of our audit.

Methodology

1.

We obtained the general ledger for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.

2. Weselected expenditures to ensure compliance with Proposition 39 and Measure K General Obligation
Bond funding.
3. We verified the mathematical accuracy of the expenditures included in the Measure K General
Obligation Bond Fund detailed general ledger for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.
4. We verified that the funds were generally expended for the construction, renovation, furnishing and
equipping of school facilities constituting authorized bond projects.
5. Solely to assist us in planning and completing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of
the internal controls of the District.
6. We selected a sample of bond expenditures and performed the following:
a. Reviewed the invoices, contracts, warrant copies and other supporting documents to verify the
funds were spent in accordance with list of projects defined in the full Measure K bond text.
b.  For any expenditures that were subject to the bid process, we reviewed supporting documentation
to verify that all applicable bid process requirements were satisfied.
c.  We verified that any change orders for the selected projects were approved by the Board of
Trustees.
7. We verified that if any funds were used to pay the salaries of District employees were allowable per
opinion 04-110 issued November 9, 2004 by the State of California Attorney General.
Conclusion

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the Cutten Elementary School District has properly
accounted for the expenditures of Measure K General Obligation Bond Fund. Further, it was noted that the
funds were not used for salaries of school administrators or other operating expenditures. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance with specific requirements.

20



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our performance audit and the results of that
testing. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s compliance. This report is intended solely for the information and use of
management and Governing Board of Cutten Elementary School District, others within the entity, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specitied parties.

%«M,LWALF

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 12, 2025

21



FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

No matters to report.

[\
o



CUTTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEASURE K GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
BUILDING FUND

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

No matters to report.

23






INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE
AGREEMENT
Effective July 1, 2025

This Multi-District Interdistrict Attendance Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered
into by the school districts of Humboldt County listed in Attachment A to this Agreement, and
is made pursuant to California Education Code section 46600 ef seq. The parties agree to the
terms of this Agreement through June 30, 2026. This Agreement affects student enrollment
upon district board approval of this Agreement and through the 2026-2027 school year.

L.

RECITALS:

A.

California’s Education Code permits two or more school districts to enter into
an agreement for a term not to exceed five (5) years to allow pupils to enroll in a
school district that is not their district of residence through a process known as
“interdistrict transfer.”

California Education Code requires school districts to respond to a Parent’s
request for an interdistrict transfer, if made in the current year, within thirty (30)
calendar days of the request; and allows for Parents to appeal any denial of their
request.

California’s Education Code requires school districts to respond to “future year”
requests for interdistrict transfers as soon as possible but no later than 14
calendar days after the commencement of instruction in the year for which the
interdistrict transfer is sought.

Humboldt County has a history of allowing pupils to attend school districts that
are not the pupil’s district of residence where the capacity exists at the receiving
district.

This Agreement addresses the interdistrict transfer process for parent requests to
transfer a pupil during the current year or to transfer a pupil in the future school
year. Parents benefit from knowing if the student will attend their preferred
district in the future school year. Districts benefit from knowing accurate
student enrollment projections by early February for the upcoming school year,
to determine if layoff notices are warranted in advance of the legally mandated
March 15 deadline to issue layoff notices. Districts need to analyze projected
enrollment and school boards must consider taking action on layoffs, usually at
their February board meetings.

This Agreement establishes deadlines for interdistrict transfers. The parties
recognize that a countywide information dissemination campaign will be
critical to this Agreement’s success.



G. Each district will maintain board policies and regulations that address
acceptance, rejection, revocations and enrollment priorities; and operate in
conformance with those policies and regulations. Examples of enrollment
priorities may include, but are not limited to, the following: sibling(s) attend,
children of staff member(s), older sibling(s) previously attended the school,
and others.

IL. TERM OF AGREEMENT:

This Agreement shall take effect for each party on July 1, 2025 or upon its execution of the
Agreement, whichever comes later, and shall expire on June 30, 2026. The parties understand
that as to each party to the Agreement, the Agreement does not take effect unless that party’s
governing board approves the Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any past interdistrict
agreements among the parties to this Agreement that are in conflict with this Agreement.

III. DEFINITIONS:

Active Military Parent: An “active military duty parent” means a parent with full-time
military duty status in the active uniformed service of the United States, including members of
the National Guard and the State Guard on active duty orders pursuant to Chapter 1209
(commencing with Section 12301) and Chapter 1211 (commencing with Section 12401) of Part
IT of Subtitle E of Title 10 of the United States Code.

Capacity: A district’s determination of the space and resources it has available for students.

Capacity Determination (for purposes of establishing a waitlist): A capacity determination
is made by the District of Proposed Enrollment no later than 15 days after the close of the
Priority One enrollment window. Approval of an interdistrict transfer requires that the
receiving District of Proposed Enrollment have capacity for the student.

Current year request: A request for interdistrict transfer received beginning 15 calendar days
before the commencement of instruction in the school year for which interdistrict transfer is
sought and anytime thereafter for that school year.

Denial: For purposes of appealing to the county board of education, a “denial” is a written
rejection of a request, but also includes a school district's failure to provide written
notification of the school district's decision within the timelines prescribed in this Agreement.
A “denial” shall not include any of the following:

L. A request that has been deemed abandoned, meaning the Parent has
not met required timelines established by the district.

2. An existing interdistrict transfer permit that has been revoked or rescinded
in accordance with the policy of the governing board of the school
district.



3. A denial by the District of Proposed Enrollment when no permit has
been first issued by the District of Residence

District of Proposed Enrollment or “DPE”: A school district other than the school
district in which the Parent of a pupil resides, and in which the Parent of the pupil
intends to enroll the pupil through an interdistrict transfer.

District of Residence or “DOR”: A school district in which the Parent of a pupil resides and
in which the pupil would otherwise be required to enroll pursuant to the compulsory education

requirements.

Enrollment Window: The period of time that interdistrict transfer requests for the upcoming
year shall be considered by both the District of Residence and the District of Proposed

Enrollment.

Future year request: A request for interdistrict transfer received up until 15 calendar days
before the commencement of instruction in the school year for which interdistrict transfer
is sought. A request received 15 calendar days before or thereafter is a “current year”

request.
Hardship: Extreme difficulty or suffering.

Interdistrict transfer or “IDT”: Interdistrict transfer; the act of a student attending a school
district that is not the student’s district of residence.

IDT Permit: The form which authorizes an individual interdistrict transfer, signed by the
District of Residence, the District of Proposed Enrollment, and the Parent. The form is
attached as Attachment B to this Agreement. Permits are good for one (1) school year. Parents
must re- apply for each school year.

IDT Request: The formal process of a Parent seeking written permission from both the District
of Residence and the District of Proposed Enrollment for the child to attend a school district
outside of his or her District of Residence. A District of Residence makes the initial
determination as to whether an interdistrict transfer request shall be granted; the District of
Proposed Enrollment then reviews the request and determines whether it will grant the request
for the transfer to the District of Proposed Enrollment.

New Sibling Requests: Requests for a student to attend a District of Proposed Enrollment
when the student’s sibling(s) will be enrolled at the District of Proposed Enrollment in the

Same year.

Parent: The natural or adoptive parent or guardian, the person having legal custody, or other
educational rights holder.

Reasonable Enrollment Activities: Activities that a District of Residence may require a
Parent to participate in to demonstrate the District of Residence’s ability to meet the student



and/or Parent’s needs. “Reasonable enrollment activities” include a discussion with the
District of Residence’s school administration or their designees, attending an orientation
meeting, a site visit, and/or review of informational literature.

Renewals: A renewal of a previously granted Interdistrict Transfer Permit. Renewals must be
sought annually.

School-level transitions: Transitions from one grade span to another, based upon the District
of Residence’s transitions, e.g. elementary school to middle school, or middle school to high
school.

Victim of an act of bullying: A “victim of an act of bullying” means a pupil that has been
determined to have been a victim of bullying by an investigation pursuant to the complaint
process described in Education Code Section 234.1. The bullying must have been committed
by any pupil in the school district of residence, and the parent of the pupil must have filed a
written complaint regarding the bullying with the school, school district personnel, or a local
law enforcement agency.

IV. INTERDISTRICT TRANSFER REQUESTS:

Parents are advised that this Agreement establishes deadlines to apply for enrollment in a
school district for the upcoming school year.

A. Preferential Enrollment (“Priority One Open Enrollment Window”):
Requests for an IDT for the Future School Year Received from
December 1 through February 1

l. The DOR will approve an IDT Request submitted by a Parent if it is
received at the DOR between December 1st through February 1st by
4:00 p.m. each year if Parents have complied with the process
described herein. If February 1st falls on a weekend, the deadline will
be the next school day after February 1st. IDT Requests for the future
school year may not be submitted prior to December 1st.

2. The DOR will have 10 school days after the close of the enrollment
window to approve the request and to forward the IDT Request to the
DPE. The DOR may deny a Parent request for an IDT if the Parent does
not participate in DOR Reasonable Enrollment Activities, absent good
cause such as hardships due to medical conflicts, work schedule, child
care, transportation, language barriers, etc. All other IDT Requests
received within the Priority Onc Enrollment Window will be approved
by the DOR, unless the Parent withdraws their IDT Request.

3. The DPE will have 15 school days atter the close of the Priority One
Open Enrollment Window (or 5 school days from receipt of the



approved IDT Permit from the DOR, whichever is later) to approve
or deny the IDT Request and to notify both the Parent and DOR of
the DPE’s decision.

Renewals and New Sibling Requests will be approved and
will follow the same timelines listed within Priority One,
above.

A DOR may require a Parent to participate in Reasonable
Enrollment Activities prior to granting a renewal when the
student transfer involves a School Level Transition (defined
above).

Priority Two Enrollment Window — Requests for an IDT for the
Future School Year Received After February 1 and for Requests
Made In the Current School Year

IDT Requests received from a Parent for the current school year, and for the
future year received after the February 1 enrollment window, will be processed
and approved by a DOR under the following circumstances:

L.

Parent did not reside in Humboldt County school districts’
boundaries prior to Priority One deadline.

Parent moved from one district to another district subsequent to
the Priority One deadline.

Parent has a reasonable argument and a compelling reason,
including hardship, such as medical conflicts, work schedule,
child care, transportation, language barriers, for why the Priority
One deadline was not met, or why the circumstance did not
warrant a request for an IDT at the time of the Priority One
deadline.

Parent has a reasonable explanation for not being able to
participate in DOR Reasonable Enrollment Activity.

The DOR may require the Parent to participate in Reasonable
Enrollment Activities as outlined in Subsection IV.A.2. (Priority
One). If approved by the DOR, IDT Requests will be forwarded to
the DPE for approval or denial.



V.

C. Wait Listed Students for the Upcoming Year

If a DOR granted an IDT Request for the future year, that approval is valid until the
commencement of the DPE’s new school year. This is to allow time for school
districts to determine if there is capacity for the student. Each DPE is limited to
accepting the equivalent of two students per grade level from its waitlist, or 7% of the
school’s total enrollment from the waitlist, whichever is greater. The waitlist must be
established at the time of the DPE’s lottery or capacity determination.

STATUTORY PREFERENCES:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, regardless of when the following requests are made, these
preferences exist outside of the timeframes set forth above.

VI.

A. Victims of Bullying

If a school within the DOR has only one school offering the grade level of the victim of an
act of bullying, and therefore there is no option for an intradistrict transfer, the victim of an
act of bullying may apply for an interdistrict transfer and the DOR shall not prohibit the
transfer if the DPE approves the application for transfer.

B. Children of Active Military Service Men and Women

Notwithstanding any other terms of this agreement, a DOR shall not prohibit the transfer
of a pupil who is a child of an active military duty parent to a school district of proposed
enrollment if the DPE approves the application for transfer.

C. Effect of DPE Accepting Such Students

A DPE that elects to accept an interdistrict transfer of a student who is the victim of an act
of bullying or a child of active military service men or women shall accept all pupils who
apply to transfer under these statutory preference until the DPE is at maximum capacity.
A DPE shall ensure that pupils admitted under this preference are selected through an
unbiased process that prohibits an inquiry into or evaluation or consideration of whether
or not a pupil should be enrolled based on academic or athletic performance, physical
condition, proficiency in English, family income, or any of the individual characteristics
set forth in Section 220 of the Education Code, including, but not limited to, race or
ethnicity, gender, gender identity, gender expression, and immigration status.

APPEALS:

Parents have a right to appeal to the Humboldt County Office of Education (“HCOE”) when a
school district denies an IDT Request. HCOE shall process these appeals in accordance with
California Education Code section 46601, the terms of this Agreement, and HCOE’s Board
Policies and Regulations. Parents are entitled to notice of their right to appeal to HCOE.



Failure to appeal within the required time is good cause for denial of an appeal.

Students who are under consideration for expulsion, or who have been expelled pursuant to
California Education Code sections 48915 and 48918, may not appeal interdistrict attendance
denials or rescissions while expulsion proceedings are pending, or during the term of the
expulsion.

Appeals must be filed by the Parent within thirty (30) days of a denial of a request. See
“definitions” above for the definition of a denial.

Provisional Enrollment in DPE Pending Appeal: The parties agree that no DPE will grant
provisional enrollment of a pupil pending an appeal before Humboldt County Office of
Education (“HCOE”), except that a DPE may provisionally enroll a student who has been
attending a DPE school in the immediate past and who has been historically continuously
enrolled. For example, a Parent moves from District A in April to District B, but wants her
child to continue attending District A for continuity. A pupil shall be eligible for provisional
attendance only upon providing reasonable evidence that a final decision for a request for
interdistrict transfer is pending either with the DOR, the DPE, or HCOE. Where provisional
enrollment is granted under these limited circumstances, and for a period not to exceed two
school months, the governing board of a DPE may provisionally admit to the schools of the
school district a pupil who resides in another school district, pending a decision of the
governing boards of the two school districts, or by HCOE upon appeal, regarding the
interdistrict attendance. The period of provisional attendance begins on the first day of the
pupil's attendance in the school. If a decision by the school districts or HCOE has not been
rendered by the conclusion of two school months, and the school districts or HCOE are still
operating within the prescribed timelines, the pupil shall not be allowed to continue
attendance at the DPE. If the pupil is subject to compulsory full-time education pursuant to
California Education Code section 48200, he or she shall enroll in the DOR or in another
educational program.

Provisional attendance shall not guarantee that a school district or HCOE will approve a
request for interdistrict transfer.

VII. REVOCATIONS:

Neither a DOR nor a district that has accepted a student on an interdistrict transfer may revoke
an IDT for a student after June 30 following the completion of grade 10, or for pupils in grades
11 or 12. Any other IDT Permit may be revoked pursuant to the policies and regulations of
either the district that has accepted a student on an interdistrict transfer or DOR, or as set forth
on the IDT Permit itself, as permitted by law. If a school district revokes an IDT Permit, it will
promptly provide written notice of the revocation to the other district.

VIII. CHANGES IN LAW:

If any law modifies or conflicts with a provision of this Agreement, the new law shall prevail as



if written into the Agreement. A change in law, or a finding that one portion of this Agreement
is not legally compliant, shall not invalidate the other terms of the Agreement.

IX. COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC AWARENESS

In order to maximize awareness of the interdistrict transfer process the Humboldt County
Office of Education (HCOE), in partncrship with participating districts, will coordinate a
public awareness campaign that will include print, radio, and social media
advertisements. In addition, school districts, charter schools, early childhood providers,
and other relevant public/private agencies will receive copies of media print materials to
post on their websites and/or share with families. The public awareness campaign will
begin in November of each year and run through the end of the priority one window.

ATTACHMENT A: LIST OF PARTIES
ATTACHMENT B: IDT REQUEST
FORM



For Each Party;

School District

Signature of Superintendent and Date:

Board approval:

Date:







"ONI

6861-102 (508) 00£8-628 (929) 0/18-966 (016)
GE0E6 VD 'AAVYNXO 90016 VD 'VIAVDIV Z05Y6 VO ‘'YAIWVTY
901 3LNS INNIAV VIIOLDIA 'S 1061 INNIAY sl HINON 128 AYMAIVA AVE JOIYVYH €912

9202 ‘wZl Adonuor

uolPIUSSDId UD|d SDI[IDD

AUNOD) JJOQUINKH

Y

1OUISIQ
|OOYOS US|n)d




"ONI

MO

"S312Ud3UIIU0) 10 papn|dul BAI3saL weldoud e yum
‘TE-TEOT Ad Y3nouyl 97—SZ0Z A4 Buluueds ‘saseyd oml ul pauueld ase sjuswanosdw| .

"uol||lw §9°'8S Ajo1ewixoidde Jo JUSWISIAUI |BI0] B 10} ‘SUIpuny 91e1S Ul €68'T08°¢S
pajewllsa ue pue spuoq ) aJnseslN Ul TTO9G8‘VS Sopnjpul Suipun) pPalIIUSP] .

"Jooyds uajnm e sadeds
Hoddns pue 3ujuJed) Jo uoleziuispow pue ‘Alejuswaly poomaspry 1e Aslua Alajes
pue 3ulp|Ing WOOISSE|d pue uoljelisiulwpe || aseyd e apn|dul sjuswanoidwi pasodold

'SEaJe JOOPINO pue ‘SMOPUIM ‘Swiele all) ‘SwalsAs DYAH Suipnjoul ‘saiioe) Suide
SS9Jppe 0} sapesddn ainjdoniisenul pue UONEZIUIBPOW pPalinbal S3IIUSPl ue|d Yl -

‘looyas Aiejuswalg poomaspiy
pue jooyds usnn) 1e spaau Aujoe) sssippe 03 ANjqi8ya uoneziulapow welsoid
AJj1oe4 jooyds 81815 Yum 3uipuny puog uonesd)qQ |e4auUlD ) aInseain susije ueld syl

(pJeog) saaisnJ] Jo pieog (1014151@) 1211SIQ [00YIS USIND
9y} 0} ue|d Sanljioeq 9z0z 3yl asaid 03 pasea|d si (M4D) U] ‘SIDIUIM SBJ0[4 ||]PMP|RD

ue|d 9yl jo Alewwng



"D NI

MO

"uol|iw £06°£59°8S S! ‘@ntasal weadoud ay)
duipnjoul 1502 wesSoud pajewnyss |e1o] puess Yl

$1S0J UOI31ONJISUOD 34NiNny U} UoIIejjul
104 A2uaduiuod apiaold se [[am se uoIIINIISUOI pue
ugisop 3ulnp asiie 1eyy sucilpuod pajeddnueun

V698 8 NPRPEIMALEEY Jo sanss| doueldwiod apod Aioleindas |eijualod
LL9'GET'T S 9AIDSAY Weidolyd . . -
rees't |FIoL iuswshoidwpesadong|  SS9APPE 0} Pasn 9g ued aAJasas wesSoud ay| .
| Z08'7E6'T S [leroL
000557 3 sjuswaeaosdwyi 91(S J0131X] msowcm__mUm__>_| Em.‘_mo.hQ _NHOH WF_“_. LO"_. U@UC@EEOU@L
[{ANW A4S S 107 Bupyied jo Jupepinsay , ,
210201 S svaR oo | SI UOllW  //9'GET'TS JO dAJasas wedSoud vy .
66£°72L S sjuRWBACIdW| DYAH
1S¥'vee S - o I ~ suawiaAoidwy Jejog 219
190'18 3 (s9[qeL Yaun maN pue Sunuied) syuswancidw] ydi , ,
voect S| - ~ spunoifheld pue eqiaxseg | (3'844) luswidinba pue aunjiuing ‘ssay jeaoudde
looyas uannd)  Aguage ‘sadlAlas uoldadsul pue Suns9l ‘SIINISS
STY'(85'S S [leaoL
2L2'T0E S S]UBWAAO0LAW| SIS J0113IXT SNOBUR)IISIA mC_u._—.ngOU \mwwn_. Cm_mwﬁ ®U3_UC_ S1500 M%Om @Sn_u -
00560t S {84myuing ‘Buiool4 ‘Juied) swoodssepd 7 o} UO0I1RZIUIBPOIA|
199759 S . smopuim apesddn (4exsow pue syoduq
66£72L g swewsroidWI JVAH | /.q. .
S sspeiddn wiey sy | 8 ©) $19SH UOIIONIISUOD Y} WO 1 NS SISO pUeH
| 0006467 S| 100Yas 03 Aiyu3 Atajes pue Buipiing (T) Wooisse[s pue Ujupy man || aseqd
|ooyas poomadpry '$1500 ,}jos,, pue , piey,
P RSy D JO uoljeulqwod e judsaldal S1S03 palewiysa Ayl .

"Sjuswaaoiduwil
pasodoid ayi jonsisuod pue udisap o1 padinbay

SIuoliw /ZZzes'LS jo  |elol psjewnss uy .

SjusWaAoJIdW| pasodold JO SISO PaleWlS]



"ON| ———

M3D ﬂ
Sjuswanoldw|
IS JO11931X] SNOQUE||IISIIN
(34NN sjuawanosdw| pasodou SuUonIpuo) 3ullsix
‘Sul100]4 ‘Sunuied) 7 ‘9's‘ys'z'T SWOO. (N Y d _, IPUO) sulisix3y

‘SWO0JSSe|D UDADS O} UOIIEZIUIBPOIA

s139{00 0o |
—

"901}J0 uoljeJlsiulpe pue (829'gy — :
SWOOY) SWOOJSSeD  dAl  Suipnjoul — —
‘Buip|ing woousse|) juauew.ad YioN - —

9yl ul smopulm apesddn pue aoe|day . | : : |

‘LT pue ‘9T'GT € Z’T swoousse|d
Sguip|ing Jejnpow CESITN pue
a|geniod s34yl SBuipnpul ‘swoolsse)d
XIS Ul SswaisAs JVYAH opesddn .

"?aueldwod _

pue Ajajes anoudw) 03 apesddn wajisAs e 2
wieje aJly apim-sndwed e a|dwo)y . E
i =

‘(11 9seyd) _

Sluswadueyua Alajes pue 3uidus) mau

dutpnpaui ‘jooyds ay3 03 A1us ulew ayj
ugisapas pue 3ulpjing (1) woousse])
pue uolleJISIUIWIPY MIN B 1INJISUOD)

sjuswanoidwl| pasodold — Aiejuswa|3z poomadpiy



"ON| ————

MO

LQi0W JR0S - i
ol g H ‘

3ajaRiIng E =
Yoy -m.__u

An)y

sjuawanoidw) pasodo.d

SjuswiaAoIdw| 8IS J01IDIXT SNOBUR||BISIA]

107 8ubjied Jo BudeNSDY

9J1}0 1u0U4 01 sjuswdAoldwi} HJYAH

6T ‘8T ‘9T ‘ST Sulooy pue Aieiqi] ay) 01 syuswanoidwi IYAH  «
sjuswaAosdwi Jejos .

(so|qel youn maN pue Buijuied) ¥dIA sroudw| .

puno.idAe|d pue |[eqiayseq Sudepnsay .

suonipuo) gunsixy

Sluswanosdw| pasodold — Aseluawa|g usann)



"ONI

MO m

‘Sjuswanoldwi salyl|ioey
pasodoid ayl poddns o031 paynuapl s

$92Un0s 3uipuny Ul $06°£598S JO [BIOLY .

100YIS ualin)
10} juswasinquial ul 090°/L/9S pue
‘100YdS uLNIN) 40} 63Y'9TLTS ‘|O0YOS
poomasply 1o} HYE‘BOVTS Sepnjul

062598 S $921n0S jejoy. 9
uipun uolleziuiapo I ole -

I S lpunj  UONEZIUISPON  PIV  91elS
090'£L9 > e gty =1 1 SHIQOYPSHERID) | Suipuny
68Y9TL'T S [o0YdS usnn) D
rre'80v'T S| ~looyss poomasply | UONEZIUIBPOIA Pl 331e1S Ul €68°TO8'ES

ANjiq18113 uoneziuiapopy piy ajeis oAl9Jdad 0} pP3jewllisa SI 1DUISIQ 9YLl .
110958t S [1exo)

- S S '000°005°2S
0000057 % . 8%uesBIC | o 3duenss| g sales 8Z0g pauueld e pue
TT095€C S V $8l9S §20¢ ‘ ‘ :

O oQgdiuenssi Soldo
uolijeziioyny puog 09 SZ0OT N, 24nsean 11095¢ Nm 3 'V H95 5¢0¢
€ Sopnjoul mc_chu_ puoq i, °2inses|n .
|ejoy $324N0S pajewysy UonezLoyINY puog

uonesiiqQ |edaudn 5z0Z M, dINSesN
ul uoljiw TT0'9S8'vS sey PuIsIq ayl -

Spun4 JO $32JN0S P31EWIIS]



"ONt ———

MO @

Alejuaws|3 poomadply pue |0oyds usnny 1e syafoud

uoneziuispow 3|qi31) 1oddns 03 piy 91e1S Ul Uol|jiw 87°€S Ajo1ewixoidde s3euana| ued PIISI BY]
‘Aloeded

duipuny [enualod s,301351Q Y3} UIYUM S| UOI|jIw 61°¢S Aidewixoidde jo yojew |eD0| palewiisa ay|

620't82's $ - ¢ | sLo't8T'e § 9.6 [||ao) sisAjeuy
19£'8L%'T S S| 19£°8Lv'T S | vEO'9 S 897 AeluSWS|3 poomaBpry| ¢
€T€'208'T § | - S | €TE°208'T ¢ | vEO'9 S 80€ |ooyag uapny| T
(9609) 3uesp [{9:09) 3uesp| (9¢09) 3umap | Jumip Jjosuz
a3ms ajelg °3ms | ndnd | 92-9Z0ZAd e
meL | ggoz | awemny | |
(s£0Z-3ua11nD) A3jj1q13)|3 spung uopezjuIBPON PRUIqWOY BaNaN4 PajEWIST

"uol|jlw 6T°ZS Aj@1ewixosdde jo Juswaliinbal yolew |e30| pajewiiss
ue yum ‘uoljjiw /°'ss Applewixoidde si Ayjiqi8na siyl yum palernosse Ayioedes 1osload uolleziuispow
|10} pajewnsa syl ‘aunidonuis yolew |edo] usdiad O / a1eis juadiad Q9 plepuels e Sulwnssy .

‘Alejusws|3 poomadpry Joy
uoljjiw 8%'TS pue j00YdS ua1IND 4oy uol|jiw 08°'TS Ajorewixoidde sapnjoul AJjiqiSie 1ue8 a1els palewnnsy .

"GE0T Y3nouyi Suipuny jueld uolleziuidpow 1e1s [e101 Ul uol||iw 87 €S Ajerewixoadde
10} 9|qi3112 ag 0} parewnsa si 1213siQ 2y ‘sejes yuels idnd-1ad a1e15 pue JUBWI}|O4Ud JU3LIND UO paseg .

sjueld uoneziuiapouw Joj a|qi8ie
9Je p|0 sieaA Qg JaA0 ale eyl say|ioey 3|qe1iod 10 plo siedA Gz JSA0 aie 1eY) SNI|IDR) [O0YIS JUDURWIDY

SISAjeuy Ydle|Al [e10] '3 SIUBJID) UOIIRZIUISPOA :PIY 9181



"ONI| ——

M4D

¥06°259'S S| ee8've9’'s ¢ | tL0'ee0’e ¢ $324n0S |e30}

£68'T08'¢ S | €E8'vTT'E S | 090°LL9 S |lerog

090°££9 S| - $ | 090229 3 JUBWISINGUWISY |00YIS UAIND

6879TLT S| 68V9TLT S ] S |o0YdS uanny

YrEBOY'T S| vve'gor't S| - S " |ooyos poomadpry
Au|1qi21|3 uoneziuiapo piy ajeis

110968V $ | 000°'00S‘c S| T1T0'9SE‘Z  $ [|eon

000°00ST $ | oo0'00sc S| - S g S9143S 870¢

110'95¢C S - S | TT09SEC S ¥ Sslas G20¢
uopieziioyiny puog 09 SZ0OZ N, @1nseay

CE-TEOZAd | 8Z-L20OZTA4
jeol -6¢-820TAd = 9Z-SZOTAA $324N0S pajewnsy
¢ °seyqd T aseyd

$924N0S - sjudwanosdw] Jo uiseyd pasodo.d



"ON| ——m

064598 S | €€8V29’S $ | TZo'ee0’E  $ SasM pajewi)s] |e}o] puess
LL9'SET'T S | 286'0€L S | S69'v0P S anJasay weidoud
Lee'ees'L S | 1S8°€68'Y $ | 9Lg£829 S je3o] syuawanocadw) pasodoig
| 208'7E6'T S | 9zv'T89'T S | 9cg’ese S |levoL
000'7S¢ S | 000ST S - S sjuswaAoidw| 8115 J0[133XT SNO3UE||DISIA
TLTLTE S| zetisee e S -  10713upjed jo Supepnsay
o 3 L : - e s
66€TTL S | 66€TL s| - S| - - h syuawanosdw| HYAH
TSv'yee S | €82'51¢ S | 899°8p S syuawanoldw| Jejos
190'18 $ - $ | t9018 s| S (s9|qeL youny man pue Junuied) siuawasaosdw| Y4 N
LY9'ETT S| - $|voczr ¢ . R spunoigAeld pue |leqiayseg
i {ooyas uann)
qey'L8S'S S| severe’e S | 000°SLET S |levon ]
¢LT'T0g S | ¢Leeos S = S SJuaWanoJdw) )G J01I3IX] SNOSUB||ADSIIA|
005601 $ | 005601 3 - S (34m3judng ‘Buiiooly ‘Bunuied) SwWooISsel) £ 01 UONEZIUIBPOA
199759 $ 1199159 I g T T T T T T T smopuip apeagdn
| 66€2CL S | e6€TTL S : s| syuawaAoldw) JYAH
€65'97T'T S | €659C2TT S > S
000'SLEC S| - $|ooo'scec §|
|ooyas poomadpry
= ZE-TE0ZAS 82-L20ZA4
|elol -6¢-820CA4 - 92-S¢0ZAd sasn pajewys3
Z ¥seyd 1 aseyqd

S9SN - siuswanoidwi jo Suiseyd pasodoud






Cutten Elementary School
2023-2024 School Accountability Report Card
(Published During the 2024-2025 School Year)

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)

SARC Overview

DataQuest

[DataQuest

DEPARTMENT QF EDUCAT ON
California School Dashboard

’ California School
t :fs\ DASHBOARD

Internet Access

2024 School Accountability Report Card

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains
information about the condition and performance of each California public school.
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies
(LEASs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP),
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all
pupils, with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally,
data reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC.

For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year
reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page
at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sal.

- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web
page at https://www.cde.ca.qov/fg/aallc/.

- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and
community members should contact the school principai or the district office.

A hard copy of the School Accountability Report Card is available at your School
Office, upon request.

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at
https://dqg.cde.ca.gov/dataguest/ that contains additional information about this
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically,
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test
data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing,
and data regarding English learners).

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard)
https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and
continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and
schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying
strengths, chailenges, and areas in need of improvement.

Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries
and public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis.
Other use restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a
workstation may be used (depending on availability), the types of software
programs available on a workstation, and the ability to print documents.

Page 1 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



Admission Requirements for the Admissinn requirements for the LIC follow guidelines set forth in the Master Plan,

University of California (UC) which requires that the top one-eighth of the state’s high school graduates, as
well as those transfer students who have successfully completed specified
college course work, be eligible for admission to the UC. These requirements are
designed to ensure that all eligible students are adequately prepared for
University-level work. For general admissions requirements, please visit the UC
Admissions Information website at hitps://admission.universityofcalifornia.edu/.

Admission Requirements for the Eligibility for admission to the CSU is determined by three factors: (1) Specific

California State University (CSU) high school courses, (2) Grades in specified courses and test scores, and (3)
Graduation from high school. Some campuses have higher standards for
particular majors or students who live outside the local campus area. Because of
the number of students who apply, a few campuses have higher standards
(supplementary admission criteria) for ali applicants. Most CSU campuses have
local admission guarantee policies for students who graduate or transfer from
high schools and colleges that are historically served by a CSU campus in that
region. For admission, application, and fee information, see the CSU website at
https://www?2.calstate.edu/.

2024-25 School Contact Information

School Name Cutten Elementary School

Street 4182 Walnut Dr. :
City, State, Zip Eureka, CA 95503

Phone Number (707) 441-3900

Principal Darcie Rutter

Email Address drutter@cuttensd.org

School Website www.cuttensd.org

Grade Span 3-6

County-District-School (CDS) Code 12-62745-6007736

2024-25 District Contact Information

District Name Cutten Elementary School District
Phone Number (707) 441-3900

Superintendent Becky MacQuarrie

Email Address bmacquarrie@cuttensd.org
District Website www.cuttensd.org

2024-25 School Description and Mission Statement

Cutten is a single-attendance elementary school district with students at two sites. Ridgewood School provides instruction for

| students in transitional kindergarten through second grades, and Cutten School serves students in third through six grades.
We currently have a population of approximately 600 students. Both sites have a full-time Principal, and the district has a full-
time Superintendent. The staff totals about 90 people. The Comprehensive School Safety Plan describes programs in place at
our schools as well as strategies for continued improvement in providing a safe and orderly school environment conducive to

|
learning. |
|

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



2024-25 School Description and Mission Statement

The Cutten School District, in partnership with our community, provides students with the academic and social skiils necessary
to become contributing members of a global community. We do this by creating a joyful, student-centered, and orderly learning
environment rich in the arts and sciences, where everyone knows they are respected members of the “Cutten-Ridgewood

Family”.

About this School

2023-24 Student Enrollment by Grade Level

Grade Level Number of Students

Grade 3
Grade 4
Grade 5
Grade 6

Total Enroliment

62
93
64
83
302

2023-24 Student Enroliment by Student Group

Female 48.3
Male 51.7
American Indian or Alaska Native 3
Asian 3.3
Black or African American 0.3
Hispanic or Latino 14.6
Two or More Races 16.2
| White 62.6
English Learners 2.3
Foster Youth 0.3
Homeless 4
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 44
Students with Disabilities 18.5
2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic
(Priority 1);

e Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;

¢ Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and
School facilities are maintained in good repair.

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement

X - . School School District District State State

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed
for Subject and Student Placement 16.10 98.77 31.10 97.80 228366.10 83.12
(properly assigned)

Intern Credential Holders Properly

Assigned 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4205.90 1.53
Teachers Without Credentials and |
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11216.70 4.08 |
ESSA)

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-

Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12115.80 4.41 ‘
Unknown/Incomplete/NA 0.20 1.23 0.70 2.20 18854.30 6.86
Total Teaching Positions 16.30 100.00 31.80 100.00 274759.10 100.00

Note: The data in this table is based on full-time equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full-time; one
FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full-time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as a |
position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that
‘ an educator is authorized to provide to students.

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement

Authorization/Assignment School School District District State State
9 Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed
for Subject and Student Placement 16.10 100.00 31.30 97.39 234405.20 84.00
(properly assigned)

Intern Credential Holders Properly
Assigned

Teachers Without Credentials and
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12001.50 4.30
ESSA)

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4853.00 1.74

Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA) 0.00 0.00 0.50 1.55 11953.10 4.28
Unknown/Incomplete/NA 0.00 0.00 0.30 1.02 15831.90 5.67
Total Teaching Positions 16.10 100.00 32.20 100.00 279044.80 100.00

Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time;
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that
an educator is authorized to provide to students.

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



2022-23 Teacher Preparation and Placement

| Authorization/Assignment School School District District State State
g Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed

for Subject and Student Placement 15.60 100.00 28.10 96.57 231142.40 83.24
(properly assigned)

Intern Credential Holders Properly

Assigned 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5566.40 2.00
Teachers Without Credentials and

Misassignments (“ineffective” under 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14938.30 5.38
ESSA)

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-

Field (“out-of-fleld” under ESSA) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11746.90 4.23
Unknown/Incomplete/NA 0.00 0.00 0.90 3.39 14303.80 5.15
Total Teaching Positions 15.60 100.00 29.10 100.00 277698.00 100.00

Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time;
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as

a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that
an educator is authorized to provide to students.

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)

| Authorization/Assignment | 202021 | 202122 | 202223 |
Permits and Waivers 0.00 0.00 0
Misassignments 0.00 0.00 0
Vacant Positions 0.00 0.00 0
Lc;;z!ls'ie:::qeernst:\lithout Credentials and 0.00 0.00 0

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)

L ndcaor [ 20201 [ 202122 2022-23

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or

Waiver 0.00 0.00
Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.00 0
Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.00 0.00 0

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



Class Assignments

Misassignments for English Learners
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners 0.00 0 0
taught by teachers that are misassigned)

No credential, permit or authorization to teach
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no 0.00 0 0
record of an authorization to teach)

Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at
nttps://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp.

2024-25 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials

Year and month in which the data were collected September 2024

From Percent
Textbooks and Otherir;sotlrazui%trilonal Materials/year of R“gg:;‘t La?:tkl:_::nct)iv ]

Adogtnon Assigned
Reading/Language Arts National Geographic Reach for Reading, 2017 Yes 0.0%
Mathematics McGraw Hill My Math (3-5), 2014 Yes 0.0%

McGraw Hill California Math (6), 2014

Science FOSS, 2021 Yes 0.0%
History-Social Science Teachers' Curriculum Institute, 2024 Yes 0.0%
Foreign Language N/A 0.0%
Health SPARK PE, 2018 0.0%
Visual and Performing Arts N/A 0.0%
Science Laboratory Equipment N/A 0.0%

(grades 9-12)

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

Cutten School provides a safe, clean, tobacco-free educational environment for students. One maintenance employee and two
custodians ensure the good condition and cleanliness of our buildings, restrooms, and grounds. All classrcoms and support
services rooms are equipped with a telephone, an intercom system, and access to the Internet. A security system is present to

protect every room.

Visitors are welcomed at Cutten School and sign in at the school office. Due to the close-knit nature of our school, unfamiliar
visitors on campus are very rare and are immediately greeted by school personnel.

Cutten Elementary School was built in 1951. The school has fourteen regular classrooms, a library, a multipurpose room, and
facilities for student support resources, music, social services/counseling, speech and our after-school program. Facilities also

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 20 Cutten Elementary School




School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

include two baseball fields, a multi-dimensional playground structure, three wall ball courts, and a large athletic field. A new
playground structure was installed in the summer of 2020. i

| Year and month of the most recent FIT report September, 2024
System Inspected @ L Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned
Good Poor
Systems: X
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer
Interior: X
Interior Surfaces
Cleanliness: X
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/VVermin Infestation
Electrical X
Restrooms/Fountains: X
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains
Safety: X
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials
Structural: X
Structural Damage, Roofs
External: X Cutten’'s buildings all need a new coat of paint.
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/
Doors/Gates/Fences

Overall Facility Rate

X

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement
(Priority 4):

Statewide Assessments

(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven.
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities).

The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation
requirements:

1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three
through eight and grade eleven.

2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades
three through eight and grade eleven.

3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once
in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve).

College and Career Ready

The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University,
or career technical education sequences or programs of study.

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven
taking and completing a state-administered assessment.

To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population is ten
or fewer.

ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

School School District State State
2022 23 2023-24 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24

English Language Arts/Literacy

(grades 3-8 and 11)

Mathematics 43 50 43 50 34 35
(grades 3-8 and 11)

2023-24 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test resuits in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment.

ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



| the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3—Alternate) on the CAA divided by the total number of
students who participated in both assessments.

To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population is ten
or fewer.

Note: The number of students tested inciudes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not;
however, the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The
achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.

CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | CAAspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Total Number Percent Percent

S e Enroliment Tested Tested Not Tested Mt o

- Exceeded
All Students 308 300 97.40 2.60 50.67
Female 148 141 95.27 4.73 56.74
Male 160 159 99.38 0.62 45.28

American Indian or Alaska Native - = = = =

Asian - - - -~ --

Black or African American - st 1) - -

Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 47 46 97.87 2.13 34.78
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0

Two or More Races 54 51 94.44 5.56 56.86
White 188 184 97.87 2.13 54.35 ‘

English Learners -- = — .| -

Foster Youth == e = o =
Homeless 15 13 86.67 13.33 38.46
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 132 128 96.97 3.03 46.88
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 57 56 98.25 1.75 33.93

2023-24 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking |
and completing a state-administered assessment. |

| Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is

calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative
| Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAA divided by the
total number of students who participated in both assessments.

To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population is ten
or fewer.

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; |
however, the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The
achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.

CAASPP CAASPP CAASPP CAASPP

CAASPP

Student Group Jit | o | mmer | em | R

xceeded

All Students 308 299 97.08 2.92 49.50
Female 148 140 94.59 5.41 45.00
Male 160 159 99.38 0.62 53.46

American Indian or Alaska Native . — — — —

Asian - - - - -

Black or African American == =% - - s

Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 47 45 95.74 4,26 37.78
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races 54 51 94.44 5.56 50.98
White 188 184 97.87 2.13 53.80

English Learners == 2 = = e

Foster Youth -- -~ - -- --
Homeless 15 13 86.67 13.33 38.46
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 132 127 96.21 3.79 43.31
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0
Students with Disabilities 57 56 98.25 1.75 35.71

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard.

Science test results include the CAST and the CAA for Science. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total
| number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e.,
achieved Level 3—Alternate) on the CAA for Science divided by the total number of students who participated in a science
assessment.

To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population is ten
or fewer.

| The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however,
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.

School School District District State State
2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24

Science 47.56 51.56 47.56 51.56 30.29 30.73
(grades 5, 8 and high school)

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



2023-24 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

' This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School. Double
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Total Percent Percent Percent

SRR Enrollment Tested Not Tested E)I(V(I:Zteg; d
All Students 67 64 95.52 4.48 51.56
Female 30 27 90.00 10.00 62.96
Male 37 37 100.00 0.00 43.24

American Indian or Alaska Native = - 2 - =

Asian == = - = L
Black or African American 0 0 0 0 0
Filipino 0 0 0 0 0
Hispanic or Latino 11 10 90.91 9.09 --
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0
Two or More Races 13 12 92.31 7.69 33.33
White 39 38 97.44 2.56 68.42

English Learners s o = = =

Foster Youth -- -- - -- -
Homeless - - - -- -
Military 0 0 0 0 0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 29 27 93.10 6.90 51.85
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 0 0 0

Students with Disabilities = o P 5 =

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education.

2023-24 California Physical Fitness Test Results

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness |
Test Results. The administration of the PFT requires only participation results for these five fitness areas. Percentages are not
calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number
of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Component 2: Component 3: Component 4:

Grade Level Component 1: Abdominal Trunk Extensor Upper Body Component 5:
Aerobic Capacity Strength and and Strength and Strength and Flexibitity
Endurance Flexibili Endurance
' Grade 5 100 100 100 100 100
C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site.

2024-25 Opportunities for Parental Involvement

If you would like to become involved in PTA, or be a classroom volunteer, we welcome you! Parent participation in all aspects
of the school program is a strength of our district. In addition, leadership opportunities for parents are available through our
School Site Council, our award-winning Parent Teachers Association, and the District Advisory Council. We are also always
open to parent and community comments and suggestions. Please feel free to contact Darcie Rutter, Principal, at (707) 441-
3900 for more information.

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



2023-24 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

Cumulative Chronic Chronic Chronic
Student Group Enrolljlme‘:\t Absenteeism Absenteeism | Absenteeism
Eligible Enrollment Count Rate
All Students 311 308 54 17.5
Female 149 147 26 17.7
Male 162 161 28 17.4
Non-Binary = = e —

American Indian or Alaska Native =2 - e e

Asian -- -- -- -

Black or African American = L - -

Filipino = == = -
Hispanic or Latino 48 47 13 27.7

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander = - o -

Two or More Races 54 53 9 17.0
White 190 189 30 15.9
English Learners - - - --
Foster Youth - - - -
Homeless 17 17 6 35.3
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 146 143 35 245

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services -- -- - -

Students with Disabilities 64 63 13 20.6

Note: To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population
|iiten or fewer.

C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School
Climate (Priority 6):

e Pupil suspension rates;

e Pupil expulsion rates; and
e Other local measures on the sense of safety

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



Suspensions and Expulsions

This table displays suspensions data.

S RS 1 1 S

School School School District District State State

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24
0.6 3.6

1.83 2.57 1.23 1.03 2.07 3.17 3.28

This table displays expulsions data.

School School School District District State State State |
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
0 0 0 0 0 0

0.07 0.08 0.07

2023-24 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group

All Students 2.57 0.00
Female 0.00 0.00
Male 4.94 0.00
Non-Binary 0.00 0.00
American Indian or Alaska Native 0.00 0.00
Asian 0.00 0.00
Black or African American 0.00 0.00
Filipino 0.00 0.00
Hispanic or Latino 4.17 0.00
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.00 0.00
Two or More Races 1.85 0.00
White 1.58 0.00
English Learners 0.00 0.00
Foster Youth 0.00 0.00
Homeless 5.88 0.00
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 4.11 0.00
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0.00 0.00
Students with Disabilities 6.25 0.00
Note: To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population
is ten or fewer.

2024-25 School Safety Plan

The Comprehensive School Safety Plan was adopted by the Board of Trustees in February, 2025. Key elements of the plan,
including monthly fire drills, earthquake evacuation procedures, and lockdown policies are reviewed by staff and School Site
Council in October each year, and are in effect throughout the year. The Cutten School Student Council provides input.

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC

The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the
state priorities for LCFF.

2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
classes.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with |
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

4 17 2 3
5 24 1 3 1
6 17 1 3

Other 160

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
classes.

Number of Ciasses with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
s L) Average Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students
4

4 22 3

5 21 1 3

6 22 1 3
Other 160

2023-24 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2023-24 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes”

indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes.

Grade L evel Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

4 23 1

3

5 21 1 2

6 27 3
Other 116

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



2023-24 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor. One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Title Ratio

Pupils to Academic Counselor 0 |

2023-24 Student Support Services Staff

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school. One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. The “Other”
category is for all other student support services staff positions not listed.

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)

Library Media Teacher (Librarian)

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)

Psychologist 0.5
Social Worker 1
Nurse

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist . 1

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)
| Other

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries

This table displays the 2022-23 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school. Cells with N/A values do not
| require data.

| Total Expenditures Expenditures Average
Level Expenditures Per Pupil Per Pupil Teacher
Sala
| -
School Site $9,862 $1,833 $8,029 $72,122
District N/A N/A $7,922 $75,203
Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A 13 -10.5
State N/A N/A $10,771 $79,413
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A -32.5 -16.7

Fiscal Year 2023-24 Types of Services Funded

In the Cutten Elementary School District, in addition to regular classroom instruction, we fund the following programs and

services for students:
e *0.20 FTE Gifted and Talented Education Teacher
e **1.0FTE Music Teacher

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 20 Cutten Elementary School




Fiscal Year 2023-24 Types of Services Funded

** 1.5 FTE Library Technician

** 1.0 FTE Technology Coordinator

** 2.0 FTE School Social Worker

** 2.0 FTE Speech and Language Pathologist

** 4.0 FTE Specialized Academic Instructor

** 1.0 FTE School Psychologist

** 0.5 FTE Expanded Learning Community Coordinator

** Bus transportation provided by 2 bus drivers

** 2 Reading Intervention Coordinators

** Three hour assistant in every classroom, daily, plus 30 minutes for targeted intervention

** Services provided to both Ridgewood (grades TK - 2) and Cutten School (grades 3 — 6)

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Teacher and Administrative Salaries

This table displays the 2022-23 Teacher and Administrative salaries. For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at hitp://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/.

Category Eri:;ﬂ(:t ) S:: :eD/i\s‘i‘:izge

in Same Categ

Beginning Teacher Salary $48,633 $51,352
Mid-Range Teacher Salary $67,550 $80,424
Highest Teacher Salary $87,860 $103,442
Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $98,100 $124,852
Average Principal Salary (Middle) $0 $135,030
Average Principal Salary (High) $0
Superintendent Salary $112,200 $145,237
Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 32.49 26.17
Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 4.7 6.29

Professional Development

The Cutten District implemented the Leadership Team in 2014. Teachers apply to be on the team and receive an annual
stipend of $2,000. This Team, that includes all administrators, meets weekly to plan professional development opportunities for
teachers and evaluate the effectiveness of professional development opportunities offered. This year the team is focusing on
the Science of Reading, Math Identity and {nstruction Strategies, and Universal Design for Learning. Input is regularly sought
from certificated staff to identify areas of focus for professional development. Professional development is offered during our
preservice days at the beginning of each school year, an inservice day mid-year, and during our early release collaborative
Wednesdays.

The District reimburses teachers for registration to selected professional development opportunities offered through the County
Office of Education, and other professional resources.

To evaluate our system for professional growth and improvement for teachers, we survey certificated staff, teachers meet in
grade level teams to assess needs, and we meet as a district several times a year to examine student achievement data to
help assess need for professional development. New teachers participate in the Teacher Induction Program, formerly known as
BTSA, and are mentored by veteran teachers. The North Coast School of Education’s (NCSOE) North Coast Teacher Induction
Program (NCTIP) is a two-year program that provides a link between the skills acquired in the Preliminary Credential Program
to the experiences in the classroom. Candidates work with a Mentor Teacher to further develop the knowledge and skills

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 20 Cutten Elementary School




Professional Development

needed to achieve competency in the California Standards. Mentors provide support, experiences, and professional
development to help candidates meet the CCTC requirements for a Clear Credential. When a new teacher is hired,
experienced teachers provide continual support in all aspects of the profession. Grade level teams meet regularly to provide

assistance and support to our newest teachers.

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement.

Subject 2022-23 | 2023-24 m
5 5 5

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 20 Cutten Elementary School



Ridgewood Elementary School
2023-2024 School Accountability Report Card
(Published During the 2024-2025 School Year)

General Information about the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)

SARC Overview By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to
publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains
information about the condition and performance of each California public school.
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies
(LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP),
which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all
pupils, with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally,
data reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC.

For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year
reports, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page

at https://www.cde.ca.qov/talac/sal.

- For more information about the LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web
page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aallc/.

- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and
community members should contact the school principal or the district office.

A hard copy of the School Accountability Report Card is available at your School
Office, upon request.

DataQuest DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at
https://dg.cde.ca.gov/dataguest/ that contains additional information about this
school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically,

g DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test

> ATA UEST data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing,

e and data regarding English learners).
California School Dashboard The California School Dashboard (Dashboard)
https:/fwww.caschooldashboard.ora/ reflects California’s new accountability and
P ~ California School continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and
l 7 \ DASHBOARD schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The
S, Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and

student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying
strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement.

Internet Access Internet access is available at public fibraries and other locations that are publicly
accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries
and public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis.
Other use restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a
workstation may be used (depending on availability), the types of software
programs available on a workstation, and the ability to print documents.

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 1 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



Admission Requirements for the Admission requirements for the UC follow guidelines set forth in the Master Plan,

University of California (UC) which requires that the top one-eighth of the state’s high school graduates, as
well as those transfer students who have successfully completed specified
college course work, be eligible for admission to the UC. These requirements are
designed to ensure that all eligible students are adequately prepared for
Universily-level work. For general admissions requiremenls, please visil the UC
Admissions Information website at htips://admission.universityofcalifornia.edu/.

Admission Requirements for the Eligibility for admission to the CSU is determined by three factors: (1) Specific

California State University (CSU) high school courses, (2) Grades in specified courses and test scores, and (3)
Graduation from high school. Some campuses have higher standards for
particular majors or students who live outside the local campus area. Because of
the number of students who apply, a few campuses have higher standards
(supplementary admission criteria) for ali applicants. Most CSU campuses have
local admission guarantee policies for students who graduate or transfer from
high schools and colleges that are historically served by a CSU campus in that
region. For admission, application, and fee information, see the CSU website at
hitps:/www2.calstate.edu/.

2024-25 School Contact Information

School Name Ridgewood Elementary School
Street 2060 Ridgewood Dr.

City, State, Zip Eureka, Ca, 95503

Phone Number 707-441-3930

Principal Annette Sligh

Email Address asligh@cuttensd.org

School Website www.cuttensd.org

Grade Span TK-2

County-District-School (CDS) Code 12-62745-6007744

2024-25 District Contact Information

District Name Cutten Elementary School District
Phone Number (707) 441-3900

Superintendent Becky MacQuarrie

Email Address bmacquarrie@cuttensd.org
District Website www.cuttensd.org

2024-25 School Description and Mission Statement

Cutten is a single-attendance elementary school district with students at two sites. Ridgewood School provides instruction for |
students in transitional kindergarten through second grades, and Cutten School serves students in third through six grades.

We currently have a population of approximately 600 students. Both sites have a full-time Principal and the district has a full-
time Superintendent. The staff totals about 90 people. The Comprehensive School Safety Plan describes programs in place at
our schools as well as strategies for continued improvement in providing a safe and orderly school environment conducive to
learning. ‘

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



2024-25 School Description and Mission Statement

The Cutten School District, in partnership with our community, provides students with the academic and social skills necessary
to become contributing members of a global community. We do this by creating a joyful, student-centered, and orderly learning
environment rich in the arts and sciences, where everyone knows they are respected members of the “"Cutten-Ridgewood
Family".

About this School

2023-24 Student Enroliment by Grade Level

Kindergarten 115
Grade 1 77
Grade 2 67
Total Enroliment 259

2023-24 Student Enrollment by Student Group

Female 52.1
Male 47.9
American Indian or Alaska Native 3.1

Asian 4.2
Hispanic or Latino 18.1
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.4
Two or More Races 13.5
White 60.2
English Learners 5

Foster Youth 0.8
Homeless 3.9
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 51.4
Students with Disabilities 10

A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic
(Priority 1):

e Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;

e Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and

e School facilities are maintained in good repair.

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 3 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement
iy ) School School District District State State

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed

for Subject and Student Placement 15.00 96.77 31.10 97.80 228366.10 83.12
(properly assigned)

Intern Credential Holders Properly

Assigned 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4205.90 1.53
Teachers Without Credentials and

Misassignments (“ineffective” under 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11216.70 4.08
ESSA)

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-

Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12115.80 4.41
Unknown/iIncomplete/NA 0.50 3.23 0.70 2.20 18854.30 6.86
Total Teaching Positions 15.50 100.00 31.80 100.00 274759.10 100.00
Note: The data in this table is based on full-time equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full-time; one
FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full-time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as a
position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that
an educator is authorized to provide to students.

2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement

Authorization/Assianment School School District District State State
9 Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed

for Subject and Student Placement 15.10 94.75 31.30 97.39 234405.20 84.00
(properly assigned)

IntehniEredentia HoldursiBigRenly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4853.00 174
Assigned

Teachers Without Credentials and

Misassignments (“ineffective” under 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12001.50 4.30
ESSA)

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-

Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA) 0.50 3.13 0.50 1.55 11953.10 4.28
Unknown/incomplete/NA 0.30 2.06 0.30 1.02 15831.90 5.67
Total Teaching Positions 16.00 100.00 32.20 100.00 279044.80 100.00

Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time;
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that
an educator is authorized to provide to students.

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



2022-23 Teacher Preparation and Placement
Authorization/Assianment School School District District State State
9 Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed
for Subject and Student Placement 12.50 92.66 28.10 96.57 231142.40 83.24
(properly assigned)

Intern Credential Holders Properly

: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5566.40 2.00
Assigned
Teachers Without Credentials and
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14938.30 5.38
ESSA)
Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11746.90 4.23
Unknown/Incomplete/NA 0.90 7.34 0.90 3.39 14303.80 5.15
Total Teaching Positions 13.40 100.00 29.10 100.00 277698.00 100.00

Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time;
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that
an educator is authorized to provide to students.

Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA)

Authorization/Assignment m 2021-22 2022-23
Permits and Waivers 0.00 0.00
Misassignments 0.00 0.00 0
Vacant Positions 0.00 0.00 0
Total Teachers Without Credentials and
Misassignments ey B0 2

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA)

L ndicar | 20021 | o122 2022-23

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or

Waiver 0.00 0.00
Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.50 0
Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.00 0.50

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



Class Assignments
|
| mdicator | 2022 [ 202122 2022-23

| Misassignments for English Learners
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners 0.00 0 0
taught by teachers that are misassigned)

No credential, permit or authorization to teach
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no 0.00 0 0
record of an authorization to teach)

Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at
hitps://www.cde,ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp.

2024-25 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials

Year and month in which the data were collected September 2024

From Percent
Subject Textbooks and Otherpl‘rcn's;t‘r)ttjic;tri‘onal Materials/year of R':,elf:):_yt\t Lasctkui_ggn(;iv =
Adogtlon Assigned
Reading/L.anguage Arts National Geographic Reach for Reading, 2017 Yes 0.0%
Mathematics McGraw Hill My Math, 2014 Yes 0.0%
Science Foss, 2021 Yes 0.0%
History-Social Science McGraw Hill, 2024 Yes 0.0%
Foreign Language N/A 0.0%
Health SPARK PE, 2018 0.0%
Visual and Performing Arts N/A 0.0%
Science Laboratory Equipment N/A 0.0%

(grades 9-12)

| Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

Ridgewood Elementary School provides a safe, clean, tobacco-free educational environment for students. One maintenance
employee and two custodians ensure the good condition and cleanliness of our buildings, restrooms, and grounds. All
classrooms and support services rooms are equipped with a telephone, an intercom system, and access to the Internet. A
security system is present to protect every room.

Visitors are welcomed at Ridgewood School and sign in at the school office. Due to the close-knit nature of our school,
unfamiliar visitors on campus are very rare and are immediately greeted by school personnel.

Ridgewood Elementary School was built in 1957. The school has 14 regular classrooms, a library, a multipurpose room (the
commons, where assemblies take place one morning each week), a student support resource room (the Learning Lane), and a
breakfast room, which is also available for small group instruction and to provide quality after-school care. [

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements

The playground has enjoyed recent equipment upgrades with the addition of a transitional kindergarten playground, and
borders two baseball fields, a playing field, a wall ball court, and our own redwood forest. All facilities and equipment are
designed for primary students.
Year and month of the most recent FIT report August, 2024
Rate | Rate | Rate - .

System Inspected Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned
Systems: X
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer
Interior: X
Interior Surfaces
Cleanliness: X
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation
Electrical X
Restrooms/Fountains: X
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains
Safety: X
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials
Structural: X
Structural Damage, Roofs
External: X
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/
Doors/Gates/Fences

Overall Facility Rate

X

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement
(Priority 4):

Statewide Assessments

(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven.
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities).

The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation
requirements:

1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three
through eight and grade eleven.

2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades
three through eight and grade eleven.

3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once
in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve).

College and Career Ready

The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University,
or career technical education sequences or programs of study.

Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven
taking and completing a state-administered assessment.

To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population is ten
or fewer.

ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

English Language Arts/Literacy

School School District State
2022-23 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24
(grades 3-8 and 11)

Mathematics 34
(grades 3-8 and 11)

2023-24 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment.

ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3—Alternate) on the CAA divided by the total number of
students who participated in both assessments.

To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population is ten
or fewer.

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not;
however, the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The
achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.

CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | caaspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Student Groups Tcl?ltal Number Percent NPercent Met or
Enrollment Tested Tested ot Tested Exceeded
All Students
Female
Male

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth
Homeless
Military
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged |

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services

Students with Disabilities

2023-24 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking -
and completing a state-administered assessment.

Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3—Alternate) on the CAA divided by the
total number of students who participated in both assessments.

To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population is ten
or fewer,

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not;
however, the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The
achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.

CAASPP | CAASPP | CAASPP | CAAspp | CAASPP
CAASPP Percent
Student Groups Total Number Percent Percent Met or
P Enrollment Tested Tested Not Tested
Exceeded
All Students
Female
Male

American Indian or Alaska Native

| Asian

Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Military

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services

Students with Disabilities

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. |
|

Science test results include the CAST and the CAA for Science. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total
number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., ‘
achieved Level 3—Alternate) on the CAA for Science divided by the total number of students who participated in a science|

assessment. |

To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population is ten
or fewer.

The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however,
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. |

School School District District State State

2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24
Science 47.56 51.56 30.29 30.73
(grades 5, 8 and high school)

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



2023-24 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School. Double |
|dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category
| is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Percent
e | e e R
Exceeded
All Students
Female
| Male

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Black or African American

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
Two or More Races

White

English Learners

Foster Youth

Homeless

Military

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services

Students with Disabilities

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education.

2023-24 California Physical Fitness Test Results

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness
Test Results. The administration of the PFT requires only participation results for these five fitness areas. Percentages are not
calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number
of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Component 2: Component 3: Component 4:
Component 1: Abdominal Trunk Extensor Upper Body Component 5:
Aerobic Capacity Strength and and Strength and Strength and Flexibility
Endurance Flexibili Endurance

Grade Level

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site.

2024-25 Opportunities for Parental Involvement

If you would like to become involved as a school volunteer, our doors are wide open! Parent assistance is an important part of
our school day, especially during language arts instruction and any other small group instruction. Parents sing along at
assemblies and are very active in our award-winning Parent Teacher Association, District Advisory Council, and the School
Site Council. Please feel free to contact Annette Sligh, Principal, at (707) 441-3930 for more information.

2023-24 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group

Cumulative Chronic Chronic Chronic
Student Group Enroliment Absenteeism Absenteeism | Absenteeism
Eligible Enroliment Count Rate
All Students 268 268 53 19.8
Female 142 142 30 21.1
Male 126 126 23 18.3
Non-Binary = 2 s =

American Indian or Alaska Native = o u -

Asian 11 11 3 27.3

Black or African American = ca - =

Filipino - -- -- --
Hispanic or Latino 48 48 14 29.2

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander - = = o

Two or More Races 37 37 9 24.3
White 161 161 24 14.9
English Learners 13 13 5 38.5
Foster Youth -- -- - --

Homeless 20 20 8 40.0
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 153 153 42 27.5

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services -- -- -- --

Students with Disabilities 36 36 7 19.4

Note: To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population
is ten or fewer.

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School
Climate (Priority 8):

e Pupil suspension rates;

e Pupil expulsion rates; and
e Other local measures on the sense of safety

Suspensions and Expulsions

This table displays suspensions data.

School School School District District District State State State
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 |§
3.6

0.41 1.61 1.49 1.23 1.03 2.07 3.17 3.28

This table displays expulsions data.

School School School District District State State
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24
0 0] 0 0 0 0 0.07

0.08 0.07

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



2023-24 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group

All Students 1.49 0.00 :
Female 0.00 0.00

Male 3.17 0.00
Non-Binary 0.00 0.00
American Indian or Alaska Native 0.00 0.00

Asian 0.00 0.00

Black or African American 0.00 0.00

Filipino 0.00 0.00

Hispanic or Latino 2.08 0.00

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0.00 0.00

Two or More Races 2.70 0.00

White 1.24 0.00

English Learners 0.00 0.00

Foster Youth 0.00 0.00
Homeless 0.00 0.00
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 1.96 0.00

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0.00 0.00

Students with Disabilities 0.00 0.00
Note: To protect student privacy, double dashes (--) are used in the table when the cell size within a selected student population
is ten or fewer.

2024-25 School Safety Plan

The Comprehensive School Safety Plan was adopted by the Board of Trustees February 12, 2024. Key elements of the plan,
including monthly fire drills, earthquake evacuation procedures, and lockdown policies are reviewed by staff and School Site
Council in early October each year, and are in effect throughout the year.

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC

The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the
state priorities for LCFF.

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
classes.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with [ Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

1 11 6
2 13 5 2
| Other 237

2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates

how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for muiti-grade level
classes.

Grade Level Averaae Class Size Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
9 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students
15 6 1

K

1 14 5

2 16 2 2
Other 231

2023-24 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution

This table displays the 2023-24 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes”

indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes.

Grade Level Average Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with | Number of Classes with
Class Size 1-20 Students 21-32 Students 33+ Students

1 15 5
2 17 1 3
Other 227

2023-24 Ratio of Pupils to Academlic Counselor

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor. One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

Ratio

Pupils to Academic Counselor 0 ‘

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



2023-24 Student Support Services Staff

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school. One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. The “Other”
category is for all other student support services staff positions not listed.

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School
Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)

Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)

Psychologist 0.5
Social Worker 1
Nurse

Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 1

Resource Specialist (non-teaching)
Other

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries

This table displays the 2022-23 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school. Cells with N/A values do not
require data.

Total Expenditures Expenditures Average
Expenditures Per Pupil Per Pupil Teacher
Per Pupil Restricted i Sala
School Site $9,883 $2,085 $7,798 $68,719
District N/A N/A $7,922 $75,203
Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A 1.6 -15.4
State N/A N/A $10,771 $79,413
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A -35.3 215

Fiscal Year 2023-24 Types of Services Funded

In the Cutten Elementary School District, in addition to regular classroom instruction, we fund the following programs and
services for students:
e ** 20 FTE Gifted and Talented Education Teacher
** 1.0 FTE Music Teacher
** 1.5 FTE Library Technician
** 0.90 FTE Technology Coordinator
** 2.0 FTE School Social Worker
** 2.0 FTE Speech & Language Pathologist
** 4.0 FTE Specialized Academic Instruction Teachers
** 1.0 FTE School Psychologist
** 0.5 FTE Expanded Learning Community Coordinator
** Bus transportation provided by 2 bus drivers
** 2 Reading Intervention Coordinators
** Three hour assistant in every classroom, daily, plus 30 minutes for targeted intervention

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



Fiscal Year 2023-24 Types of Services Funded

** Services provided to both Ridgewood (grades TK - 2) and Cutten School (grades 3 - 6)

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Teacher and Administrative Salaries

This table displays the 2022-23 Teacher and Administrative salaries. For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at htip://www.cde.ca.qov/ds/fd/cs/.

Category E:::J‘:t : Sfts:eDli’:ﬁi::atge

in Same Categ

Beginning Teacher Salary $48,633 $51,352
Mid-Range Teacher Salary $67,550 $80,424
Highest Teacher Salary $87,860 $103,442
Average Principal Salary (Elementary) $98,100 $124,852
Average Principal Salary (Middle) $0 $135,030
Average Principal Salary (High) $0
Superintendent Salary $112,200 $145,237
Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries 32.49 26.17
Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries 4.7 6.29

Professional Development

The Cutten District implemented the Leadership Team in 2014. Teachers apply to be on the team and receive an annual
stipend of $2,000. This Team, that includes all administrators, meets weekly to plan professional development opportunities for
teachers and evaluate the effectiveness of professional development opportunities offered. This year the team is focusing on
the Science of Reading, Math Identity and Instruction Strategies, and Universal Design for Learning. Input is regularly sought
from certificated staff to identify areas of focus for professional development. Professional development is offered during our
preservice days at the beginning of each school year, and in service day mid year and during our early release collaborative
Wednesdays.

The District reimburses teachers for registration to selected professional development opportunities offered through the County
Office of Education, and other professional resources.

To evaluate our system for professional growth and improvement for teachers, we survey certificated staff, teachers meet in
grade level teams to assess needs, and we meet as a district several times a year to examine student achievement data to
help assess need for professional development. New teachers participate In the Teacher Inductlon Program, formerly known as
BTSA and are mentored by veteran teachers. The North Coast School of Education’s (NCSOE) North Coast Teacher Induction
Program (NCTIP) is a two-year program that provides a link between the skills acquired in the Preliminary Credential Program
to the experiences in the classroom. Candidates work with a Mentor Teacher to further develop the knowledge and skills
needed to achieve competency in the California Standards. Mentors provide support, experiences, and professional
development to help candidates meet the CCTC requirements for a Clear Credential. When a new teacher is hired,
experienced teachers provide continual support in all aspects of the profession. Grade level teams meet regularly to provide
assistance and support to our newest teachers.

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous |mprovement

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement

2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School



2024 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 19 Ridgewood Elementary School






2210AUI SIU} 10} JuswAed |euonippe puss jou oq

xenn YZ-AON-GZ NO A3SSIO0Ud $6°91€$ 40 IONVLLINIY AHVYD LIATUD sxax

00'0$ asn 1 anqjunowy

¥6'9L€$ asn ! |ejol 9210AU|

08'2z$ asn I |ejoLxel

rL'v62% asn ! junowy jaN

9 :  (sway 40 "oN) finuenp pasapliQ |el0L

Z o | abed

pledaiy

asn
G¥2/5695
1G1098€
A1VIAINWNI
¥202-AON-GZ
¥202-AON-G2
¢L11¥962S
Lye68i e

sabed jo JaqunpN
Jaquinp JapiQ aseyaing
al Jswoisn) podiuan
suna] yjuswdiysg
Aauauny

laquinp Japlo
JUNO22Y JaW0)Sh)
swa ] Juswhed

ajeqg ang

aleqg

Jaquiny A1aAljag
J1oquInp a210AU|

1250S80-Lv

‘ON QI xel

LE¥SS NIN ‘uojbulwoolg
JQ A9||eA usain) L09S
*ouj ‘uosiead SON

Bi10°psuspno@pasds).go6E-1 v
-10/'poads eluo) :joejuos 1swolsny

a|qeAed SjUNOOOY

uonuaNy

€229-€0656 VO ‘YYFHN3 £229-€0556 VO ‘WYIHN3
40 INNIYM 28LYy da LNNTYM 28LY

as N3LLND ads N3Lind

:0)-d1yg Jawoysn? 10}-|{tg Jawoysnn

uosJIead




UM SN-]0Bju09/ W05 U WA SANY (1 ais poddns ano JisiA eseald “suonsanb Jog
013}/ Wos Siu U05]
:aseyaind Jnok wanob yoiym suolipuos pue suiia] ayy o} aaibe Aqasay nok ‘1apio 1nok Buioeld Ag

¥6'9.5$ 08°z2$ vooLs 062228
asn asn asn asn lejo] @o10AU|
[Ej0 L 85]0AU| Xe| [Eo) sabieyp Jeyio (e30L jelo1qns
£6'L1L 8271 veoL ¥9'91L L Buypuey pue Buiddiyg 1HDITY4 G¥2/G695
(INYd) SZ ALD
L¥eS | 1Zv 0Z'Ss 13N 0Z°6S L SIWHO4 Y03 INIDOSTT10AY d¥S £-0Svd 1280¢ S¥2/6695
(LNIYd) 62 ALD
2009 ZEY 04'6 13N 0465 ! SIWHO4 AHMODTY INIDSTTOQY SHL £-08ve S080€ S¥2/5695
(INIdd) 6Z ALD
2009 ZEeY 01°G5 13N 0L'SS ! SIWHOJ YOOI INIOSTTOAY SHd £-0Sve £180€ G¥2/5695
(INIMd) GZ ALD
8¥'65 8TV 0Z'ss 13N 0Z'ss l SWHOH HOOIH TOOHISIHd SHL €-0Sve 1080€ SH2/569G
(IN14d) Sz ALD
20°09 ZET 0485 13N 04'6S L SIWHOL4 AH0D3Y TOOHDSTHd S¥Hd £-0Svd 10808 | ‘ 6215695
Jaquun
1ej0L 8uyq xey 291id 18N % junoasig 83d s Apueny uopdusseq wey ._o d N JsquinN JepiQ
z
jc z abed L¥Z681 /2 43quInN 8210AuU]

uos.zeod



=T

TRANSMITTAL LETTER

We are pleased to provide our audit proposal to Cutten Elementary School District (“CESD”)
for the years ending June 30, 2026 through June 30, 2028.

Auditor’s responsibility will we be to provide the following:

I. A report on the CESD’s financial statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America.

2. Areport on the CESD’s Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States of America.

3. A report on CESD’s Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on
Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with Uniform Guidance.

4. A report on CESD’s State Compliance.

5. Areport on CESD’ Measure L’s Bond Performance.

6. Perform non-attest services, which is overseen by management and is management’s
responsibility, as follows:

a. Compilation of the CESD’s financial statements based off the District’s trial
balance.

b. Spreadsheet calculation of other postemployment benefits (“OPEB") using the
alternative measurement method (as specified by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 74), based on CalPERS flat file and assumptions,
as approved by management.

7. Fee and Hours

a. For each fiscal year, not to exceed $20,000 (year 1), $21,000 (year 2), and
$22,000 (year 3). Travel is to be fully reimbursed, this will be divided by the
other districts we travel to on that trip.

b. Approximately 70 hours

8. Timeframe

a. Fieldwork on or around June 15" and November |5

b. Report issuance on or around December 15, 2026.

9. Peer review was completed on August 31, 2022 and the result was the same as previous
year (Pass), please see Firm #900006 140576 at the following web address:
https://peerreview.aicpa.org/public_file_search.html




The sections that follow, as required by the RFP, demonstrate our experience and ability to
complete the requirements for this audit, as well as our audit approach. This is an irrevocable
offer not to exceed sixty (60) days. For purposes of this proposal Robert T. Dennis is
authorized to make representations for RT Dennis Accountancy. If you have any questions or
concerns please feel free to contact us.

Nl

Robert T. Dennis, CPA
Proprietor




|

ACGC.. PCO #11.1

ACANMS COMNMERUIAL GENERAL COMNIRALTING
Adams Commercial General Contracting, Inc. Project: - RWS2 (Ridgewood Elementary Mod., Ph, 2)
339 2nd Street 2060 Ridgewood Drive
Eureka, California 95501 Eureka, California 85503

Phone: (707) 443-6000
Fax: (707) 268-8381

Prime Contract Potential Change Order #11.1: Insulation Materials Change

TO: Cutten Elementary School District FROM: ACGC, Inc.
4182 Walnut Drive 339 2nd Street
Eureka, California 95503 Eureka, California 95501
PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 11171 CONTRACT: 1 - Prime Contract
REQUEST RECEIVED FROM: Frederick Bauer (Studio W Architects) CREATED BY: Travis Manning (ACGC, Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review CREATED DATE: 12/17/2025
REFERENCE: RFI 13, PCO 008 PRIME CONTRACT None
CHANGE ORDER:
FIELD CHANGE: No
LOCATION: ACCOUNTING METHOD:  Unit/Quantity Based
SCHEDULE IMPACT: PAID IN FULL: No
EXECUTED: No SIGNED CHANGE ORDER
RECEIVED DATE:
TOTAL AMOUNT: ($3,738.54)

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Insulation Materials Change

CHANGE REASON: Client Request

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Materials Credit to install R21 unfaced batt insulation in lieu of R30 FSK batt insulation.
Revision 1 Credit for removal of ridge vent

ATTACHMENTS:
O&P O&P
Pre-Marku (15.00% | (10.00%
# Budget Code Description Qty | Units | Unit Cost Subtotalp Includes |Includes Subtotal
Cost Cost
Type (5)) | Type (1))
1 |50400.C Materials.Credit g:zﬂg;"r insulation materials 10 Is  |8(5748.13)| $(5,748.13)| $0.00|  $0.00 $(5,748.13)
2 |50400.M Materials Unfaced R21 Insulation 1.0 |Is $1,966.63 $1,966.63| $294.99 $0.00 $2,261.62
53600.C . .
3 Subcontractors. Credit Credit for removal of ridge vent 1.0 |Is $(350.00) $(350.00) $0.00 $0.00 $(350.00)
Subtotal: | $(4,131.50)| $294.99  $0.00 $(3,836.51)
Bond (1.50% ): $33.92
Insurance (2.79% ): $64.05
Grand Total: $(3,738.54)
Cutten Elementary School District ACGC, Inc.
4182 Walnut Drive 339 2nd Street
Eureka, California 95503 Eureka, California 95501
M 7 12119/2025
~ I z
SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE

Adams Commercial General Contracting, Inc. Page 1 of 1 Printed On: 12/18/2025 02:29 PM PST



Change Order 1

Celebrating 100 years PO Box 1111, Eureka, CA 95502
Office 707.443.3088 Fax 707.445.5790

Rttt 71 Contractor License Number
HG““M’ & sans' Inca Oregon 75780 California 248538
sachlo@mcmurrayandsons.com

Phone number: Date:

(707) 443-6000 12/18/2025

Customer Name Customer Address

ADAMS CONSTRUCTION 339 2nd Street, Eureka, California, 95501
Job Address Job Number: 161270

Ridgewood Elem. Schooi Building A
2060 Ridgewood Drive

SCOPE OF WORK

To: Remove ridge vent from scope of work

$ 350.00

Weather days and Subcontractor's ability to work in certain weather will be at
Subcontractor's discretion only. Over the years Subcontractor has become very
attuned to what conditions are safe and workable. Subcontractor will require the ability
to monitor their work schedule accordingly.. Weather days shall not affect the

scheduled work days for completion uniess by written change order.

@% Signature Date



L

A= ACG PCO #008

p—— =] .
1 INC.

ADAMS UMM GENERAL LONTRACHING
Adams Commercial General Contracting, Inc. Project: - RWS2 (Ridgewood Elementary Mod., Ph. 2)
339 2nd Street 2060 Ridgewood Drive
Eureka, California 95501 Eureka, California 95503

Phone: (707) 443-6000
Fax: (707) 268-8381

Prime Contract Potential Change Order #008: Roof spray foam insulation

TO: Cutten Elementary School District FROM: ACGC, Inc.
4182 Walnut Drive 339 2nd Street
Eureka, California 95503 Eureka, California 95501
PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 008/0 CONTRACT: 1 - Prime Contract
REQUEST RECEIVED FROM: Frederick Bauer (Studio W Architects) CREATED BY: Travis Manning (ACGC, Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review CREATED DATE: 11/11/2025
REFERENCE: RFI 15 PRIME CONTRACT None
CHANGE ORDER:
FIELD CHANGE: No
LOCATION: ACCOUNTING METHOD:  Unit/Quantity Based
SCHEDULE IMPACT: PAID IN FULL: No
EXECUTED: No SIGNED CHANGE ORDER
RECEIVED DATE:
TOTAL AMOUNT: $21,948.81

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Roof spray foam insulation

CHANGE REASON: Design Development

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract /s Changed As Follows)

Labor and materials to provide spray foam insulation @ R11, 2" thick with fire resistant paint coating as per RFI 15.

ATTACHMENTS:
AAB.1 BUILDING A SECTION_revised roof insluation approach_11.05.25 (1).pdf

O&P O&P
Pre-Markup | (15-00% | (10.00%
# Budget Code Description Qty | Units | Unit Cost P|Includes | Includes Subtotal
Subtotal
Cost Cost
Type (5))| Type (1))
1 |53600.5 Subcontractors :igf@r and materials per attached 14 g |\s I519.12500| $19,125.00|  $0.00|$1.912.50 $21,037.50
Subtotal:| $19,125.00 $0.00| $1,912.50 $21,037.50
Bond (1.50% ): $315.56
Insurance (2.79% ): $595.75
Grand Total: $21,948.81
Cutten Elementary School District ACGC, Inc.
4182 Walnut Drive 339 2nd Sireet
Eureka, California 95503 Eureka, California 95501
11/13/2025
SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE

Adams Commercial General Contracting, Inc. Page 1 of 1 Printed On: 11/12/2025 04:32 PM PST



Estimate

Print Date: 111172025 Puage aof i

Estimate #: 81274-00

. Date: [1/11/2025
#1041570 Terms: Due on receipt
INSULATION |
Plan 1D:

i Sules Rep: Robert Muir
732 B St, Eureka, CA 95501 Phone #: (707) 834-1227

Fmail: R.MuirJNGgmail.com

Customer Name: Job Name:

ACGC Will Ridgewood Revised Roof Travis Manning
339 2nd St

Eurcka, CA 95502

will@acgcinc.com tmanning(@acgeine.com

P: 707-443-6000 P: 707-443-6000

Description

RIDGEWOOD FOAM ROOF PER SUPPLIED PLANS PACKAGE: Package Accepted (please circle one): YES / NO

R-11 Closed Cell Foam Sprayed to the underside of the roof sheathing.
DC-315 Fire Paint
DIR# PW-LR 1000532808

RIDGEWOOD FOAM ROOF PER SUPPLIED PLANS PACKAGE TOTAL: $19,125.00 (Package Is Included In Total)

Terms of Service: All prices quoted are subject to acceptance within a 30 day period. During the completion of the work in this agreement, if additional work
not listed in this agreement is required, there will be an additional cost to complete such work. All R Values are average. When spray foam is being
sprayed, no one is allowed in the building under any circumstances other than JNG Insulation Pros employees.

The balance shall be paid in full at the completion of the service rendered. Disputed items or minor repairs must be brought to the attention of JNG
Insulation Pros within 10 days in writing. Should it become necessary to place this account in the hands of an attorney for collection, the customer agrees to
pay costs of collection, including but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees whether or not suit is filed, based on the unpaid balance. JNG Insulation Pros
reserves the right under the Mechanics Lien Law to file a claim against the property for services rendered but not paid.

Please sign and date this quote and return to: jnginsulationpros@gmail.com

Thank you for your business!

AUTHORIZED SALES SIGNATURE DATE Subtotal: $19,125.00

Grand Total $19,125.00

SIGNATURE PRINT NAME DATE



